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Group Financial Summary

SEMBEE

For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE-Z—R"F+-A=+-HALLEE

Nine-month
Year ended period ended
December 31, December 31,
2016 2015 Year ended March 31,
BE-Z-RE HZ2-Z—1F%F BEZA=-T—ALtFE
t+ZA=t—A +=ZA=+—H 2015 2014 2013
LFE ENER “T-hF —E-mF —T-=F
HK$'M HKS$' M HKS$' M HK$' M HKS$'M
BERET AERET BERET BERET BERET
RESULTS %4
Turnover & %88 565.0 536.6 1,100.4 1,352.4 1,578.2
Loss before taxation
BRI AR (62.0) (86.1) (657.2) (52.1) (15.8)
Taxation 18 (2.0) 0.1) 9.8) (16.7) (13.1)
Loss for the year/period &4/ Hifs F518 (64.0) (86.2) (67.0) (68.8) 28.9)
Attributable to: LA AL FEME
Owners of the Company
ARAER A (64.0) (86.2) (67.0) (68.8) 28.9)
Non-controlling interests
= - - - - -
(64.0) (86.2) (67.0) (68.8) (28.9)
Loss per share EE 1B
- Basic and diluted (2.46) HK cents  (3.32) HK cents  (2.59) HK cents  (2.75) HK cents  (1.16) HK cents
ARREE AL AL AL il il
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Group Financial Summary

SEMBEE

For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE-Z—R"F+-A=+—ALLEE

As at December 31, As at March 31,
W+=ZA=+—-H R=ZA=1+—H
2016 2015 2015 2014 2013
—E-REF —E-hF —T-RF —Z-mEF —E-=F
HK$'M HK$'M HK$' M HK$' M HK$' M
BEEER AEEET AEEET ABEET AEEET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EERAE
Total assets {2 & & 4145 519.5 655.7 828.2 1,057.9
Total liabilities 42 & & (145.1) (188.0) (245.7) (348.4) (514.7)
269.4 331.5 410.0 479.8 543.2
Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
ARFER AEGER 269.3 331.4 409.9 479.7 543.1
Non-controlling interests
iz 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1
269.4 331.5 410.0 479.8 543.2
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Chairman’s

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased
to present the Group’s annual results for the year
ended December 31, 2016.

NO MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS CHANGED

On December 31, 2016, Jiangsu Hongtu High Technology Co.,
Ltd. (“Jiangsu Hongtu”), a joint stock company incorporated
in the PRC whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 600122), through its indirect
wholly owned subsidiary Hongtu High Technology Int’l Inc.
(“Hongtu (Seychelles)”), holds 1,310,896,765 shares of the
Company, representing approximately 50.42% of the entire
issued shares of the Company. There had been no major
shareholders change in the year ended December 31, 2016.
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Jiangsu Hongtu has a large and comprehensive business
portfolio. Its main businesses are: (1) information technology
(IT) retailing, supported by chain retail stores, selling
computers, digital products, communications products,
network and server devices, office automation equipment,
as well as software and IT related books; (2) industrial
manufacturing, which covers such products as optical
cables, electric cables, printers and communications
equipment, among others, (3) real estate, which entails
development and operation of high-end residential
properties, and (4) the Internet finance.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The global economy was uncertain towards the end of
2016 and demand for consumer electronics slumped, with
wearable devices, in particular, not growing as fast as
forecasted in the Americas and Europe market. Our VMS
business slowed down at customer shipment delays and
project cancellations.

The other major factor bearing negatively on the Group’s
performance was the delay of launch of a number of new
products originally scheduled to coincide with the year-end
shopping season. As such, the Group recorded a decrease in
gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2016 and its total
turnover for the year amounted to HK$565.0 million.

In 2016, the Group streamlined its workforce in three stages,
enabling it to reduce layers and improve labour utilisation
and overall production efficiency. It now has a leaner
organisation with fewer layers, thus easier to control. The
Group also expedited clearance of slow-moving inventories
and aging items, lowering inventory by HK$38.2 million to
HK$102.2 million. These impacted our gross profit for the
year which was down to HK$99.0 million, and gross margin
also dropped, by 2.6% percentage points, to 17.5%.

Annual Report 2016 == — <4

Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

TIHZBHEAERNERZ TIEEBKES - £
ZEBR(DEMAMRERTE  AEHTE
BEE SREEEK  BBER  BAE
o WMEMARSERE - BB ERENA
LB RERARSAERERS  (2) TXRE
BE(EREHE)RE  BF  TEIR AR
wEFER Q)FHER® HFRERK
gemmEEwE R4 EBETHE -

LUBIE 3

HE-_ZT—RFFE 2RLBDABH -
HEEBETEMNTRL IR LEZAFH
AR A SN B BN T 35 3 oK 40 TR H 4 &R
Fe BMMBEREREEBRAEPREL
ENMEUEIR B A& -

HHAREXEER TN ENTERE
REEELETRELS FERBYEFTHH
Edae Bt AEBERBE_ZT - F+=
AZT—RLEFEEFEMNRLY  RAFE
HBEXBAE%565.0A&T -

RZE—RF AEES=ZARERBEHHS
B}h RLERRRSSEH INERARER
AEME HEBMNESBEBDBL BR
8L AURERSEE - REE T MREE
BHTERREY R FEER D ABHS8.2
ABETEBE102 288 T  GIHERETE
T AEENEFRLOEAEEKIQOBEET
ERRINTE2.6%ZE17.5% °

11



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED & BB A R A 7

Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

The Group continued to resort to stringent cost control on
top of streamlining organisational structure and operational
processes. Its total operating expenses, including research
and development costs, distribution and selling expenses,
and general administrative expenses, amounted to HK$179.0
million for the period, comparing to HK$203.5 million for the
nine-month ended December 31, 2015.

The Group also kept improving cash management during
the period. It had no bank loan as at December 31, 2016.
The Group’s net cash position decreased from HK$169.4
million as at December 31, 2015 to HK$80.7 million as at
December 31, 2016.

OUTLOOK

Although the global economy, especially Europe and the
Americas, continues to be uncertain, the Group remains
confident of its 2017 plans. Having worked on customer
retention and improved organisation readiness and
operational efficiency in 2016, 2017 will be a year for launch
of new products across all categories. We have invested in
expanding geographic coverage in Europe, the Americas,
China and Rest of the World, supported by dedicated
Regional General Managers, and experienced E-commerce
teams are in place to help drive online share. In 2016, we
also set up a team to engage and support the large makers’
community. The Group will continue to work with Sanpower
subsidiaries to unearth more sales synergies and maximise
customer coverage.

For VMS, the core product development team hired new
talent to enable the Group to move into new domains.
Internet of Things (“loT”) and Health & Wellness technologies
are fast changing and the new minds are going to bring new
and innovative ideas that can turn into new products for
our customers. Collaboration with makers will also provide
opportunities in new categories.
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The Group has also invested in software development and
enlarging its in-house software team. It also partners with
Neural Network companies to develop training models
Intellectual Properties (“IP”), which can be integrated to
make its future products more intelligent.

Oregon Scientific (“OS”)

Investment will be made to revitalise current OS products
that can allow it to tap into new user segments. Products
have been regrouped into Connected Home, Smart
Learning, Digital Health and Wellness and Electro-Mobility.
The Group will also boost sell-thru capacity by expanding
geographical presence with the help of its retail partners
and enlist the support of specialty resellers for higher price
performance products. Experienced Product Marketing,
Digital and Social Marketing teams have also been set up
to brace new product launches, provide better e-commerce
experience and enhance customer engagement.

The Group will also review and restructure its business
relationship with channel partners to better align with their
Go-To-Market strategy so as to maximise profitability. Omni-
channel partnership is also a key initiative for the Group
and its selected retailers to drive sales of OS brands both
through offline retail presence as well as via their portals
and websites. To make the best of e-commerce platforms
for sales, centralised team will be formed to liaison directly
with major e-commerce partners like Amazon.

Time and Weather, the Group’s Flagship product series will
be aligned with Connected Home. It will incorporates next
generation sensors, functions, and interface that will work
seamlessly in the IoT era providing a comprehensive range
of weather and environment information.
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FEREE

As for the Digital Health and Wellness category, we plan
to collaborate with Circadian Science experts to develop
a sub-category of health and wellness products in Sleep
Science, which will be added to our DreamScience series.
Fast growth is anticipated for the new products. The
Digital Health and Wellness teams are also working on next
generation product platforms for multiple biometric signal
detection and heart rate viability analysis, which will together
be grouped into a healthcare product series for elderly care
and wellness management.

The Electro-mobility team is ready to launch a series of high
performance motorised skateboards of leading edge design
and employs advanced loT technologies. A series of crowd
funding campaign will be launched to promote it in the first
half year.

2017 will also see the Smart Learning category refreshing
its product offerings. Rich Augmented Reality (AR) contents,
features and functions will be incorporated into these
products.

Value Manufacturing Services

Customer Acquisition will be the key focus in VMS. At the
end of 2016, Senior Regional OS resources were merged to
form one IDT sales team to focus on maximising business
opportunities. The Group will continue to strengthen and
innovate together with VMS customers, pushing to do more
with less, that customers may have more resources for
making new investments. Furthermore, new technologies
are availed to existing and new customers who wish to
jointly develop and test next generation products together
with the Group.

In the digital wearable segment, as the demand for simple
Pedometer and Heart Rate measuring devices has peaked,
investments are made in next generation technologies in the
digital health and wellness field that can recognize the next
wave of growth for wearable.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | wish to express my
gratitude to all shareholders and business associates for the
continuous support. Our deep appreciation also goes to the
management team and staff members for their hard work
and dedication in the past financial period.

Foo Piau Phang
Chairman

March 15, 2017
Hong Kong
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Review
The Group’s total turnover for the year ended December
31, 2016 amounted to HK$565.0 million (nine-month ended
December 31, 2015 (“FY2015"): HK$536.6 million), which
was primarily due to the difficult retail market conditions in
America and Europe.

Gross profit totalled HK$99.0 million (FY2015: HK$107.8
million). Gross profit margin decreased to 17.5% from
20.1% in the nine-month ended December 31, 2015, mainly
due to change in product portfolio and sales channel.

The Group continued to execute stringent cost controls
and streamline organisational structure and operational
procedures. Total operating expenses of the Group,
including research and development costs, distribution and
selling expenses, and general administrative expenses,
amounted to HK$179.0 million (FY2015: HK$203.5 million).

Other gains and losses during the year were recorded
as gains of HK$6.0 million, mainly from the disposal of
property, plant and equipment, while losses for the nine-
month ended December 31, 2015 amounted to HK$6.0
million.

Year ended December 31, 2016
BE-2-AFE+=A=t+—RILER

M Europe
M Americas

BUM
ESI

M Asia Pacific 25 K&

EEENWR DT

B 7% B B8
BHE-_ZT—XRXF+_A=+—HBHIEEE K
EESRSREEEBAEES5.088 T (EHE
TR+ A=+ HLEABAAUTZ=Z
—RFEFE]|): B¥L3606EBEITL)  ETE
EHRBERENTEMBREMN -

ENEEABEIOEET(ZE—RHERF
E: B1078EEL)  BARERMAE M
HERBEENYEENEXHEE_T—HA
FH+ZA=+T—HLEAEAN20.1% T EE
17.5% o

AEBEEEHERKAOKAES - BrEAL
REMBLRF AEERLERIBEE
1790 BB T(—E—HEFE : B¥203.5
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AEEMHEMAFSREESFSREEY6.08
Br XEXELEVE BEREZE M
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Nine-month Period ended December 31, 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEFNWE TN

Tax expenses of HK$2.0 million was recorded due to the
reversal of deferred tax assets for the year (FY2015: HK$0.1
million).

Loss for the year ended December 31, 2016 was HK$64.0
million (FY2015: loss of HK$86.2 million).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Oregon Scientific (“OS”)

For the business, the corporate strategy of continuing to
phase out low margin customers and products, and re-
shape underperforming business units and streamline
operating expense applied. As a result, sales revenue of
the business for the period increased by 9.3% to HK$209.6
million against the nine-month ended December 31,
2015, and accounted for 37.1% of the Group’s total sales
revenues.

The Time & Weather (“T&W”) category continued to be the
key contributor of sales revenue and margin to OS, making
up 63.1% of OS sales. “Proji” Projection clock, the “Pro”
weather station, the premier and standard weather station
were still the major products during the year.

Smart Learning Products (“SLP”) continued to be a
main category, accounting for 19.2% of OS sales. The
“SmartGlobes” collections were still the key revenue and
margin contributors for this product category.

Other categories, such as Wellness and Beauty (“W&B”)
and Sport, Fitness and Health (“SFH”), were more geared
towards Asia Pacific sales and contributed 14.4% of the
total sales to the region.
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The distribution strategy pinpointing OS yielded positive
results, which were reflected in the revenue growth recorded
in Spain, the UK, and Japan.

In the foreseeable future, apart from operating in line with
corporate strategy, the OS division will groom higher margin
channel partners, develop e-commerce, and strive to reduce
fixed costs. Continuous development of innovative products
is and will remain the key to the Company’s success in the
future.

Value Manufacturing Services (“VMS”)

Sales revenue from VMS for the year ended December 31,
2016 totalled HK$355.4 million, accounting for 62.9% of
the Group’s total revenue (FY2015: HK$344.9 million). Due
to the weak global economy, the number of OEM and ODM
customers dropped across all product categories. Lower
sales revenue in Q4 with customers delaying shipment and
operational costs not recovered, the profit margin of the
business was eroded.

By product category, SFH remained the major revenue
contributor, accounting for 68.6% of the segmental revenue,
bringing in HK$243.7 million in sales revenue. T&W and
Telecommunication products accounted for 24.5% of the
segmental total, and other products 6.9% of the total.

The business will continue to focus on SFH products such
as GPS watches, smart-bands, activity monitors, blood
glucose meters and fitness consoles, the majority of which
are loT-enabled, meaning they can be connected to smart
devices with Apps.

The Americas was the largest market accounting for 50.9%
of the total revenue of VMS, and that of Europe was down
t0 26.6% and Asia Pacific rose to 22.5%.
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WORKING CAPITAL

The inventory balance at December 31, 2016 was HK$102.2
million, decreased by 27.2 % compared to the HK$140.4
million at December 31, 2015. The inventory turnover days
decreased to 80 days (For the nine-month ended December
31, 2015: 90 days).

Trade debtor balances at December 31, 2016 was
HK$106.6 million, increased by 6.7 % compared to the
HK$99.9 million shown at December 31, 2015. Trade
debtor’s turnover days increased to 69 days (For the nine-
month ended December 31, 2015: 51 days).

LIQUIDITY AND TREASURY MANAGEMENT

At December 31, 2016, bank balances and cash of the
Group, including short term bank deposits, were HK$80.7
million (December 31, 2015: HK$169.4 million).

During the year, the Group generated its funds mainly from
operating activities. The net cash position (bank balances
and cash) at December 31, 2016 amounted to HK$80.7
million (December 31, 2015: HK$169.4 million). The Group
maintained sufficient financial resources to meet all working
capital requirements and finances of its commitments.

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency stems mainly
from the net cash flow and net working capital translation
achieved in its overseas subsidiaries. Hedging of foreign
currency exposures is arranged through a combination of
natural hedges and forward forex contracts. At December
31, 2016, there were no forward contracts in place to
hedge against possible exchange movements of future net
cash flows. Speculative currency transactions are strictly
prohibited. Management of currency risk is the responsibility
of the Group’s headquarters in Hong Kong.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

At December 31, 2016, there were no finance charges on
the Group’s assets.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment for
the year ended December 31, 2016 amounted to HK$7.5
million (For the nine-month ended December 31, 2015:
HK$8.9 million) which was all used for business operations
and product development. Source of funds were financed
by internal resources and borrowings.

There were no material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries and associated companies in the course of the
year ended December 31, 2016.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended December 31, 2016.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At December 31, 2016, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities (December 31, 2015: Nil).

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at December 31, 2016, the Group had 1,003 employees.
The Group fully recognizes the importance of its employees
who contribute significantly to its success and continues to
maintain and upgrade the capabilities of its workforce by
providing them with adequate and regular training.

The Group’s remuneration policy is to provide compensation
packages at market rates which reward individual’s
performance and attract, retain and motivate high quality
employees. The compensation packages offered by the
Group are comparable with other organizations of similar
size and business nature and are reviewed annually. The
components of employee’s remuneration package consist
of base salary, double pay, fringe benefits including pension
scheme, medical insurance, life and personal accident
insurance, employee compensation and business travel
insurance as well as incentives like discretionary cash
bonus.
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Details of retirement benefits schemes operated by the
Group are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements on page 185. In Xixiang, Shenzhen, China where
the Xixiang facilities are located, staff welfare rates are
set with reference to the prevailing labour laws in China.
Accommodation and leisure facilities are also provided to
local staff at Xixiang facilities.

The Group’s remuneration philosophy for senior executives
is based upon creating a strong link between performance
and reward in accordance with the following principles:

1. Fixed salaries and benefits are set at median-market
level against comparator groups of companies selected
on the basis of similar size and business nature and
benchmarked with the prevailing market conditions;
and

2. Performance-related bonus is linked to the achievement
of pre-defined performance targets including
financial targets, performance index and pre-agreed
management objectives.
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The emolument of the directors is recommended by the
remuneration committee with reference to companies of
comparable business type or scale, and the nature and
quantity of work at both Board and Board Committee levels
(including frequency of meetings and nature of agenda
items) in order to compensate directors reasonably for
their time and efforts spent. The directors’ emolument is
approved by the Board pursuant to the mandate granted by
the shareholders at annual general meetings. Remuneration
are paid to a director for appointment as a member of a
particular committee. Non-executive directors receive no
base pay, benefits, bonus or pension except reimbursement
for expenses incurred in connection with their directorship
of the Company. No individual director is allowed to
participate in the procedures for deciding his/her individual
remuneration package. Full details of the remuneration of
and fees paid to the directors for the year ended December
31, 2016 are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements from page 152 to page 155. All directors are
entitled to participate in the share option schemes of the
Company (if any). Details of the schemes and the number of
options granted to directors of the Company are set out in
note 24 to the consolidated financial statements from page
171 to page 175.
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SCOPE

The reporting period for this Environmental, Social
and Governance report is from January 1, 2016 to
December 31, 2016. This report covers the operations
of the Group’s overseas Hong Kong office and
Shenzhen factory for design, production and sales
of electronic consumer products. The contents of
this report are prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
and the publication frequency is once a year.

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group communicates with the stakeholders from
time to time to listen to their opinions and needs. To
enhance the effectiveness of communication with
customers, monthly meetings are set up with the
customer service representatives in each country to
improve customer service standards. Since September,
the Group has set up a central customer service hotline
in Hong Kong and added the role of customer service
manager to enhance customer service performance,
including hold customer service manager responsible
for centralising refunds to enhance the transparency
of the refund process. In the same month, The Group
has set up a customer service centre to establish face
to face customer service. All of the Group’s locations
have put in use Red-Mine, a central email system, to
improve email communication and follow-up efficiency;
moreover, customer service email system is planned
with automatic reply function for service enhancement
while this technology is currently under study. The
overall performance of the Group will also be reported
annually to investors in the company’s Annual Report.
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE 3. BE -HENERRE

PERFORMANCE
3.1 Environment 3.1 ®iE
3.1.1Emissions 3.1 Y

The Group is actively responding to the global
trend of emission reduction and is committed
to minimising release of greenhouse gases,
wastewater, solid wastes and other pollutants
in its daily operations. Therefore, a series of
environmental policies have been developed to
strengthen the control of emissions, including:

Waste reduction

Most of the electronic wastes generated in
the manufacturing process, including the
scrapped circuit boards, scrapped parts and
malfunctioned components, are returned or
handled directly by recycling companies. At
the same time, the Group continues to seek
and improve the manufacturing process and
technology in order to increase productivity
and reduce scrapped electronic products
and parts during the production process.

For reduction of the waste generated,
factory operation increases the application
of re-use boxes to avoid wastes generated
from logistics tools made of materials easily
damaged such as paper, plastic.

The Group categorizes different kinds of
wastes for proper disposal, identifies recyclable
wastes, and establishes classified bins.
The Group also arranged waste classification
trainings to encourage employees to actively
participate in waste recycling.
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Electronic products involve application of
batteries and the Group understands the
far-reaching impact of batteries on the
environment, therefore has designated
disposed battery collection locations for
promoting the appropriate handling and
recycling of disposed batteries.

In addition to disposed batteries, the Group
also focuses on carton wastes. Therefore,
recycling bins have been set up to collect waste
papers and arrange recycling companies to
handle.

The Group regularly evaluates the production
process to find out the sources of hazardous
wastes, and defines action plans to reduce
these wastes. The Group also put labels to
differentiate hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes to facilitate hazardous wastes being
handled properly by the qualified service
providers.

Currently, the hazardous wastes produced
by the Group include disposed batteries,
sewage sludge, oil rags and contaminated
gloves; whereas non-hazardous wastes
mainly include disposed capsules and
carton wastes.

The Group has demonstrated the following
results in the reporting period through the
implementation of the aforesaid policies and
measures for waste reduction:
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Intensity per
production unit

Average Monthly (gram/piece)
Weight (tons) BEEBENN

Types of Wastes BEYER SHA¥HE (M) HHRBRE(E#)
Hazardous waste BEEEEY 0.68 0.33
*Non-hazardous waste *EZEREEY) 1.70 0.84

* Note: data collected since May
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Reduction of wastewater discharge

The Group’s factory in Shenzhen discharges
both industrial and domestic wastewater.
The factory has installed sewage treatment
facilities to reduce the pollutants in the
wastewater, and has additional facility for
re-use of the treated wastewater. This
approach not only reduces wastewater
discharge but also helps the Group to use
less fresh water.

Reduction of greenhouse gas (GHG)
emission

The Group seeks to adopt renewable or
other clean energy in replacement of coal
combustion facilities in order to reduce the
generation and emission of sulphur and
nitrogen oxides. In addition, the Group
actively implements other administrative
means to reduce GHG emissions, including:

- Reduction of business trips

The Group has a thorough understanding
that business trips increase energy
consumption and lead to an increase in
GHG emissions; therefore, the Group
actively decreases the number of business
trips to reduce GHG emissions, and
switches to other effective communication
methods, including avoidance of long-
distance personal meetings, replacement
with telephone and/or video conferences,
as well as adoption of bundled courier to
reduce GHG emissions from additional
traffics caused by separate own delivery.
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Sourcing from local suppliers
Sourcing with non-local suppliers
requires additional transportation;
the situation is similar to business
trips which increases energy
consumption and GHG emissions.
As long as the Group’s requirements
are fulfilled, preferences are given to
local suppliers. In each procurement
process, the Group will firstly consider
and invite local suppliers to make
quotations and provide product
information, then leverage the factors
such as raw material quality, cost and
environmental protection. Non-local
procurement will be considered only
when the local suppliers fail to meet
the relevant conditions.

Environmental education for
stakeholders

The Group understands the long-term
impact of the electronics industry on
the environment, therefore plays an active
role in the supply chain to promote the
importance of emission reduction and
establishes environmental management
measures for suppliers to follow,
including: for all vehicles that enter
the Group’s premises, they must be
kept idle, the engines are not allowed
to be running and emitting exhaust
within the factory’s premises; the
exhaust emissions need to comply with
the environmental requirements; all
persons within the factory’s premises
shall abide by the requirements such
as waste classification, no littering
and no smoking. In addition, the
Group requires chemical suppliers and
transporters to ensure that chemicals
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are protected against leakage before
arrival and the packaging, containers
and labels of chemicals must comply
with the relevant regulatory requirements;
and the supply of materials, semi-finished
products and finished products shall not
contain any intentional or unintentional
addition of flammable and explosive
substances.

The Group also incorporates the concept
of environmental protection into employee’s
annual training program to enhance their
environmental awareness.Environmental
training topics include RoHS, ISO14001
environmental awareness, waste
classification, chemical safety and so on.
For key positions such as manufacturing
and cleaning, trainings are provided
to new employees of each month to
ensure that they can classify and identify
hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
as well as arrange the qualified recycling
companies for handling.

During the reporting period, the Group
did not have any violation of environmental
legislations. The sources and emission
volumes of GHG are as follows:
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wE

GHG Emission

Volumes

Total (kg carbon

consumption dioxide equivalent)

volumes BEREHNE

GHG Emission Sources BERENHEMR BxE (BF —ELREER)
Diesel fuel consumption from mobile sources (litres) FERALEEE (AT 320 854
Gasoline consumption from mobile sources (itres)  FEEA)THEE (A7) 32,986 74,989
Natural gas consumption (cubic meters) RAEHEE (IHK) 98,643 172,986
Refrigerant (R134a) consumption (kg) H2H(R1348) #2 (AF) 54.4 70,720
Power consumption of manufacturing facilities (kWh) 2R EEE2 (TRE) 5,891,177 4,618,094
Total GHG emissions BERENSENAS 4,937,643
Production volume (piece) EEE () 2,013,091
GHG Emission Intensity BERBINEE 2.45

3.1.2Use of Resources
The Group understands that the resources
on the planet are limited, therefore appropriate
measures are implemented to enhance the
efficiency of resources used, including:

Energy saving

In order to reduce energy consumption, the
Group uses energy-efficient products and
equipment as much as possible, and actively
plans to replace equipment with high energy
consumption, such as gradually replacing the
factory’s traditional electric lights with LED
lights, which can save up to about 400 kWh
per day. The air conditioning system uses
a central control to effectively manage the
temperature of each department and automatic
shutdown is scheduled at a specified time to
reduce additional energy consumption caused
by uncontrolled temperature adjustments.
In addition, employee’s code of conduct for
energy saving was established and requires

(kg carbon dioxide
equivalent/piece)
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employees to turn off electrical devices in office
and production when off work, in order to
ensure all machinery are shut down when out
of working hours. It aims to develop employee
a habit of shutting down machinery when
leaving workplace.

Water conservation

In addition to re-use of the treated wastewater,
the Group has adopted multiple administrative
measures to enhance water consumption
efficiency. In the daily operation, wastewater
is collected and used for non-production
purposes, such as toilet flushing or floor
cleaning. Water equipment in the production
workshops and offices are inspected and
repaired timely for any leakage to avoid water
wastage. Also, water conservation slogans
are posted on bulletin boards to enhance
employees’ awareness of water conservation,
and remind employees and visitors of water
saving. During meetings, bottled water is
replaced by reusable water containers to
change the unfavourable employees’ habit of
using bottled water at meetings.

The Group’s production site in Shenzhen has
demonstrated the following achievements in
the reporting period through the implementation
of the aforesaid policies and measures for
water conservation:

RIS - HERERRE

AR TS - B E
RERBIIAERH] 6T
8

BRI K

brTRIRERCEER KR
K EBNMRBZENITHRTF
BLARRA R K@ - EHES
EReWsEEEK AE—K
JEEERNAE - AR REISORE
HRE - HEEESEBLBER
ERAKEE  ETTRET R
B R B RIR AR - B Lk
HRRBEKER LN EE
ERRBLET A AKIZSE - 1o’
ETHAORAKNER  RES
TRBEEHLRAK - EEME
AR DATTEE A MY AR KB M ER
RIAEK HEET /\%H-r
FRREKNZEEE

BBEE A LRI MK -
SERY £ EEEREH]
B B ERAG LA R -

35



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED & BB A R A 7

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR - HERERBE

Sources/types of water used

Volume of water saved

RE FKEE HEAKE
Re-use of treated production wastewater 20 cubic meters per month
TRIR{E FRBR TR 18 0 A EE R K 203 /KA

Wastewater used for flushing toilets and cleaning floors

&% 52 K PR B o A S AR AR

Inspection and maintenance of water equipment

TE B S e KR

Bottled water replaced by reusable water container in meeting

A] 28 A A9 XK 2 M AR R 2 7K

Saving of office resources

Electronic documentation is promoted in the
daily operation; hardcopies are replaced by
electronic files in computer and whenever
possible paperless office operation is
implemented to reduce the use of paper
consumables. The Group set targets on
amounts of paper to be used as well as
expectations to all departments on paper
saving. Employees are required to print on
both sides of the paper. When copying or
printing files, paper with only one side used
should be collected for re-use for saving of
new papers. Average weights of cartons and
plasticised papers being reused are 1.75
tons per month. During the reporting period,
the office paper consumption reached the
annual expectation of meeting 2% target.

During the reporting period, the main

resources consumed by the Group during
operation are summarized as follows:
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Annual consumption (tons)  Intensity per production unit

2EHE (W) BEEEUNEREE
Resources Hong Kong Shenzhen ~ Hong Kong Shenzhen
-9 B w3 B Pl
Electricity (KWh) EN(TRE) 408,620 6,695,214 0.203 3.326
Water (cubic meters) KOIF)) 175 173,209 - 0.086
Packaging materials (paper) (piece) BEWE (441) (L EE) NATER 19,822,232  NATHER 9.847
Packaging materials (plastic) (piece) BE#E (B#) (LB E) N/ATER 6,227,471 N/ATER 3.093

3.1.3The Environment and Natural Resources
The Group understands the environmental
concerns from both community and customers,
and promote policy on green manufacturing
and green procurement policy:

Green procurement policy

When compliance with the Group’s operating
and pricing requirements, preference is given
to suppliers who are competent to provide
environmentally friendly products and/or
services, including environmentally certified
materials or services (such as RoHS and
REACH compliant materials), use of products
made of natural materials, products free
of toxic and hazardous substances, and
other products/devices compliant with the
relevant environmental regulations. The
Group is actively promoting the proportion
of environmental suppliers (the proportion of
suppliers providing environmentally friendly
materials to the total suppliers), with the goal
that the materials provided by suppliers are
100% RoHS compliant.

Green manufacturing policy

Since the Group’s business is the manufacturing
of electronic products, the main environmental
impacts are electronic waste generation and
resource consumption during the production
process. Therefore, the green manufacturing
policy is implemented along with the green
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procurement policy to provide customers with
environmental compliant products, including
compliance with the local environmental laws
in the importing countries, such as RoHS,
REACH.

The Group is committed to the use of energy-
efficient and water-efficient equipment in the
manufacturing process. Resource recycling
process is established to collect the reusable
packaging materials for proper handling,
in order to reduce waste generation and
wastage of various production resources.
A sewage treatment plant was set up to
process wastewater for compliance with
the environmental standards, and then the
treated wastewater is recycled to be used
for production or other purposes. This not
only reduces wastewater discharge but also
decreases the total water consumption.

The Group has defined day-to-day management
measures to reduce and control the emissions
of hazardous wastes. Annual environmental
trainings are provided to employees to enhance
their environmental awareness and to implement
environmental management measures. The
number of employees involved in these trainings
has reached more than 90% of the total number
of employees in the Group.

In addition, the Group regularly monitors
the significant environmental impacts to
ensure compliance with local regulations
of where the Group’s businesses locate.
Regular environmental audits are conducted
to identify nonconformities timely, and
implement the appropriate corrective and
preventive actions.
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3.2 Social 3.2 =
3.2.1Employment 32.11EE

In addition to complying with local employment
regulations, the Group has also formulated
a series of employment policies to ensure
that employees are treated in a fair and
reasonable manner.

Recruitment and promotion

The Group recruits employees through the
company’s website, email, advertisements,
etc., and gives equal opportunity to every
job applicant. The Group shall not reject
any applicant because of gender, age, race,
and other physical conditions. Employment
decisions are solely based on fulfilment of the
job requirements, and shall not discriminate
against physically disabled applicants.
Besides local applicants, applicants of
other ethnicities and nationalities are also
considered at the time of recruitment,
including ethnic minorities and expatriates.

Regarding the mechanism for employee’s
promotion, the Group only refers to the employee’s
performance, experience and competence, and
does not consider other irrelevant attributes such
as marital status, physical condition and gender,
etc.

Wages and Benefits

The Group signs a contract of employment
with its employees in accordance with local
laws to ensure employees’ legal rights in
the employment relationship, including
the payment of legal minimum wage, and
employees’ entitlement to paid holidays,
vacation, sick leave and leave for work-
related injury. In addition to the purchase of
social insurance for employees according
to local employment regulations, the Group
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also purchases commercial insurance B EEefAHNETITNER
beyond the local regulations in order to BLTHEAIBEEE o

reduce employee’s cost of seeking for

medical services. In case of work-related

injuries and accidents, the Group will

arrange reasonable compensation for its

employees and their families in accordance

with laws.

During the reporting period, the Group EREEANRN - EEREHRENR
did not discover or receive any violations WE A BRI AR S IB B E R
or complaints regarding discrimination or EHIRFERE -

recruitment.

As of 31 December, 2016, the total number BT+ A=+—
and distribution of employees within the B SERNMETRHE DB
Group are as follows: Wt

Number of Employees

BT A

Overseas Hong Kong Shenzhen
Gender % 51 ST b 3l
Male B 14 41 290
Female Z % 22 30 606

Overseas Hong Kong Shenzhen
Job type THERR SN 58 EI
Full-time T 33 69 896
Part-time I 3 2 -

Overseas Hong Kong Shenzhen
Age BIFR iSEIN BE w=I
18-30 18-30 6 8 236
31-45 31-45 16 37 569
46-60 46-60 14 26 90
> 60 > 60 - - 1
Total ey 36 71 896
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Average Monthly
Employee Turnover Rate (%)

BRAFHIERERKE (%)

RIS - HERERRE

Overseas Hong Kong Shenzhen
Gender ST MH SEIN a8 I
Male B 2.4 6.3 6.3
Female pegis 3.3 9.4 6.3

Overseas Hong Kong Shenzhen
Age ETHik = &8 #IN
18-30 18-30 1.0 14.0 10.3
31-45 31-45 5.1 7.3 4.8
46-60 46-60 1.6 5.2 5.4
> 60 > 60 0.6 - -
Total average # =R 2.8 7.7 6.3

3.2.2Health and Safety

The Group is committed to achieving the
goal of zero work accidents through different
measures to prevent the occurrence of
occupational diseases and work-related
injuries and fatalities.

Workplace Safety Management

The Group conducts annual safety monitoring
to identify potential safety hazards, and
implement corrective and preventive actions
in atimely manner. The Group installed
protective devices for the production
equipment and machinery in the workplace
to ensure that employees are not exposed
to dangerous parts. The compliance of
the workplace is monitored, including the
provision of adequate fire equipment and
regular safety inspection. In addition, suppliers
are requested to follow safety practice within
the Group’s premises. All vehicles within the
premises must be limited to the speed of 10
km/hour with no honking is allowed. Their
driving routes shall follow the instructions from
the security team.
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Employee Safety Training

The Group provides personal protective
equipment to employees where necessary,
and arranges appropriate occupational
health and safety trainings, including the
proper usage of protective equipment,
awareness of safety risks in the work place,
content in the material safety data sheet
(MSDS) and the use, storage and emergency
response to leakage of chemicals. The
Group also arranges fire and emergency
drills regularly to train employees on the
evacuation routes at dangerous situations.

Work and Life Balance

The Group shall not force employees to
work overtime, and regularly organizes
recreational activities, psychological
counselling and trainings to help employees
relax from the working pressure, including
psychological health seminars, family days,
tug-of-wars, Kara-OK, and explores various
sport activities amongst employees, such
as the establishment of sport teams like
basketball teams, football teams, table
tennis teams. The Group also arranges book
clubs in which books are recommended and
insights are shared by participants.

In addition, the Group is very concerned
about how employees view the company,
therefore employee communication
channels and suggestion boxes have
been set up. The suggestions collected
from the employees are followed up on a
regular basis. Employee representatives
are selected from each department with
the Group and they shall meet regularly for
discussion and sharing.
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During the reporting period, the Group did
not discover any violations against the local
occupational health and safety regulations.
Within the reporting period, no work-related
fatality and lost day due to work-related
injury was found.

3.2.3Development and Training

The Group established a comprehensive
training system. Apart from the general
classroom trainings, the Group emphasises
on-the-job exercises and a mentor is
assigned to every new employee. Through
this apprenticeship programme, the mentor
gives the hands-on guidance and supervises
the new employee in accomplishing his/
her work, this approaches enhances the
training efficiency and the new employee’s
performance. Adjustments could be made
to the apprenticeship program according
to the new employee’s competence and
experience. At the same time, based on the
Group’s strategies for product and business
development, career development plan is
formulated for employees to support the
sustainable development of the Group’s
business.

During the reporting period, the monthly
average proportions of employees who have
received training within the Group and the
monthly average number of trained hours
received by each employee are as follows:
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Monthly Average Proportion of ~ Monthly Average Number of

trained employees (%)
BEZEINESN
BREHEHLE (%)

Trained Hours per employee
FEEEN
FRTGENGE (D)

Hong Kong Shenzhen Hong Kong Shenzhen
Gender f£3) Eh I Bt Y
Male B 10.1 40.4 0.5 0.7
Female it 7.0 413 04 07

Hong Kong Shenzhen Hong Kong Shenzhen
Employee level EEHA B ] ) A
Senior management BRERE 14.3 25.4 0.8 0.6
Middle management HREEE 12.2 26.1 0.7 05
Junior employee NHET - 39.8 - 0.6

3.2.4abour Standards

The Group strictly prohibits the employment
of child labour and will only employ employees
aged 18 or above. The Group follows the
principle of voluntary overtime to ensure that
employees are willing to work and employee’s
personal freedom is protected. The Group is
committed not to force employees to work
overtime nor to work in any form of forced
labour, including not using any bonded
labours such as prison workers.

For effective prevention of child labour, the
applicant’s identity document shall be carefully
examined at the time of recruitment to confirm
the age of the applicant, and the application
from an applicant less than 18 years of age shall
be excluded. In addition, the Group’s personnel
management system set up an alert function
to signal any applicant under the age of 18.
With this double gate-keeping mechanism, the
risk of misusing child labour could be avoided.
Under the daily management, child labour will
be terminated immediately when he/she is
discovered within the Group.
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The Group has also set up measures to prevent
forced labour. Employees are required to
submit working hours to their immediate
supervisors. HR shall review employees’
working hours, investigate immediately and
stop the relevant work assignment in case
of involuntarily overtime identified.

During the reporting period, the Group did not
discover any employment of child labour
nor any violation against the laws and
regulations related to forced labour.

3.2.5Supply Chain Management

The Group has developed supplier management
policy for communication to the suppliers the
expectations of the Group and the requirements
that they need to abide by. The policy covers
quality, environmental management, health
and safety, social responsibility, and anti-
terrorism management, etc. and these aspects
are also the criteria for supplier selection. The
Group has established a supplier selection and
evaluation procedure, which conducted an
initial review of new suppliers and an annual
evaluation of key suppliers in the form of on-
site audits or questionnaires. The contents of
the evaluation include product quality, delivery
time, environment, use of environmental friendly
materials, and management of hazardous
substances. After the evaluation, results shall
be recorded as the monitoring evidence for the
subsequent long-term partnership.

Based on the aforesaid evaluation scope,
procurement preference will be given to local
suppliers over their non-local counterparts
who demonstrated the same performance
level from evaluation. Non-local suppliers
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shall be considered only when no qualified
local supplier available, currently local
suppliers account for about 95%. As of
31 December 2016, the geographical
distribution of the Group’s suppliers is as
follows:

TE-XRFEt+-_A=+—8"
EEHERNMIEBESHET ¢

Number of suppliers

Geographical locations ¥ &1 HEBE 2
China a2l 200
Hong Kong B 106
USA e 6
Taiwan =NE 1
Korea A5 1
Japan =N 1
UK e 1
Other Hh 1

3.2.6Product Responsibility

All products of the Group are subject to
strict quality inspection/testing before
shipping out of the factory, including the
sampling and monitoring of hazardous
substances in incoming materials such as
2011/65/EU the management procedure
for the Restriction of the Use of Hazardous
Substances in Electrical and Electronic
Products, in-process quality control, and
safety verification of the final products.

For product promotion and selling, the Group
shall ensure the product information provided
to the customer is true and accurate to avoid
any misleading at the time of purchase.
The Group also has designated customer
service personnel responsible for responding
customer inquiries and initiating product
recall when necessary.

The Group has formulated a complaint handling
mechanism to analyse with Quality Department
on the complaint received from customer, and
shall report the results of analysis and follow-
up actions to the customer within the specified
time frame.
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During the reporting period, the Group did
not discover any customer complaint or
violation against regulations related to product
responsibility; and no item among all products
sold was recalled due to product safety and
health reasons.

Quality Assurance Process

The Group starts the quality control of products
at the source. Material from supplier is verified
for the quality acceptable before production,
alternatively the supplier is requested to
provide an acceptable verification report for
raw materials. At the manufacturing process,
production lines are inspected and semi-
finished products are sampled for verification
to assure the process meets the specified
technical requirements. Final verification shall be
executed by Quality Department at the end of
production; only finished products which pass
the verification could be delivered and sold.

Upon identification of abnormal products
through either external or internal findings,
the Group shall discuss amongst the relevant
departments about the need for identification,
segregation and recall of the abnormal products
when necessary. Whenever product recall is
necessary, the Group shall collect the relevant
batches of products from the customer, and
implement the procedure of nonconforming
products for analysis and disposal.

Product Recall/Return Procedure

The Group has established product recall/
return channel that allow customers to report
the product defects through phone or email.
Internal staff in the Group shall then evaluate
the decision on product return upon receipt of
customer’s report. Whenever product return is
deemed necessary, the Marketing Department
shall inform the customer to return the
relevant product. Warehouse shall record and
track the returned products, and notify the
Quality Department to conduct cause analysis
in order to identify the solutions and the
subsequent preventive measures.
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Intellectual Property Protection

All products sold by the Group are newly
designed by own brand. For assurance of
own brand’s intellectual property, product
design is sampled and checked regularly for
the ownership of the brand. Products will
be arranged to put off the shelf immediately
upon any infringement of property right is
found.

The Group shall only adopt the product output
from its own design centre, and the design
centre shall not plagiarize the design of other
institutions. In the employment contracts for
employees in design centre, plagiarism is
not allowed and they committed that all their
designs belong to company’s assets and they
shall be held responsible for the confidentiality
of their own design products.

Up to now the Group has 7 product patents
registered in the United States. These
product types include the sports-related
measuring instruments. For management of
information security, the Group established
KMS system through which information
of the Group’s own design and product
specifications from customer is encrypted
to prevent data leakage.

The Group promises not to purchase any
pirated office software, and such software
shall only be purchased from suppliers who
have the appropriate copyright; In addition,
the IT Department shall conduct internal
audits to monitor any download of pirated
software by employees. When employees
discovered using pirated software, he/she
shall be instructed to delete the pirated
software immediately and be issued a
warning letter for prevention of recurrence.
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Privacy Protection of Consumer Information
The Group has developed a policy for
protection of consumer information and
privacy. Consumer information will not be
used for publicity or promotion without
consumer’s permission. At the operation
stage where consumer information is
processed by the Group’s subcontractor,
the Group shall enter into a confidentiality
agreement with the subcontractor and
request the subcontractor to have a robust
information security management system for
preventing leakage and theft of customer
information.

3.2.7 Anti-Corruption

The Group has established corporate
governance policies in accordance with the
Code of Corporate Governance from the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. Also, the Group has
formulated a policy of anti-corruption and
prohibited company directors, managers,
employees and other representatives from
giving or accepting bribes.

Internal Audit of Corporate Governance

The Group has established an Audit Committee
which is responsible to develop internal audit
control procedures and annual audit plans for
the Group. This Committe conducts audits
in an ongoing and systematic manner in
accordance with the annual audit plan and
the additional task announcement from the
top management. Audit report is regularly
communicated with the management and
disclosed to the Audit Committee. Corrective
actions and subsequent follow-ups shall be
implemented in accordance with the time
frame specified in the audit report.

Moreover, the Group hired an independent
third party to conduct audit on the Group’s
financial accounts. It aims to assure the
company’s accounts are clear and accurate
for enhancement of internal financial control
and supervision so that the interests of
shareholders are protected.
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Anti-Corruption Awareness Training

The Group announces its internal code of
integrity at least once a year with an emphasis
on the awareness of corporate integrity; this
includes the principle that the Group never
owes compensation, benefits and bonuses
to its employees and never owes payments
to its suppliers. Also, additional effort is
paid to strengthen the awareness of anti-
corruption to key departments and positions.
The Group communicates anti-corruption
and integrity through hotline, website and
posters, and establishes investigation channel
for employees to report suspected fraud or
corruption and other illegal incidents such as
extortion and money laundering.

Whistle-blowing Procedure

The Group has a whistle-blowing mechanism
and communication channel for employees,
customers and suppliers to freely report
on fraud, corruption and other illegal
incidents. The reporting person is allowed
to send a written message to the mailbox
of Internal Audit Department in confidential
and anonymous manner. Upon receipt, the
Internal Audit Department shall conduct
investigation with other relevant departments
such as human resources, legal, logistics and
business development, and then return the
investigation results to the reporting person.

Anti-Corruption Measures

In addition, the Group has established anti-
corruption measures for various aspects,
including the declaration of personal
interests by new employee when report
duty; also, directors are required to declare
according to the law their own interests
including those in the competition business;
regarding procurement, evaluation from at
least three suppliers is required to obtain fair
and reliable quotes for making procurement
decision; for approval of service contracts,
different levels of personnel are authorized
corresponding to different levels of contract
amount in order to ensure adequate review.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

During the reporting period, the Group did
not discover any legal cases or complaints
related to corruption.

3.2.8Community Investment

Each year the Group has actively liaison
with community groups of similar concept
in corporate responsibility to seek for
suggestions, and defines the number of
cooperation plans with community groups
as the performance indicator in this aspect.
Reasons will be explored for the cooperation
plans that could not be concluded in the
year. The Group has designated department
responsible for collecting suggestions from
community groups and responding within
the prescribed time frame. The suggestions
collected will be reviewed for translating
into performance indicators for future
evaluations. The performance of the channel
for collecting these suggestions will be
assessed, improved, and reported to the
community and relevant stakeholders as
needed on annual basis.

The Group has been involved in a variety of
community activities, support for environmental
protection and education. These include
cleaning of roads and marine wastes, education
support of poor and left-behind children, and
fundraising to support education of children
inrural areas. In 2016, in responds to the
government’s request, the Group’s factory in
Shenzhen established an IDT volunteer team to
provide U-site service and actively participate in
various volunteer activities.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

FOO PIAU PHANG

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director,
the Chairman of Nomination and Corporate Governance
Committee, a member of the Executive Committee of the
Board, aged 55. Mr. Foo is the Senior Vice President of
Sanpower Group. Prior to joining Sanpower Group, Mr. Foo
served at Hewlett-Packard as the Senior Vice President and
Regional Managing Director for Asia Pacific & Japan. Before
that, Mr. Foo had experience in a variety of roles, such as
President and Chief Executive Officer at Hasee Group Ltd.,
President at Dell Inc. (China), Managing Director at Gateway
Inc. (China) and Production Engineer at General Motors
(Singapore).

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

XIN KEXIA

Non-executive Director, aged 48. Mr. Xin is the President
of Jiangsu Hongtu and High Tech Sanpower Co., Ltd
(“HISAP”). Before joining Sanpower Group, Mr. Xin served
as Vice President at Yuexing Group, Vice President at
Gome Electrical Appliances Holding Limited and a member
of the senior management at Haier Group Co., Ltd. Mr. Xin
graduated from the Senior Executive Program of Tsinghua
University.

SONG RONGRONG

Non-executive Director, aged 39. Mr. Song is the Chief
Financial Officer of Jiangsu Hongtu and the Vice President
of HISAP. Formerly, Mr. Song served as the regional general
ledger accountant and regional chief financial officer of HISAP.
Mr. Song received a Bachelor degree in accounting from the
China University of Mining and Technology and master degree
in Business Administration from Nanjing University.
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Ql MIAO

Non-executive Director, aged 38. Mr. Qi is the Senior Director
of Sanpower Group and is mainly responsible for strategy
planning and execution. Formerly, Mr. Qi was an associate
partner at Inventive Strategy Consulting and Director at
Huawei Technology Co., Ltd. Prior to that, he worked at
Ernest and Young (China) Advisory Limited and advised on
strategy and business transformation projects in the PRC.
Mr. Qi has received a Master degree in Electrical Engineering
from Technical University of Dresden and a Master degree in
Business Administration from Peking University.

SHI CHANGYUN

Non-executive Director, aged 42. Mr. Shi is the Vice
President of Sanpower Group and is mainly responsible
for the Chairman Assistant Office, strategic management
division of manufacturing and information business and
strategic management division of 3C retail business.
Formerly, Mr. Shi was the EVP of Tengen Group & CEO of
Tengen Electric Company. Mr. Shi has received an EMBA
degree in China Europe International Business School and
a Master degree in Chemical Engineering from Tsinghua
University.

JING TIAN

Non-executive Director, aged 42, the Executive Vice President
of Sanpower Group, is mainly responsible for operation of
Investment and M&A Financial Management Centre, market
value planning and investor relations for overseas listco.
Formerly, Mr. Jing served as a senior executive of COSCO
GROUP, a key conglomerate specialized in global shipping,
logistics and terminal operations. From 2011-2015, Mr. Jing
worked as the Deputy General Manager of China COSCO
Holdings Co Ltd and was responsible for assets operations,
corporate governance and investor relations. Prior to
joining Sanpower Group, he was the Group Vice-president
of Xinyuan Real Estates Co Ltd. Mr. Jing has many years
of experience in cross-border investments, M&A, investor
relations and corporate governance. Mr. Jing is holding
a Master degree of Business Administration from NSD of
Peking University and a Master degree of Finance from the
Business School of Fordham University in New York.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

YANG XIONGSHENG

Independent non-executive Director and the chairman
of the Audit Committee, aged 57. Mr. Yang is the chair
Professor of the accounting and Finance Institute of
Nanjing University, professor, doctoral tutor. He is currently
an independent non-executive director of Shenji Group
Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited (stock code: 300)
and an independent director of Solar east Corporation (stock
code: 603366). He had worked for Lianyungang Finance
School and Lianyungang audit bureau. From 1995, he has
worked at the accounting department of Nanjing University.
Presently, he is the chair Professor of the accounting
and Finance Institute of Nanjing University, the managing
director of Accounting Society of China and officer of
internal control committee, vice President of Accounting
Society of Jiangsu Province, member of internal control
standard committee under the Ministry of Finance, advisory
expert of management accounting; adjunct doctoral tutor
at Nanjing University of Science and Technology, adjunct
professor at Anhui University of Finance and Economics.
The main research areas of Mr. Yang: internal control,
basic theory of accounting, financial management and
management accounting. Presently, he has published more
than 200 papers, monographs and more than 20 textbooks.
He directly involved in the research of specific control
criterion and drafting work of the Internal Accounting Control
Standards-Basic Standards by the Ministry of Finance,
and he undertook a number of key scientific researches
for the Ministry of Finance. Mr. Yang was graduated at
Xuzhou Normal University in 1981, and he has doctorate of
accounting at Dongbei University of Finance and Economics.
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ZHAO YUHONG

Independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee, aged 49. Ms. Zhao is a Managing Partner
at Bohai Harvest RST (Shanghai) Equity Investment
Fund Management Co., Ltd. Ms. Zhao has spent her
career working for a number of international and Chinese
investment banks. Her previous positions include Managing
Director in Investment Banking at BOC International,
Managing Director in Investment Banking at CLSA Asia
Pacific Markets, Executive Director in China Investment
Banking at JPMorgan Securities, Director in China
Investment Banking at Credit Suisse. Ms. Zhao obtained
an MBA degree from York University (Canada), a Master of
Arts degree from University of Western Ontario (Canada)
and a Bachelor of Arts degree from Dalian University of
Technology (China).

LI QUAN

Independent non-executive Director, a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination and Corporate Governance
Committee, aged 52. Mr. Li is a seasoned international
banker across commercial and investment banking in
London, Hong Kong and mainland China. He served as the
Chief Executive Officer of Australia and New Zealand Bank
(China) Ltd. till August 2014. From 1998 to 2014, as the
Country Executive, Dr. Li was responsible for establishing
and managing all The Royal Bank of Scotland (“RBS”)
business in China. He played a significant role in many
strategic projects. Over his time in China, he also served
as Non-executive Directors on the Boards of Suzhou Trust
Ltd. and Galaxy Futures Brokerage Ltd., Chairman of RBS
Leasing (China) Ltd., and a member of Advisory Board of
China European International Business School. Dr. Li was
educated both in China and the United Kingdom, holding a
Ph.D. in Strategic Management from Aston Business Schoal,
a Master of Science degree in Industrial Management from
Birmingham University and a Bachelor of Engineering degree
from Beijing Institute of Technology. Dr. Li also serves as an
independent non-executive director on the House of Fraser
Group board.
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DUH JIA-BIN

Independent non-executive Director and a member of
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination and
Corporate Governance Committee, aged 59. Mr. Duh is an
angel investor in technology and telecom related start-ups,
and has active participation in several companies and funds
in US, Asia and China. From 1998-2006, Mr. Duh served
as Vice President of Cisco Inc. and President of Cisco
China. Mr. Duh was the President of Microsoft China during
the period from 1993 to 1998. He also served at Hewlett-
Packard for over 10 years and held a variety of managerial
positions in sales, marketing and engineering. Mr. Duh is
a graduate of the National Chiao Tung University with a
bachelor’s degree in engineering and holds an Executive
MBA jointly offered by Kellogg School of Management
of Northwestern University and Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology (Kellogg-HKUST). He is the
Chairman of the advisory board of New York University and
Nanjing University’s joint institute.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of IDT International Limited
(the “Company”) are pleased to present to the shareholders
their annual report and audited financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) during the year
ended December 31, 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its
principal subsidiaries are engaged in investment holdings,
design, development, manufacturing, marketing and
distribution of lifestyle electronic products. Details of the
principal activities of the Group are set out in note 30 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment information are set out in note 6 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2016 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on page 111 and
further analysis is given in the accompanying notes to the
financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid for the year ended December
31, 2016 (for the nine-month period ended December 31,
2015: nil).

The Directors have resolved not to recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the year ended December 31, 2016 (for
the nine-month period ended December 31, 2015: nil).
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GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 6.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year ended December 31, 2016 are set out in
note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 113, and the financial
information of the Company on page 191, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At December 31, 2016, the Company did not have reserves
available for distribution as calculated in accordance with
the provisions of the laws of Bermuda.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Group spent
an aggregate amount of approximately HK$7.5 million (for
nine-month period ended December 31, 2015: HK$8.9
million) on the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
for the purpose of business expansion.

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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DONATIONS

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Group made
no charitable and other donations (2015: HK$12,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the aggregate
percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers in the year accounted for approximately 16%
of the Group’s purchases and the purchases attributable to
the largest supplier accounted for approximately 7% of the
Group’s purchases.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the aggregate
percentage of turnover attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers was approximately 33% of the Group’s
turnover and the percentage of turnover attributable to the
Group’s largest customer was approximately 16% of the
Group’s turnover.

None of the directors, their associates or shareholders, who
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital, had any interest in any of the five
largest customers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended December
31, 2016 are:

Executive:
Foo Piau Phang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

(appointed as Chief Executive Officer on March 1, 2017)
Hou Kaai Wern (Chief Executive Officer)

(appointed on May 12, 2016 and

resigned on March 1, 2017)

Non-Executive:

Xin Kexia

Song Rongrong

Wang Yang (resigned on December 6, 2016)
Jing Tian (appointed on December 6, 2016)
Shi Changyun

Qi Miao

Independent Non-Executive:
Yang Xiongsheng

Zhao Yuhong

Li Quan

Duh Jia-Bin

In accordance with Bye-Law 89 of the Company’s Bye-
Laws, any Director appointed as an additional Director or
to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall
be eligible for re-election but shall not be taken into account
in determining the Directors or the number of Directors who
are to retire by rotation at such meeting. On December
6, 2016, Mr. Jing Tian was appointed as non-executive
Director. He is eligible and, will offer himself for re-election
at the next annual general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with Bye-Law 97 of the Company’s Bye-
Laws, Mr. Foo Piau Phang, Ms. Zhao Yuhong, Mr. Duh Jia-
Bin will retire from office by rotation as Directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). The Company
considers all the independent non-executive Directors as
independent.

DIRECTORS BIOGRAPHY

Biographical details of the existing Directors are set out on
pages 54 to 58 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of three years which can be terminated by either party
giving a three month’s written notice to the other party.
Under such service contract, each of the independent non-
executive directors is subject to retirement by rotation at
the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-Laws, and is entitled to a fee of
HK$200,000 per annum subject to such adjustments as
the Board of the Company considers appropriate and the
approval of the shareholders at annual general meeting of
the Company.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There were no contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, which subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year ended December 31, 2016.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or in existence during the year
ended December 31, 2016.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at December 31, 2016, the interests and short positions
of the directors and chief executives of the Company
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFQO”)) which were notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under the provisions of the SFO) or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies (“Model Code”), was as follows:

il
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N
N

RBZE_Z—RXFEF+_A=+T—HILFEH
BRI XNTFHEIANABARRZHMAERE
MEBZERRITERAHK °

EECESEDR

R-_ZE—RNFE+-_A=+—H ' AQRRESE
MITHARER AR A E TR A EE (T E
RESRBEGD([FHRBEIEG ) EXV
)2ty HERDREEET  BEEIR
BEAMBEEMEXVIET7 RSHEEAM
ERRRRBEBHAIIBER QA ([HBR
Frl) (BREBEZSEZFFRPEERIMEEE
VESKBIEER 2B TR R ) AR B IR B FE
FREBEKRNEIS2IKBETHERT 2 ELMEA
REHUBE LTRARAESTETESRHNIZ
R ([Z257R)]) BAAME AR A KRBT
ZEERRABWT

No. of shares held

FsRHEE
% of the
Personal Family Corporate issued
Name interests interests interests Total capital
HE#T
A B ARz Rk AR B REAIL
Hou Kaai Wern (Note) xS\ (f/it) 514,000 - 514,000 0.02%

Note: Mr. Hou Kaai Wern resigned as an executive Director on 1
March 2017.

All interests disclosed above represent long positions in the
shares/underlying shares of the Company.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or chief
executives of the Company or any of their associates had,
as at December 31, 2016, any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
the provisions of the SFO) or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on
August 28, 2002 (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) expired
on August 27, 2012 and a new share option scheme (the
“2012 Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the Company
on August 29, 2012. The outstanding share options granted
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and the 2012
Share Option Scheme were either exercised or lapsed in
connection with the mandatory general offer for the Shares
of the Company which completed in April 2015. For details,
please refer to the composite document jointly published
by Company and Jiangsu Hongtu High Technology Co.,
Ltd dated March 25, 2015. No options were granted under
the 2012 Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31
December 2016, and as at 31 December 2016, there were
no outstanding options granted under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme and the 2012 Share Option Scheme.

The purpose of the 2012 Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentives to participants to the 2012 Share Option
Scheme (including employees, officers, agents, consultants
or representatives of the Company or any subsidiary of
the Company, including any executive, non-executive or
independent non-executive director of the Company or any
subsidiary of the Company who have satisfied certain criteria
as set out in the 2012 Share Option Scheme, together the
“Participants”) to contribute to the Company and to enable
the Company to recruit and retain high-calibre employees
and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group.
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The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and yet to be exercised
under the 2012 Share Option Scheme (“Options”) and any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not in
aggregate exceed 30% in of the number of issued Shares
from time to time. The total number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all Options to be granted under the
2012 Share Option Scheme, together with all options to be
granted under other share option schemes of the Company
must not represent more than 10% of the issued Shares
in issue on the date the 2012 Share Option Scheme was
adopted, unless approval is obtained from the Shareholders.
As at the date of this annual report, there were 231,477,108
Shares available for issue under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme, representing approximately 8.9% of the issued
Shares as at the date of this annual report.

Under the 2012 Share Option Scheme, no Participant shall
be granted an Option which, if accepted and exercised in
full, would result in such Participant becoming entitled to
subscribe for such number of Shares as, when aggregated
with the total number of Shares already issued and which
may be issued upon exercise of all Options granted and to
be granted to him, together with options granted and to be
granted to him under any other share option scheme(s)of the
company within the 12-month period immediately preceding
the proposed date of grant (including both exercised,
cancelled and outstanding Options) would exceed 1% of
the Shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any further
grant of share Options in excess of this limit is subject to
Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Where any grant of Options is proposed to be made to
Participant who is a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder (as such term as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company, or any of their respective associates,
such grant must first be approved by the independent non-
executive Directors (excluding independent non-executive
Directors who are the proposed grantees of the Options in
question).
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Where any grant of Options is proposed to be made to
Participant who is substantial shareholder (as such term
as defined in the Listing Rules) or an independent non-
executive Director or any of their respective associates,
which would result in the Shares being issued and which
may fall to be issued upon exercise of all Options already
granted and to be granted (including Options exercised,
cancelled or outstanding) to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant (i)
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the number of
Shares in issue on the date of such grant; and (ii) having an
aggregate value, based on the closing price of the Shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant, in excess of HK$5
million, such grant will be subject to prior approval of the
Shareholders in accordance with the 2012 Share Option
Scheme.

An offer shall remain open for acceptance by the Participant
concerned for a period of 28 days from the date of grant
provided that no offer shall be open for acceptance after the
expiry of the 2012 Share Option Scheme or after the 2012
Share Option Scheme has been terminated. HK$1.00 is
payable as consideration for acceptance of the Option.

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, decide the period
for which an Option must be held before it can be exercised,
provided that the exercise period shall not be more than 10
years from the date of grant.

The exercise price of the Option is determined by the Board
and is notified to a Participant at the time of the grant of
Options (subject to adjustments made pursuant to any
reorganization of capital structure) and shall be at least the
highest of (a) the closing price of the Shares as quoted on
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a
business day, (ii) the average closing price of the Shares as
quoted on the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant and (ii) the nominal
value of the Shares.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years commencing on the date of adoption, August 29,
2012.
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Details of each of the 2002 Share Option Scheme and
2012 Share Option Scheme are set out in note 24 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

No share options were granted to or exercised by the
Directors during year ended December 31, 2016 and there
is no outstanding balance at December 31, 2016.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year
ended December 31, 2016 was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors or their respective spouse or children under the
age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at December 31, 2016, the following persons (other than
the Directors or the chief executives of the Company) had
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company:
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% of the issued

No. of share capital

Name shares held EEBITRAR

=X PSR 81 B Ao

Jiangsu Hongtu High Technology  JT& & E &R HG

Co., Ltd (note 1) BRAR (B 1) 1,310,896,765 (L) 50.42%

Jiangsu Hongtu High Technology  T#ZE &SR (FE) KD

(Hong Kong) Co. Limited (note 2) ~ BRRE (fzt2) 1,310,896,765 (L) 50.42%

Hongtu High Technology Int’l Inc.  Hongtu High Technology Int’l Inc. 1,310,896,765 (L) 50.42%

Chan Pau Shiu Yeng Shirley (note 3) [R405 & (51 3) 130,412,067 (L) 5.02%

Raymond Chan (note 3) BRIEX (HfeL3) 130,412,067 (L) 5.02%

Notes: T -

(1) Jiangsu Hongtu High Technology Co., Ltd. holds 100% of the (1) I&HZBESHERONDERATEEIHEE
equity interests of Jiangsu Hongtu High Technology (Hong SRE(EB)VRBROHERLAA(IIHEBSE
Kong) Co. Limited (“Hongtu (HK)”). Therefore, it is deemed E) 100% AR - EimMwRaimeEl
to be interested in the interest in the shares of the Company BAT (R TXWi2) \a T EBE 5
held by Hongtu (HK) through its subsidiary (see note 2 below). AN T IR B RERS o

(2)  Hongtu (HK) holds 100% of the issued share of Hongtu (2) I#ZEBEBH A Hongtu High Technology
High Technology Int’l Inc. (*Hongtu (Seychelles)”). Int’l Inc. (THongtu (Seychelles)]) 2 B 8
Therefore, Hongtu (HK) is deemed to be interested in the TIE 5 100% © W IR EBEEERGT
1,310,896,765 shares of the Company beneficially owned by A Hongtu (Seychelles) Z B M 448 A
Hongtu (Seychelles) by virtue of its shareholding of Hongtu B Hongtu (Seychelles) Bz A B A A 7
(Seychelles). 1,310,896,765 fx ik 17 2 # s ©

(3)  Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley (“Mrs. Chan”) is the wife of (3) MepEL4+ ([Hat]) A EXEL ([

Dr. Raymond Chan (“Dr. Chan”). She is therefore deemed to
be interested in the 130,412,067 shares of the Company held
by Dr. Chan.

The letter “L” denotes the shareholder’s long position in the
shares.

BErDZETF BAHEWESAEEERIELSE
BWARRF 130,412,067 A (D HOAES ©

L] RRBRRAEUEZRDPAFZHR °
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Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been
notified by any person (other than the Directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as at December 31, 2016 which were required to
be disclosed to the Company under Part XV of the SFO or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On May 8, 2015, Oregon Scientific Inc. (“Oregon Scientific”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
Brookstone Purchasing Inc. Group Co., Ltd. (“Brookstone
Purchasing”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
Sanpower Group Co. Ltd., entered into a sale and purchase
agreement pursuant to which Oregon Scientific agreed to
sell the certain consumer electronics products to Brookstone
Purchasing. Details of these types of purchases were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated April
6, 2016. During the year ended December 31, 2016, the
aggregate sales to Brookstone Purchasing amounted to
approximately HK$400,000.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities,

options, warrants or similar rights at December 31, 2016.

There was no issue or exercise of any convertible securities,
options, warrants or similar rights of the Company during
the year ended December 31, 2016.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits schemes are set
out in note 28 to the financial statements.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

Details of the Group’s remuneration policy are set out in the
section of “Management Discussion & Analysis” from pages
23 to 25 of this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own Code of Conduct for
Securities Transactions by Directors (the “Code of Conduct
for Securities Transactions”). This is on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules, and has been updated from time to time.

It was noted that Mr. Hou Kaai Wern (alias Hou Kevin), a
former Director, without having first notifying in writing the
chairman of his intention to trade in the Shares, had on
three occasions traded in the Shares (being a purchase
of 66,000 Shares on September 30, 2016, a purchase of
500,000 Shares on October 26, 2016 and a disposal of
52,000 Shares on November 2, 2016), in each case, on the
open market. It is noted that such incidents constituted a
breach of the Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions.

Having made specific enquiries to all Directors, save as
disclosed above, all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code and the Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions
throughout the year ended December 31, 2016.

The board members have been reminded of their obligation
to comply with the Model Code.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group’s corporate governance principles and practices
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
73 to 102 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended December 31, 2016, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-Laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as
at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float throughout the year ended December
31, 2016 as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as auditor.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him
as a Director.

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and

officers of the Group throughout the year.

On behalf of the Board

Qi Miao
Director

Foo Piau Phang
Chairman

March 15, 2017
Hong Kong
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The Group is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of
all shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. Throughout the year ended December
31, 2016 under review, the Company has applied the
principles and complied with all code provisions and where
applicable, the recommended best practices prescribed in
the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), except for Code Provision
A.2.1 (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) and Code
Provision A.6.7, this Code provision stipulates, inter alia,
Independent Non-executive Directors and other Non-
executive Directors, as equal Board members, should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of shareholders, which would be explained in the
relevant paragraphs of this report. This report describes its
corporate governance practices, explains the applications
of the principles of the CG Code and deviations during the
year ended December 31, 2016 under review.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board

During the period between January 1, 2016 and May 11,
2016, the Board comprised ten directors of whom one is an
executive director (the chairman) and five are non-executive
Directors and four are independent non-executive directors.
For the period between May 12, 2016 and December 31,
2016, the Board comprised of eleven directors of whom
two are executive directors (including the chairman), five
are non-executive directors and four are independent
non-executive directors. Brief biographical details of the
directors appear in the Board of Directors section on pages
54 to 58. An updated list of directors of the Company and
their respective roles and functions are posted on the Stock
Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.
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Appointment, Re-election and Retirement of
Directors

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee
(“NCGC”) reviews the profiles of the candidates and makes
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
election and retirement of directors.

The Company recognises the importance of having the
appropriate board composition. In deciding the board
composition, the attributes, skills and expertise among
the directors are considered appropriate to effectively lead
and control the Group, taking into account the scope and
nature of its operations. The directors have a mix of core
competencies in areas such as accounting and finance,
business and management, industry knowledge and
marketing strategies. The size of the Board is conducive
to effective discussion and decision-making and has an
appropriate balance of independent directors to exercise
independent judgment.
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The Company also recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance and has adopted a Board Diversity Policy
(the “Policy”) in 2013. Board diversity will be considered
by the Company from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to cultural and educational background,
experience, skills, knowledge, length of service, age and
gender. The Board composition is reviewed, considered
and discussed by the NCGC on an annual basis and it will
make recommendations to the Board after the review. The
Company’s business needs will also be taken into account
in determining the optimum composition of the Board. In
reviewing and assessing the composition of the Board as
well as selecting candidate(s), the NCGC will consider all
diversity elements according to the Policy and also devised
guidelines for ideal board size, optimum number of executive
and non-executive directors and board membership criteria.
The Policy and those guidelines shall be reviewed and
revised periodically to meet business needs of the Group.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the directors shall
retire from office. The directors to retire in every year shall
be those who have been longest in office since their last
election or re-election. Further, any director appointed by
the Board as an additional Board member or fill in a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the following annual general
meeting (“AGM”) and shall then be eligible for re-election
at the AGM immediately following their appointments. The
new directors shall not be taken into account in determining
the number of directors who are to retire by rotation at that
annual general meeting. Election and re-election of directors
will be done by separate resolution.
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The names and biographical details of the directors who will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM are
set out in the circular accompanying the notice of AGM.

Induction and Continuous Professional Development
Newly appointed directors of the Company will receive
induction and reference materials to enable him/her to
familiarise himself/herself with the Group’s history, mission,
business operations and board and company policies. Each
director is briefed and updated from time to time to ensure
that he/she has a proper understanding of the operations
and business of the Group and that he/she is fully aware
of his/her responsibilities under statute and common law,
the Listing Rules, applicable legal and other regulatory
requirements and the governance policies of the Company.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development so as to refresh their knowledge
and skills for discharging their duties and responsibilities.
For the year ended December 31, 2016, relevant reading
materials including regulatory update and seminar handouts,
etc. have been provided to the Directors for their reference
and studying.
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2016 up to December 31, 2016 is set out as follows:

TREGHRES

ANTFIEBEE —T—-—R"F-—A—HBE_F
—RET A=+ —REEMEXZHEI

Training activities
including in-house
activities/briefings,

seminars/talks held
by professional
organisations
and/or reading
materials on
relevant topics
BIES (B4

NEINEES,
% BEAER
Bz HEe
BN BIERR
REZMHED
Executive Directors: HITESE -
Foo Piau Phang FHEEs 4
Hou Kaai Wern (note 1) &\ (1) v/
Non-Executive Directors: FBMITES
Xin Kexia F iR v
Song Rongrong REELE v
Wang Yang (note 2) TH(Hat2) v
Shi Changyun BRE v/
Qi Miao % v
Jing Tian (note 3) IR (H5E3) v
Independent Non-Executive Directors: B IEHITES -
Yang Xiongsheng 15 1 B v
Zhao Yuhong HFAL v
Li Quan T v/
Duh Jia-Bin HHKB v
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Notes:

(1) Mr. Hou Kaai Wern has been appointed on May 12, 2016 and
and resigned on March 1, 2017.

(2)  Ms. Wang Yang resigned on December 6, 2016.

(3)  Mr. Jing Tian has been appointed on December 6, 2016.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
During the period between January 1, 2016 and December
31, 2016, Mr. Foo Piau Phang is the chairman of the
Company. During the period between January 1, 2016 and
May 11, 2016, Mr. Foo Piau Phang is the chief executive
officer. During the period between May 12, 2016 and
February 28, 2017, Mr. Hou Kaai Wern is the chief executive
officer of the Company.
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Code provision A.6.7: This Code Provision stipulates,
inter alia, Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-
executive Directors, as equal Board members, should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Xin Kexia, Mr. Song Rongrong, Ms. Wang Yang,
Mr. Qi Miao and Mr. Shi Changyun, being all non-executive
Directors; Mr. Yang Xiongsheng and Ms. Zhao Yuhong being
the independent non-executive Directors, were unable to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on
May 25, 2016 (“2016 AGM”) due to tight business schedule
and difficulties in accommodating travel arrangements.

Responsibilities of the Board and delegations to
management

The Board is responsible to the shareholders for leadership
and control of the Company and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company and its
businesses by directing and supervising the Company’s
affairs.

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies
with particular attention paid to the growth and financial
performance of the Group. The principal functions of the
Board are to:

° establish the strategic direction and development of
the Group;

o determine the broad policies, strategic plans and
performance objectives of the Group;

° monitor management performance;
° approve financial plans and annual budgets, major

funding proposals, key funding and investment
proposals;
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° oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of
internal controls, risk management, financial reporting
and compliance;

° approve the nominations of directors and appointment
of key personnel; and

° assume responsibility for corporate governance.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to
executive directors and senior executives, while reserving
certain key matters for its approval. Decisions of the
Board are communicated to the management through
executive directors who have attended at Board meetings
and circulation of minutes of Board meetings to the
management.

The Board has adopted a set of guidelines to clearly divide
the responsibilities of the Board and the management.
Matters reserved for decision and consideration of the Board
include, among others, all matters of strategic importance,
corporate governance practices, legal and regulatory
compliance, internal control and risk management, corporate
strategy, operating and capital budgets, statutory financial
reports, changes in Board members, major transactions
and investment commitments and remuneration policy of
directors and senior management, financial authorization
and approval limits for operating and capital expenditure,
the procurement of goods and services, and the acquisition
and disposal of investments.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Coming from diverse business and professional
backgrounds, the independent non-executive directors of
the Company have shared their valuable experience with
the Board in the interests of promoting the best interests of
the Company and its shareholders. The independent non-
executive directors of the Company have made significant
contribution of their skills and expertise to the Board
committees. All independent non-executive directors are
appointed for a fixed term of three years and are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders at the
annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with
the Company’s Bye-Laws.

All independent non-executive directors are expressly
identified in all corporate communications that disclose the
names of the directors of the Company. The functions of
independent non-executive directors include, but not limited
to:

o participating in Board meetings to bring in independent
judgment to bear on issues of corporate strategy,
corporate performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standard of conducts;

° taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests
arise;

° serving on board committees, if invited; and
° scrutinising the Group’s performance in achieving

agreed corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring
the reporting of performance.
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During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company
has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules regarding the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive directors including at least
one independent non-executive director with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or relating financial
management expertise. In assessing the independence
of the directors, the Board has examined the different
relationships identified under the Listing Rules that might
impair the directors’ independence and objectivity.
The Board considers that all of the independent non-
executive directors are independent and are satisfied with
the directors’ ability to act with independent judgment.
Furthermore, each of the independent non-executive
directors has provided to the Company an annual
confirmation of independence required by Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all its independent
non-executive directors to be independent. Each director is
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. Any further re-appointment of an independent non-
executive director, who has served the Board for more
than nine years, will be subject to separate resolution to be
approved by the shareholders of the Company.

The Company has also complied with Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules that the independent non-executive directors
are representing at least one-third of the Board.
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RELATIONSHIP
There is no financial, business, family and other material
relationship among other members of the Board.

There has been an effective and balanced Board collectively
responsible for the Company’s activities and affairs. The
Board members are free to discuss issues properly put to
the Board meetings and express their views and concerns.
No individual or small group can dominate the Board’s
decision-making process.

If a substantial shareholder or a director has a conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which
the Board has determined to be material, the matter will be
dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather than a written
resolution of the Board. The Board will take into account
the exceptions to the general voting prohibition, as set out
in the Listing Rules when considering whether a director
shall vote on any board resolution approving any matters in
which he has material interests or shall he be counted in the
quorum present at the meeting.

MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly at least 4 times a year and
holds additional meetings as and when the Board thinks
appropriate. Board committees also hold regular scheduled
meetings to discharge their duties. Meetings via telephone
or video-conference are permitted under the Bye-Laws of
the Company. Attendance record of the Board and Board
Committees meetings during the year ended December 31,
2016 is set out on page 86.

All Directors have access to the company secretary who
is responsible for ensuring that Board/Board committees
meeting procedures are observed and advising the Board/
Board committees on compliance matters.
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In an attempt to accommodate the competing time
commitments of directors who sit on multiple boards,
Board/Board committees meetings dates are scheduled
well in advance at the beginning of every calendar year.
The Company has given at least 14 days’ notice for regular
Board and Board Committees meetings. For all other Board/
Board committees meetings, reasonable notices are given.
Draft agendas for Board and Board Committee meetings
are prepared by the company secretary and are circulated
to all directors for comment before the meetings. The
directors were given the opportunities to include matters
to be discussed in the agenda for all Board and Board
Committees meetings. The company secretary is delegated
with the responsibility to prepare these agendas and,
where appropriate, take into account any matters proposed
by each director/committee member for inclusion in the
agenda.

The agenda accompanied by detailed board papers
(prepared in such form and manner as will enable the Board
to make an informed decision on matters placed before
it, including but not limited to, background or explanatory
information relating to matters to be brought before the
Board and internal financial information such as quarterly
management accounts, forecasts and budgets with material
variance between projections and actual results explained)
are circulated to all directors in a timely manner and at least
three days before the date of scheduled meeting.

Minutes of Board/Board committees meetings are recorded
in detail the matters considered and decisions reached,
including concerns raised by directors or dissenting
views expressed. Draft minutes are circulated to relevant
directors/committee members within a reasonable time
after the meetings for comments and will then be approved
by the Board/Board committees at the following meeting.
Minutes of Board and Board Committees meetings are kept
by the company secretary and are open for inspection at
any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any director.
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Directors are provided in a timely manner with complete,
adequate explanation and information about the Company
and its subsidiaries, its activities, performances and its
projects particularly including any significant variances
from a planned course of actions to enable them to
make an informed decision or assessment of the Group’s
performance, position and prospects and to discharge their
duties and responsibilities. In case when the directors have
queries, they are provided with the names and contact
details of the Group’s senior executives for separate and
independent access to them and they are able to obtain
more information than is volunteered by the management.
Senior executives are from time to time brought into formal
and informal contact with the Board at Board meetings and
other events.

The Board and Board committees are provided with
sufficient resources to properly discharge their duties
including access to independent professional advisers
under agreed procedures, upon reasonable request, at the
expense of the Company.
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The following table summarises the attendance record of BHE-ZE—RNEFE+_A=+—BLLFEE@EH
individual directors and committee members for the year FERLEeeEHFEeE 288 0T

ended December 31, 2016:

No. of meeting attended/No. of meeting held

HEEBRY EEETRY

Nomination
and Corporate
Governance 2016
Executive Audit  committee Remuneration AGM

Board Committee Committee RERL¥ Committee ZB-KF
EZ® HTZ8E® ENZEE EHREEE FHZEE RREEAE

Number of meetings held SERITRY 6 5 3 2 1 1
Executive Directors HTES

Foo Piau Phang gt 6/6 5/5 - 2/2 - 1/1
Hou Kaai Wern (note 1) B Mzt 1) 4/5 5/5 - - - 1
Non-executive Directors FHTES

Xin Kexia Rk 3/6 - - - - 01
Song Rongrong REE 5/6 - - - 1/1 0/
Wang Yang (note 2) IHE2) 4/4 - - - - 0/
Jing Tian (note 3) MR(HE3) 1/1 - - - - -
Shi Changyun BRE 6/6 - - - - 0/1
Qi Miao B3 6/6 - - - - 0/

Independent Non-executive Directors B FH{TES

Yang Xiongsheng ik 4/6 - 2/3 - - 0/

Zhao Yuhong BT 5/6 - 2/3 - 1/1 0/1

Li Quan 23 6/6 - 3/3 2/2 - 1/1

Duh Jia-Bin HRE 6/6 - - 2/2 1 1

Notes: BMIeE -

(1) Mr. Hou Kaai Wern has been appointed on May 12, 2016 and (1) EIXEERZZTE—"FRAT-BEZME
has resigned on March 1, 2017. RERZZT—EF=A—HEHE -

(2)  Ms. Wang Yang has resigned on December 6, 2016. 2 EBEXLIRZ=ZZFT—AR"FT_ARHBET-

(3)  Mr. Jing Tian has been appointed on December 6, 2016. (B) FIREENR-ZZT—A"FT_ABHEZE-
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Board Committees

To maximise the effectiveness of the Board and to
encourage active participation and contribution from
Board members, the Board has established four Board
committees, namely the executive committee, audit
committee, nomination and corporate governance
committee and remuneration committee with specific written
terms of reference that clearly deal with their authority and
duties, to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs, assist in the execution of the Board’s responsibilities
enable the Board committees to perform their functions
properly. Board committees report to the Board on their
work and findings. They adopt as far as practicable, the
principles, procedures and arrangements of the Board in
relation to scheduling and conduct of meetings, notice of
meetings and inclusion of agenda items, recording and
availability of minutes. The written terms of reference of the
audit committee, nomination and corporate governance
committee and remuneration committee, which are in line
with the CG Code, are available on the website of the
Company and the Stock Exchange and will be reviewed
from time to time. The quorum necessary for transaction of
business of each Board committee is two.

Executive Committee (“EC”)
During the year ended December 31, 2016, the EC
comprised of all executive directors.

The EC meets as and when required to oversee the day-
to-day management of the Group and has all the general
powers of the Board except those matters specifically
reserved for the Board. From January 1, 2016 to May 11,
2016, Mr. Foo Piau Phang was the sole member of the EC.
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The principal duties of EC include:

managing the business and investments by overseeing
the Group’s operations, projects, assets and liabilities,
budgets, compliance obligations and financial
performance in accordance with the policies and
directives of the Board;

making recommendations to the Board as to the
Group’s overall policies, strategies and financial
objectives in the development of its business and
ensuring their implementation and execution; and

providing leadership to staff and management and
nominating key personnel and ensuring appropriate
levels of authority are delegated to them.

Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee
(“NCGC”)

During the period between January 1, 2016 and December
31, 2016, the NCGC is chaired by Mr. Foo Piau Phang (the
Chairman of the Board) and comprised two other members,
namely, Dr. Li Quan and Mr.Duh Jia-Bin. The NCGC meets
at least once a year. All NCGC members, except Mr. Foo
Piau Phang, are independent non-executive directors.
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The principal functions of the NCGC include:

making recommendations to the Board on all new
appointments or re-appointments of directors, the
establishment of a succession plan for directors, in
particular the chairman and chief executive officer and
the composition of the Board;

identifying and nominating qualified individuals, subject
to the approval of the Board, to be additional directors
or to fill vacancy in the Board as and when they arise;

reviewing on an annual basis the Board structure, size
and composition and the independent element of the
Board;

developing the criteria for selection of directors;

assessing the independence of independent non-
executive directors;

developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and directors; and

reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

The chairman of the NCGC will report to the Board on its
proceedings and recommendations after each meeting.
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The main works performed by NCGC during the year ended
December 31, 2016 included reviewing the structure and
composition of the Board; assessing independence of
existing independent non-executive directors and putting
forward recommendations to the Board on re-election of
retiring directors as well as reviewing Board Diversity Policy
and recommending the same to the Board for approval.

Remuneration Committee (“RC”)

During the period between January 1, 2016 and December
31, 2016, the RC is chaired by Ms. Zhao Yuhong (an
independent-executive director) and comprised two other
members, namely, Mr. Song Rongrong and Mr. Duh Jia-
Bin. All RC members, except Mr. Song Rongrong, are
independent non-executive directors.

The RC consults the chairman and chief executive officer
about its proposals relating to the remuneration of other
executive directors and has access to professional advice
if considered necessary. The principal functions of the RC
include:

° recommending to the Board on the Company’s policies
and structure for the remuneration of the directors and
senior management of the Group;

° recommending to the Board the remuneration packages
of all executive directors and senior management; and

° reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives.

920

REMNCEERZEENRHE _T—RF
T_A=1T " BLFERITZE2TERHE
RN EFENAEBMANX  FFEREBIIHE
HITEENBYUMEMNAEETEZEREERIE
ERHERTMAESEERREETZTES T
TEBUR -

%%é%éﬁﬁwéééﬁ
RZE—RF—H—B2-_Z—X"F+=A4
=+—HHR - ~M§§A$t$ﬂﬁi(
NHEBMTES)EEEE - WBEMULEMAK
B REEEEARMRBLE - RREEE
E 2REFEMEE SR E B RB Y IEMIT
-5

FEEe R EERHMRTESTZHME
*@@Iﬁﬁﬂﬁ B ZER WARAS
DRZAEESR - EFXBRERIE

s HMAKEEELEMAEEEHFMIALR
ARRRRBREESELESR

s MAAMTEZELRSREEE ZFH B
FMEFSFLESE R

e REEFENOLXANNE SRR L
EEEENHMNES -



Annual Report 2016 == — <4

Corporate Governance Report

The chairman of the RC will report to the Board on its
proceedings and recommendations, where appropriate, for
the Board’s consideration and/or approval.

The main works performed by RC during the year ended
December 31, 2016 included reviewing and approving the
employees’ annual salary increment commencing from
January 1, 2016 and recommending the proposed directors’
fees paid for the year ended December 31, 2016.

A general description of the Group’s emolument policy
and long-term incentive schemes as well as the basis of
determining the emolument payable to each directors for the
year ended December 31, 2016 are disclosed on pages 23
to 25 of this annual report.

Audit Committee (“AC”)

During the period between January 1, 2016 and December
31, 2016, the AC consisted of three members, namely,
Mr. Yang Xiongsheng (chairman), Ms. Zhao Yuhong and
Dr. Li Quan, all of whom are independent non-executive
directors. The Board is of the opinion that the majority of
the members of the AC possess accounting and financial
management expertise or experience required to discharge
their duties.

The major duties of AC include:

° considering and recommending the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditor;

° approving the remuneration and terms of engagement
of external auditor, any questions of resignation or
dismissal of that auditor;

° reviewing and monitoring external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process
in accordance with applicable standards;
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discussing with external auditor the nature and scope
of the audit and reporting obligations before the audit
CoOmmences;

developing and implementing policy on the engagement
of an external auditor to supply non-audit services
and making recommendation of any measures for
improvements to be taken;

monitoring integrity of financial statements, annual
and interim reports and reviewing significant financial
reporting judgment contained in them. In this regard,
in reviewing the quarterly, interim and annual financial
statements and the annual and the interim reports
before submission to the Board, focusing particularly
on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i)~ major judgmental areas;

(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v) compliance with accounting standards;

(vi) compliance with the Listing Rules and other legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting; and

(viij any matters that have been raised by the
Company’s staff responsible for the accounting
and financial reporting function or auditors;

reviewing the Group’s financial controls, internal
control and risk management systems;

discussing with the management the system of
internal control and ensuring that the management
has discharged its duty to have an effective internal
control system including the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programmes and budget;
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° considering major investigations of findings on internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its
own initiative and management’s response to these
findings;

° reviewing the internal audit programme, ensuring co-
ordination between the internal and external auditors,
and ensuring that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing
within the Company and reviewing and monitoring the
effectiveness of the internal audit function;

° reviewing the external auditor’s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management
in respect of the accounting records, financial accounts
or systems of control and management’s response and
ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response
to the issues raised;

o reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies
and practices;

° reviewing the arrangements the Group’s employees
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters. The Committee should ensure
that proper arrangements are in place for fair and
independent investigation of these matters and for
appropriate follow-up action; and

° reporting to the Board on matters set out above and to
consider other topics, as defined by the Board.

The AC has explicit authority to investigate any matter
under the scope of its duties and the authority to obtain
independent professional advice. It is given full access to
and cooperation of the management. It has been provided
with reasonable resources to discharge its duties properly.
In the course of reviewing the Group’s financial information,
the AC members liaise closely with the Board and the chief
financial officer to gather relevant information.

TEERRES

e IHUMEFTENRIR REMAIE
REENEEZHEERNEEEHRE

EREOOEETTHIR

o RIABMEEME  BEABEFIL
SMNEEIZ BLED B N B 1F - WHER N ARRGT
NEEB R HEREE - ARARAIANEA
BE A AR R REERNEER
ez Bt

o RIIMNEZBEIZR TEREEN(ERIE
SRR - AR BEI L & 5RO ER -
MBRERERRRRERERHOEM
EARENMEEBzOE  IERES
SHIRL 2 FERBEHOE

s MAAKREZHMBLEFEREABEY

s RIR/AKBEEMIRNRTLE &
M REBTHEER APERIH
MEENRIRE ZESRERIRA
LR FUEBILAE LA EENH
B ARRBUEE N BRETE 0 &

s HNMEABEMENZTERNEFTSER -
LR EMAEEGRENRE -

ERLZECAAREREN  REBMSHET
EEMEENERENBUERER 1 #E
BEEBRHE2ZAMNIXERBIAE BRE
EeVERHAENER UWZRBETTHR
%o HBHAKRE UM BERNBES - &
REZEEHEFE LY HAEEEHEUM
SEBREM -

93



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED & BB R 7

Corporate Governance Report
TERERBEE

The major works performed by the AC during the year ended
December 31, 2016 included the review and consideration of
the announcements relating to the Group’s interim and annual
results; interim and annual reports; significant accounting and
audit issues arising from annual audit of the Group’s financial
statements; budget, periodic reports from internal audit
department; internal audit plan, external auditor’s audit and
non-audit fees as well as the assessment and recommendation
of re-appointment of auditor for the coming year.

Full minutes of the AC are kept by the company secretary
of the Company. Draft and finalised minutes of the AC
meetings are circulated to all members of the AC for their
comment and records respectively, in both cases within
reasonable time after the conclusion of the meetings.

Securities Transactions by Directors and Officers
The Company has adopted a Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors and Officers of the Group (the “Code”) on
terms no less exacting than the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model
Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

It was noted that Mr. Hou Kaai Wern (alias Hou Kevin), a
former Director, without having first notifying in writing the
chairman of his intention to trade in the Shares, had on
three occasions traded in the Shares (being a purchase
of 66,000 Shares on September 30, 2016, a purchase of
500,000 Shares on October 26, 2016 and a disposal of
52,000 Shares on November 2, 2016), in each case, on the
open market. It is noted that such incidents constituted a
breach of the Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions.

Having made specific enquiries to all Directors, save as
disclosed above, all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code and the Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions
throughout the year ended December 31, 2016.

The Board members have been reminded of their obligation
to comply with the Model Code.
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Directors and Officers as defined in the Code who are in
possession of unpublished inside information in relation to
the Company or its shares are prohibited from dealing in
shares of the Company and are also prohibited from dealing
in shares during the black-out period.

Insurance

The Group has appropriate insurance cover in place in
respect of any legal actions against its directors and
officers.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs and results of the Company and of
the Group. Their responsibilities have also been stated
in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on
pages 103 to 110 of this annual report. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2016, the directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently and made accounting
judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable
in the circumstances. With the assistance of the Finance
Department, the directors ensure that the financial
statements of the Group are prepared in accordance with
statutory requirements and appropriate financial reporting
standards.

Management recognises the importance of providing the
Board with appropriate and relevant information on an
accurate and timely basis. Quarterly business review and
financial reports comparing the Group’s actual performance
with budget and highlighting major relevant issues are
provided to the Board to enable it to make an informed
assessment on the Group’s performance, position and
prospects. Under the CG Code, monthly updates are
required to be provided to all directors.

The Board endeavours to ensure a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Group’s position and
prospects to extend to the Group’s financial reporting including
annual and interim reports, other price-sensitive announcements
and other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules,
and reports to regulators as well as information required to be
disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.
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The Company publishes its interim and annual financial
results and reports in accordance with the requirements
under the Listing Rules.

External Auditor and Auditor’'s Remuneration

The external auditor of the Company is Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu. The Audit Committee is responsible for
considering the selection, appointment, resignation
or dismissal of external auditors. The Board has no
disagreement with the Audit Committee’s view on the re-
appointment of external auditor.

The statement of Deloitte Touch Tohmatsu, the independent
auditor of the Company, regarding their reporting
responsibility on the financial statements of the Group for
the year ended December 31, 2016 is set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 103 to
110 of this annual report. Representatives from Deloitte
Touch Tohmatsu met up with the Audit Committee meeting
to answer questions.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the fees paid to
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the Company’s external auditor,
for audit services of the Company and its subsidiaries
amounted to HK$ 2.7 million (For the nine-month period
ended December 31, 2015: HK$ 4.2 million). The fee paid
for non-audit related services, representing mainly taxation
services, amounted to HK$0.1 million for the nine-month
period ended December 31, 2015 (2016: nil).

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems
of the Group, and for reviewing their design, operational
adequacy and effectiveness.
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The Group’s risk management and internal control systems
encompass their policies, processes, tasks, and other
aspects of the Group that taken together:

° facilitate their effective and efficient operation by
allowing it to respond appropriately to significant
business, operational, financial, compliance and other
risks with a view to achieving business objectives. This
includes the safeguarding of assets from inappropriate
use or from loss and fraud and ensuring that liabilities
are identified and managed;

° help ensure maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal or external reporting; and

° help ensure compliance with relevant legislation and
regulations, and also with internal policies with respect
to the conduct of business.

The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
of no material misstatement or loss and to manage rather
than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and
achievement of the Group’s objectives.

The key procedures that the Board established to provide
effective risk management and internal controls are as
follows:

° A distinct organisation structure exists with defined
lines of authority and responsibilities. Division/
department heads are involved in preparing the
strategic plan which lays down the corporate strategies
to be pursued in the coming year for achieving the
annual operating plan and the annual operational
and financial targets. Both the strategic plan and the
annual operating plan lay down the foundation for the
preparation of the annual budget by which resources
are allocated in accordance with identified and
prioritised business opportunities. The annual operating
plan is submitted for approval by the Executive
Committee subject to regular review. The strategic
plan is presented to the Board by management subject
to regular review and the annual budget is approved
by the Board yearly;
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° A comprehensive monthly management reporting
system is in place providing financial and operational
performance indicators to the management, and
the relevant financial information for reporting and
disclosure purposes. Variances against budgets are
analysed, and explained, and appropriate actions are
taken, if necessary, to rectify deficiencies noted; and

° System and procedures are in place to identify,
measure, manage and control risks including legal,
credit, market, operational, environmental, behavioral
and system risks that may have an impact on the
Group.

The Group’s Internal Audit Department (“IA”) performs
audit reviews of the risks and key controls of the Group. IA
plays an important role in monitoring the Group’s internal
governance, evaluating the quality of the risk management
and internal control systems and informing the Board
whether sound risk management and internal control
systems are maintained and operated by the management
in compliance with agreed processes and standards. To
preserve the independence of the internal audit function, the
Head of IA reports directly to the AC on audit matters and
to the chief executive officer on administrative matters.

Using a risk management-based approach audit, |A plans
its internal audit projects annually in consultation with,
but independent of, management. The audit methodology
and process adopted by IA include understanding and
analysing the business, determining risk areas within key
processes; analysing and evaluating the process control
effectiveness and communicating results and follow up.
Independent reviews of different financial, business and
functional operations and activities will be conducted with
audit resources being focused on higher risk areas. Ad-
hoc reviews will also be conducted on areas of concern
identified by the AC and the management.
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The Company has established written policies and
procedures on daily operations, covering process flow,
methodology adopted, reviewing process and reporting
system. Division/Department Heads will be notified of the
control deficiencies noted for rectification, and IA will follow
up with the implementation of audit recommendations.
Significant internal control weaknesses are brought to the
attention of the AC and if necessary to the Board, and to
the senior management for remedial actions.

During the period under review, the Board, through the
AC, has conducted reviews on a regular basis, of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls, and
risk management functions and gave due deliberation/
consideration to the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience of the accounting and financial
reporting function.

Furthermore, the whistleblowing policy has been adopted
by the Board for the Group’s employees, customers and
suppliers to raise concerns, in confidence, about possible
improprieties in any matters related to the Group.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

Shareholders Communication

The Company strives to convey to shareholders pertinent
information in a clear, detailed, timely manner and on a
regular basis and to take into consideration their views and
inputs, and address shareholders’ concerns. Their views are
communicated to the Board as a whole.

The Company communicates with its shareholders through
the publication of annual and interim reports, results
announcements, other announcements and documents
required to be published pursuant to the Listing Rules, and
press releases. All shareholders’ communications are also
available on the Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkex.
com.hk or the Company’s website at www.idthk.com.

TEER

BEE

ARBER/BELE R HAITE
’f%m’ri&ii&%llfr&ﬁlJmﬁ\JEHE’JBZ RNMAZFF o

DE/MPAITEHEBMEET R ZEIAE
TEE MAREAHSREZEETEZER
LEH BEBZARERTEHRZERE
BEeFTIiIs(RUWERBERETESS)
e EREAMELMRITE -

CEEHR EESCBRBEERZESTHY
AEERBREE KA ETZGHAEBE CR
EFMEERER BRVKE SERAKRE
T URERERRER)ETRN UTHE
R BIHESAYBERNECR G EE
ERBEEE -

BE EF2RMTERBERAERAEEZ
BT - BE ;MRS AE BT A s EE
TEZEEREREER -

B

HERR2BENRRES

REER

RATBB A MBRREERE 85 BRFR
THZHEEER  UEBERFZERRER
UREERREIZERE HECEREE
EAEEEEE -

KRARBEBYEFER - PHMSE - EERMH
BEEMBAUNETIEN G EXH - RFHE
T B AR R ER o AT A BT R 2 @A IR S A B
ZEr#EEE www.hkex.com.hk 3 AR R &) 481
www.idthk.com e

929



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED & BB R A 7

Corporate Governance Report
TERER/RBREE

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a
useful forum for shareholders to exchange views with the
Board. The chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of
AC, NCGC and/or RC, or in their absence, members of
the Board committees are generally available to answer
shareholders’ questions.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on
each substantially separate issue, including the election of
individual directors. Votes cast on each resolution at the
general meetings are properly counted and recorded.

At each general meeting, the shareholders will be informed
the detailed procedures for conducting a poll and answers
will be provided if there are any questions from the
shareholders. The poll results are posted on the Stock
Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE
A SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING (“SGM”)

The directors of the Company, notwithstanding anything
in its Bye-Laws shall, on the requisition of shareholders
of the Company holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of such of the paid-up
capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company,
forthwith proceed duly to convene a SGM of the Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the requisitionists and addressed
to the company secretary and deposited at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share
registrars and upon their confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the company secretary will ask the
Board to include the resolution in the agenda for the SGM.

If the directors do not within twenty-one days from the date
of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene
a meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them representing
more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the said date.
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Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals
at general meetings

Shareholders who want to put forward proposals at an AGM
or SGM should submit a written notice of those proposals
with their detailed contact information to the company
secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong. The request will be verified with the Company’s
share registrars and upon their confirmation that the request
is proper and in order, the company secretary will ask the
Board to include the resolution in the agenda for the general
meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to Send Enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders’ enquiries must be in writing setting out
their contact information and addressed to the company
secretary and deposited at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Block C, 9th Floor, Kaiser Estate,
41 Man Yue Street, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible to the Board for
ensuring that the Board procedures and policies are
followed and also responsible for ensuring that the Board
is fully appraised of the relevant regulatory and corporate
governance developments relating to the Group and
facilitating the induction and professional development
of directors. Mr. Kong Chun Hin Jason, the company
secretary of the Company during the year ended December
31, 2016, had attended relevant professional seminars to
update his knowledge and skills. He had complied with the
Listing Rules and taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognised that effective communication to
investors is the key to establish investor confidence and
attracting new investors.

Measures taken by the Group include:

102

Annual and interim reports are prepared and issued to
all shareholders within the prescribed period stipulated
by the Stock Exchange. All results announcements and
reports are posted on the Stock Exchange’s website
and the Company’s website.

The Group regularly releases corporate information
such as awards received, product launches and the
latest news of the Group’s developments on the
Company’s website. The public are welcome to give
their comments and make their enquiries through the
Company’s website and the management will provide
their prompt response.

The constitutional documents of the Company can be
found on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange and there is no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the period.
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Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of IDT International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out
on pages 111 to 192, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2016,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at December 31, 2016, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

AR EREIR

AREAFEERERMNERAEG AR
BAMBEAVBRRANEARREENS
He BEEREERMBABBRAMBR
RELEERBETRIEN - HMATSHE
LEREHREFBNER -

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

ERENSE AMNESTNAHERESSRETRE
Impairment of goodwill
BERE

We identified the impairment of goodwill as a key audit matter due to significant
management judgements and assumptions involved in the discounted future
cash flow model which were prepared and used by management in considering
impairment of goodwill.

AMARBEHNEBRRELER  TRERENZRATHERRERER NN
AARAERARBASRENERBAHGRRRR -

Impairment of goodwill is assessed by management by comparing the
recoverable amount and carrying amount of the relevant cash generating units
at the end of the reporting period. Significant judgement and assumptions were
required by management of the Group in assessing the recoverable amounts of
cash generating units. The recoverable amounts are determined with reference
to the value in use of the relevant cash generating units, which required
significant assumptions on discount rates, growth rates, and expected gross
profit margin in order to derive the net present value of the discounted future
cash flow model.

BEREREEERBL RERARENRRESRNTKESE REEEETE
fe- SEEEBRERFEARELNAEITROSERRZKERAMRER - &
SZRBAREUMEREE BEEThOeE SRIGINEE  EREURE
HENXELBEARS - MAERRAARRA 2 RERANREFE -

As disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
recognised goodwill of HK$33.8 million as at December 31, 2016.
FNGERBEREMTSARE  AEER_Z—ET-A=T-ARRARE

4+ —

BE338EETL

104

Our procedures in relation to management's evaluation of
impairment assessment of goodwill included:

AAAREREFEABRETENRFEL

o Understanding and evaluating the key controls for the
Group’s impairment assessment on goodwill;

TERHE ESERBREFENEREH

o Obtaining the discounted future cash flow model
prepared by the management and checking its
mathematical accuracy;
BRERERENTAARACNERARNELREE
Bt :

° Evaluating the reasonableness of the key assumptions
adopted by the management, including discount rates,
growth rates, and expected gross profit margin;
TREREMRMNBRERHAEL  AENRZ &
REREHENE ;

o Testing the accuracy and evaluating the relevance
of key inputs adopted in the discounted future cash
flow model against historical performance of the
Group, including revenues, cost of sales and operating
expenses, and with reference to the future strategic
plans of the Group in respect of each cash generating
unit; and
Y ERERAXRANFTRARRERERABAR
RMNIZRALENERY R EHAAY - BEET
RilE  HERARKERYR2Z ESERBER
TELBUNRRRRTE R

° Reviewing the sensitivity analyses performed by
management on growth rates and discount rates
to evaluate the potential impact on the recoverable
amount and impairment.

R EREHERERTRRMETNHRE A - T
EHTREEERAENEETE -
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Key audit matters

BRETSE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

AANEHNAHBREASRETRE

Valuation of inventories

FEWE

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit matter due to
management judgement involved in identifying those inventories which are
obsolete or/and slow-moving as they are considered no longer suitable for
use in production or saleable in the market as a result of changes in market
conditions or technology.

AREREHM S RRAEASESATSRARRME A BEE AREERT
ARTE LHEMBRTARER /4B AMRTFEREABREREE -

At December 31, 2016, the carrying amount of inventories is HK$102.2 million
(net of write-down of inventories of HK$60.7 million).
RZB-—RETZA=1T-B FENEEEAEK102.2 8B (ENREFEN
RBE60.7HET) o

In determining the level of provisions made for obsolete or/and slow-moving
inventories, the management estimates the net realisable value with reference
to the selling prices, movements, conditions, aging analysis and subsequent
usage of inventories as set out in the note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements

RETHRER/ IR HFEELNEEKTR EREL2LHEER &
WA BREAMREENHEER (WESHBRAMN 68 M WERFE

QOur procedures in relation to valuation of inventories included:

AAABFERENERFBE -

o Understanding and testing the key controls of the
Group in relation to identification of slow-moving
inventories and preparation of aging analysis of
inventories;

TRRAF ESEABRTRHETENEEEHREE
FERRA

° Understanding the key controls of the Group in relation
to the identification of obsolete inventories during our
attendance of physical inventory count;
REMSNENEEHER TR SEEEBAERER
SE BRI

o Testing the aging analysis of the inventories, on a
sample basis, to the source documents including goods
receipt notes, and warehouse and production records;
BEAFRFEREDMORR XY - BREMERCER
EEREERS:

° Discussing with management and evaluating their
assessment on the estimation of the net realisable
value of inventories for those obsolete or/and slow-
moving inventories without/with little utilisation or
movement during the year or subsequent to the end of
the reporting period; and

HERERRM R LA RASNEFEAREHREY
ﬂ/ﬁ BRAEBNRES, REHFENTEER
/?@ P R

o Assessing the reasonableness of the estimation of the
net realisable value of inventories with reference to the
selling prices, movements, conditions, aging analysis
and subsequent usage of inventories.
SERFEHERL 28 HR RROMREENAG
EAhEEER M A BT FENSEY -
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Key audit matters

BRETSE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

AANEHNAHBREASRETRE

Valuation of trade receivables

Btz nE

We identified the valuation of trade receivables as a key audit matter due to the
use of judgment and estimation by management in assessing the recoverability
of trade receivables.
AMARERERFAEREREN SR RARTARRENREARDEERE
e A6 Kbt AR -

In determining the allowance for doubtful debts, the management considers the
credit history of the trade receivables including default or delay in payments,
settlement records, subsequent settlements and aging analysis of trade
receivables.

RETREAER EREQZRARUERNGEERS  ARBRILHANT  £5
wf BREERERER KRN

At December 31, 2016, the carrying amount of trade receivables is HK$106.6
million (net of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$13.6 million) as set out in
note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

RZB-FAETZA=T-R DEaMBEREMT19ME BREN2REE
REE106.6 BET (ENBRRERERL136EET)
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Qur procedures in relation to the valuation of trade
receivables included:

AAARENESEENEFRE

o Obtaining an understanding of how allowance for
doubtful debts is estimated by management.

TREEEINAGHRRRR -

U Testing the key controls of the Group relating to the
preparation of the aging analysis of trade receivables
and the determination of credit limits, credit approval
for customers and other monitoring procedures for
recovering overdue debts.

AF ERERREUERERITNERERRERE
ERE  BEPEEHAERKDAHEHNEMERRR -

o Testing the aging analysis of the trade receivables, on
a sample basis, to the source documents including
goods delivery notes and sale invoices.
BERAERERER 2 TORE XA (BRERRAD
BRHERR) -

o Assessing the reasonableness of recoverability of
allowance for doubtful debts made by management with
reference to the credit history of the trade receivables
including default or delay in payments, settlement
records, subsequent settlements and aging analysis of
trade receivables.

SERNEFNEECE (RRRIRROERIESDM
oo BELE EREERERAIN)  UTEERER
ARERE A8 -



Annual Report 2016 —Z—/S4E#R

Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

18 M %A
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current year and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Lau King Pak.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

March 15, 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meBEaRkEtaEEkER

For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE_Z—NFt-A=t—RALEE

Nine-month

Year ended period ended

December 31, December 31,

2016 2015

BZE =

ZE-RE —Z-hEF

+=B=+—H +=A=+—H

LEFE LENEA

NOTES HK$’'M HK$' M

Kt BYEER BERET

Turnover & %8 6 565.0 536.6

Cost of goods sold 58 A A (466.0) (428.8)

Gross profit 7] 99.0 107.8

Other income E AL A 12.0 15.7

Other gains and losses H #1152 518 7 6.0 (6.0)

Research and development costs ff 3t & 725 & A (30.5) (21.8)

Distribution and selling expenses 7§ & $5 €& F 5% (77.4) 91.2)

General administrative expenses —#&1 T FIsZ (71.1) (90.5)

Interest on bank and other borrowings $R1T{EE M H (& E 2 Fl & - (0.1)

Loss before taxation Kt A 518 8 (62.0) (86.1)

Taxation {18 11 (2.0) ©0.1)
Loss for the year/period attributable to owners of the Company

RNREEB AELZANFE /HREE (64.0) (86.2)

Other comprehensive income: Eth 2 U ES ¢
Iltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or I0Ss:
Hig [t ER 7 2 18 IRAYE A -
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations
REBINEBEEREL =5 1.9 0.8
Total comprehensive expenses for the year/period AN & HiR & R 7 458 (62.1) (85.4)

Loss per share &A% EE
— Basic and diluted = — &R #E

12 (2.46) HK cents
(2.46) BHEL

(8.32) HK cents

(3.32) B EAIL
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED & # B[R B R A A

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR R R

At December 31, 2016
R=ZF—RE+=-_A=+—H

As at As at
December 31, December 31,
2016 2015

R=-ZB-R"E RIT-IF
+=ZA=t—-B +ZA=+—H

NOTES HK$'M HK$' M
Wit AYEER AEEET

Non-current assets R EIE E

Property, plant and equipment ¥7% - #23 K :& {5 13 20.9 29.0
Intangible assets &R & = 14 3.7 5.3
Goodwill £ 15 33.8 33.8
Avalilable-for-sale investments AJ fft H & #%& 16 0.9 0.9
Deferred tax assets #EEFTITHE 2= 17 - 2.0
59.3 71.0
Current assets B EE

Inventories 17 & 18 102.2 140.4
Trade and other receivables U BR 5k & E b fE L Z/ I8 19 171.8 138.6
Forward contract assets =HI& HEE 20 - 0.1
Tax recoverable A] U B 718 0.5 =
Bank balances and cash $R1745 64 MIR & 21 80.7 169.4
355.2 4485

Current liabilities ;B & &
Trade and other payables and accruals &1~ R 7k K2 E A

e RIE R Fate & A 22 145.1 187.2
Taxation payable f&&iF7IH - 0.8
145.1 188.0
Net current assets /i B) & E/5HE 210.1 260.5
Net assets &&= FE 269.4 3315
Capital and reserves BRA K
Share capital B2 23 260.0 260.0
Reserves f# 9.3 71.4
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ZA"NA Bl 7B A FE(G 25 269.3 331.4
Non-controlling interests FF2 A% #E %5 0.1 0.1
Total equity #4258 269.4 331.5
The consolidated financial statements on pages 111 to 192 FIMNMBEEFI1REZEAUBERERER S
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of T—t+tF-AThHEEESHERTREE
Directors on March 15, 2017 and are signed on its behalf 7 WA TIATREKESE
by:
FOO PIAU PHANG Ql MIAO HERE 1B
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR FE g
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERSER

For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE_T-—RFE+-_A=1—HLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAREE A
Retained
Share profit/ Non-
Share Share Other options  Translation (accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve losses) Total interests Total
fIRE £% RERF/ FER
k& RHEEE Hitfk s BERE (ZAER) B Bi @t
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BYEER BW¥PEn ABEER ABEEx AWEEn EWEEn EWEEn A¥EEn B¥EER
At April 1, 2015
R=Z-hENMA—H 258.9 164.0 325 1.2 (100.8) 54.1 409.9 01 410.0
Exchange differences arising
from translation of foreign
operations
BEENRBEL CESER - - - - 0.8 - 0.8 - 08
Loss for the period
rHEER - - - - - (86.2) (86.2) - (86.2)
Total comprehensive income
(expenses) for the period
AERRERE (Fx) 28 - - - - 08 (86.2) (85.4) - (85.4)
Shares issued upon exercise
of share options
TRBREMEIT R 11 1.0 - (04) - - 17 - 17
Release of tranglation reserve upon
deregistration of a subsidiary
RASEMBELAmERN S
BERHE - - - - 5.2 - 5.2 - 5.2
Lapse of share options
BREAN - - - (0.8) - 08 - - -
At December 31, 2015
AZZ-RAETZA=1—H 260.0 165.0 325 - (94.8) (31.3) 331.4 0.1 3315
Exchange differences arising
from translation of foreign
operations
BEBIRBELERZR - - - - 19 - 19 - 1.9
Loss for the year
REEFR - - - - - (64.0) (64.0) - (64.0)
Total comprehensive income
(expenses) for the year
FER2ENA (B 28 - - - - 1.9 (64.0) (62.1) - (62.1)
At December 31, 2016
RZB-AETZA=1-H 260.0 165.0 325 - (92.9) (95.3) 269.3 0.1 269.4
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ~ & BIFE A R A &)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mEBRERER

For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE-Z—A~Ft-A=+—HLLEE

Nine-month
Year ended period ended
December 31, December 31,
2016 2015
BE-Z—XF #EZE-T—h#&
+=—HA=+—H +=ZA=+—H
LHEE LENEA
HK$' M HKS$' M
BEEET BB EHST
Cash flows from operating activities & &/EEEL 2R LA S
Loss before taxation B gl 2 &5 18 (62.0) (86.1)
Adjustments for: F%& :
Interest income F| E4ZA (0.3) 0.9
Interest expenses F8.3 H - 0.1
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #)% - #22 &E 2T E 15.3 13.5
Amortisation of intangible assets /& &= < # 1 1.9 3.1
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
HEME - #eES REREz () B8 (8.0) 0.5
Impairment losses recognised on trade receivables
FEWBR R 2 R E 1R - 0.5
Write-down of (reversal of write-down of) inventories, net
FE 2 Mo CFEMURER) - F58 25.1 (5.1)
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary 7 ki B A 7 2 &8 - 5.4
Exchange loss [& 3 /E18 2.9 2.9
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
LEEREPRIKERERE (25.1) (66.1)
Decrease in inventories 17 & J 4> 11.2 30.6
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables
JFEE M50 B 50 e LAt B LR TR (3 m) R 2> (32.8) 33.5
Decrease in trade and other payables and accruals
JRE AT BR 5 e ELAth B A< SR TR [ TR AR B R (41.4) (38.9)
Decrease in forward contracts & 284 #3 4> 0.1 0.9
Cash used in operations &% & ENFT I & (88.0) (39.4)
Tax paid 2 4% 38 (1.5) 0.7)
Net cash used in operating activities 484 /& B)FT IR & /558 (89.5) (40.1)
Investing activities % & & &)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
HEME - SR MREPEHIA 8.3 0.2
Interest received B4 &8 0.3 0.9
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B8 & ¥ « #23 K R 1 (7.5) 8.9)
Payment for patents and trademarks ZF & 12 2 {38 (0.3) (1.1)
Short-term bank deposits withdrawn H2EX 52 H3ER1T & BiTF 3¢ - 50.7
Net cash from investing activities % & BB TSR & F 58 0.8 41.8
Financing activities &4 & 2
Repayment of bank loans E:&#R1TE - (18.9)
Interest paid B/ F.8 - 0.1)
Proceeds from issue of shares 217 I FT{5 2R - 1.7
Net cash used in financing activities Bt & & B FT IR & 558 - (17.3)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 3R & & ERIIREHE 2 E D E5E (88.7) (15.6)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year/period
F/ B Re RERBRSER 169.4 185.0
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year/period, representing cash
and bank balances & “HiR 2 e RERRSHEE - AR KRITER 80.7 169.4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability. The shares
of the Company are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the
Corporate Information section to the annual report.

The immediate holding company of the Company
is Hongtu High Technology Int’l Inc. (“Hongtu
(Seychelles)”) which holds 50.42% of the entire issued
shares of the Company. In the opinion of directors
of the Company, Sanpower Group Co., Ltd. is the
ultimate controlling shareholder of Jiangsu Hongtu High
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu Hongtu”) which is the
parent company of Hongtu (Seychelles). The shares
of Jiangsu Hongtu are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 600122).

The Company acts as an investment holding company
while its subsidiaries are engaged in the design,
development, manufacture, sales and marketing of
various consumer electronic products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Taking into account the Group’s operating performance
and business prospects, internal resources and
potential financial support from Sanpower Group Co.,
Ltd, the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the Group expects to have sufficient working
capital to finance its operations and to meet its
financial obligations in the next twelve months from 31
December 2016. Accordingly, the directors consider
that the Group will be in a position to continue as a
going concern and have prepared the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.

e PR R MR

For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE_Z—"Et+-_A=+—HItFE

—REIE

AR DR EREERR L EREHE
RAF - HRHEEBBA X 5HER
AR (TBFR]) £ - AD MM E
EREBEEME IR FRT AT
EHARE -

Hongtu High Technology Int'l Inc.
(THongtu (Seychelles)]) BARRAR Z
BEEZERQAARFEHEERARFZH
EBEITRMN5042% c XABEERAE
“HEBERATBRIHLE SRR
MABERAR(I#ZEE]) (AHongtu
(Seychelles) B & A &) 2 Fx &R IE IR IR
R IHLZENRNNR EEZFSFX S
F (B 5% : 600122) ©

ARRT—RHREZERDR - FMHEB R
AZEBEBRRT A% 8E ¥
ERHEESZEEFHEEM °

HAMBBRRARNRAIZEEEEE

EXT
REMBHRRIEREE

REBASBENLEERAREBNS
NMERE=ZREEBR AR ELEY
BX#F ARBEERA EHAKE
ERAMNESEETREBEERNES R
mEREBE-T-ARE+-_A=1T—HB#&
ARE12EANPBEE - Bt - EFR
RAEEREREBARFERLEREER
2 WERFBELKLEEERUEURAUHK
WK
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED & # B[R B R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ISR R M R

For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE-Z—A~Ft-A=+—HLLEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

The corresponding comparative amounts shown for
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity, consolidated statement of cash
flows and related notes cover a nine-month period from
April 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015 and therefore may
not be comparable with amounts shown for the current
year. The reporting period date of the Group has been
changed from March 31 to December 31 since the prior
financial period because the directors of the Company
determined to bring the annual reporting period date of
the Group to in line with that of the holding company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the
current year.

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of acceptable methods
and HKAS 38 of depreciation and amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer plants

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities: Applying the
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 consolidation exception

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs

2012-2014 cycle

REMBRR ZFEREE (B

REABHFEREMEHEWER  G4%
nBBE KEBHSRERKAENGE
B ZHABREBHEFEFREH _ZT—AF
mMA—HBE-Z—RF+-_A=+—H
IEhEAKRAAEEEERNFELE
A8 - AL B 2 3R4E Hi B % Al B B
MO =ZA=+t—HEXA+_-_A=1+—
B TEHRARRESAEFEAEED
FERESBHHPETER AT -

A REETE BB HREER
(BBMBREER L) 2ER

REERHER 2B RBYHHRELER
IEEES

RAFEE  AEBERRBABEESS
B Rg([EHBETEAE])RMAEN T
BAEMBRELEINEETA

EEMBREENENR(E UBERAXBEZNE

%) HeEy
SRR HEH8
(t537%)

BEEHEAE 165 R EEURRNAERS
éi?ﬂ%ﬂ%%%ﬂ% #Hh
ol

BEACHEANE 165 R B¥: EEMEY
BEEQHENE 415 (B
iIK)

EAMKRSENE10% . REE
BANEREENZ 125 %
&i?@ﬁﬁ%%%%ﬂ%
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BB B Rs £ EANBREEN-Z
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

The application of the above amendments to HKFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments®

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers and the related
amendments®

HKFRS 16 Leases®

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and measurement of

share-based payment
transactions”

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial
instruments”, with HKFRS 4
“Insurance contracts”
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or contribution of assets
and HKAS 28 between an investor and
its associate or joint venture®
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure initiative'

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of deferred tax assets

for unrealised losses'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
to be determined.

e PR R

For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE_Z—NFt-A=t—RALEE

WA R EMERT BB HREER
([EBMBHREEA ) 2BA @

REERHER 2B RBYHHRELER
1EET A ()
RAEERBALEEHHRELLE
AN HAKBEAFERBEFEZH
BRAMKR RSt E556 W BRE
Bz BRBEYEEAZE -

CEME R RERZHET REERT 2
ERYBHREEL

NG E I R R A T 52 MR M B E R
EMZHATRBET 2BV B RESE
Al

EEMBREREIR SWIA
BEMBREENE 15 FPANKEREE

7

ERMBRERNE 6% HE°
BEMBREENE 2R  UROAERNNK

CHEN XHNDER
=2
Al 2
ERMBREENE4T EREARGRSE
(BFTA) BISO% [2aT
A RBERMK®R

EERE A R

BRam 1
BAMBREENFE 10 REZFBERERA
REAGIERNF28T ELERZRMNEE

CHES) HEFTE "
BAEGEMNETH BB

(fE7T )
BRGHEAUF 125 AAERBEEDE

(B3I ) EHBEE

'R E A F-A-HRZERBZF
EEARAER o

P RZTE-NF-A-—BHRZEFABRZEF
EHARI AR

R NF-A-—BRZERABZF
JEEARAERR o

‘ Ezf—irﬁéi Bk &RFEm < FEHHEE
ﬁ(‘ o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ISR R M R

For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE-Z—NFt-A=t—HLLEE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets and
impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the
Group are:

all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair
value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets,
and that have contractual terms that give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at
FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair value at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.

WA R EMERT BB HREER
([EBMBHREEA ) 2BA @

ERYBHRELENEIR EMTA |
TRV BRELENEIRIIANEHEE
REBEERBERZDBENMTEN
HE °

HEAEBEEHENBTENBRELERIFE 9K
ZEBRE :

s HEFABUBMEEAFEORLENE
RHNFETREERREBIZEHNK
RERNFEFE - FHEFHRER
BRANKBRENRESRERB W
PIRANBERRERMAERSMNAR
ERAREBRASHEMBEREENR
TRENEHRE  —RREKRE
AR A E - B TR
NEIREaHOUERSREREE
ERMEERBNNEBRATHA
RARAXNAERHREERSE
MAENEReRE(RERMEENS
HMERTNEEBRES) A FE
AR EEWETE - TAEEM
BEBRERBARENEREEH
FMARBIZERFEE - I R
BEREMBRESEANFEON - B
AR HENSTAEEREME2E
W REFIBRAKRE GERIEEERR
2) RN FENERES  RAEREK
ARBE R AR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

° in relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under
HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires
an entity to account for expected credit losses
and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at December 31, 2016,
application of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a
material impact on the classification and measurement
of the Group’s financial assets. The Group’s available-
for-sale investment, including those currently stated at
cost less impairment, will either be measured as fair
value through profit or loss or be designated as FVTOCI
(subject to fulfillment of the designation criteria). In
addition, the expected credit loss model may result
in early provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets
measured at amortised cost.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”,
HKAS 11 “Construction contracts” and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

e PR R

For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE_T-—RFE+-_A=1THLEE

WA R EMERT BB HREER
([EBMBHREEA ) 2BA @

BEMBHREZENE R EMTA ]

(&)

e HEMEEMBEMS  HBEEE
AAEAEIRREREELEEER
BEAGFELR  EEMBEREE
AIFORBRERAHAEEERERN
AE-BEHEEERERARTER
AREREEDHBRBEEBHEL
ZEEHREEHENES AR A
RREE R R B 72 #8A R H &
HoEr BAGERLEEESH
BOEREERBRE -

REXAEER_-_FT—-R"EFT_A=1t—
BT ARRREERE  RBR
ERAEMBRELRFIRAEH AL
ENeREENIBEMABELEEAY
g AEENAHHERE (BREBAR
AR B S B ) Al R E @B et iR~ ¥
BIRIEES/SRAFEFARMEE
Wt (AFERIEERE)GE - i
BHEEERREARERHAEER
BHERAAENEREERREENE
SEEELIRTRE -

ERUBREENEISRIBEFEL
Wy 2% |
FEMBBRELERNEIGRA/ERHER
PEAEENBRARDEFNEE—2
EER - EEMERELEIE15H/ER
% SERRAEHENETBESEAE18
I BEGHERNFE IR [EE
B MEEREN W ERERIES o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE-Z—A~Ft-A=+—HLLEE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers” (continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

e  Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e  Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

WA R EMERT BB HREER
([EBMBHREEA ) 2BA @

BBYBREEANF15RIFFEN
Wz |(4)
FRMBHREERE15RONZORAG
EREATRRZERARARIRZE
EnERBEERESHRE ERART
FEZAGRERIMBA WS - ZER
S A R a1 H (B 25 B

s FE—H:BREFTFPIUMNAHN
s FIH:BREHNTHEORME
s F=H EBEXHE

s FWF:BRXHENEESHNTH
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REEBMBERELENE155 - BERN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers” (continued)

In 2016, the HKICPA issued clarifications to HKFRS
15 in relation to the identification of performance
obligations, principal versus agent considerations, as
well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result
in more disclosures, however, the directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the timing
and amounts of revenue recognised in the respective
reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 "Leases"

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS
16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts
on the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled
by a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and
finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and
is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all
leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and
leases of low value assets.

e PR R

For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE_T-—RFE+-_A=1THLEE

WA R EMERT BB HREER
([EBMBHREEA ) 2BA @

BEBYBRELEAF15RIFFEL
Wz |(4)

—E-RF BEGHHAERMEE
B BHRELNFE15R2EE - ABA
BERBHNEMRE TRERERERHE
BRI ERES -

AAREFHRHERERETEYBRS
EUFISRIEEHELHRE  BAR
REEHAHEAE LMK REELERE 15
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ISR R M R

For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE-Z—A~Ft-A=+—HLLEE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 16 "Leases" (continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured
at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability
is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as
the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For
the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing
cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned
use and those classified as investment properties
while other operating lease payments are presented
as operating cash flows. Under the HKFRS 16, lease
payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated
into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as operating and financing cash flows
respectively.

WA R EMERT BB HREER
([EBMBHREEA ) 2BA @

FREMBRELEE 1655 HE |(F)
EREEENSIZKATE  BERAK
R (MEE T BISMEIER SN ) I R 5t & K
MEEBEAE URBHERENERE
MAEMELHE HERENTZHE
EXREGEERXN) 2HREFE - BB
% HEAGEER(APEE)FE LA
ERBEARBEEITNZEFLAE -
RREREDEME - AEEB ATHE
NHERRZIAEEABEEL RS
BRAREVMFENEHELHEBRNKRER
enE EMEeMEFENZ2I ALK
BHERNE REFBEUBRELELSE
165 - BEEEREMNEERES DR
EXERMEEMD » A5 R AKE R E
BEREREZS -



Annual Report 2016 —Z— /54

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 16 "Leases" (continued)

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require a
lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or
a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 16.

As at December 31, 2016, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of HK$69.2
million as disclosed in note 27.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CQO”").

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods.
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(continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within
the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or
value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the period are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.
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(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)
All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses,
if any, and is presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash generating unit (or groups of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the
other assets on a pro rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit (or groups of cash-
generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts
receivable for goods sold in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities, as described below.

Revenues from the sale of goods and moulds are
recognised when the goods and moulds are delivered
and titles have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than construction
in progress) are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.
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(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes. Construction
in progress is carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories
of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the asset are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the leasee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised
as assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception
of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to
the lessor is included in the consolidated statement of
financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses are
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they are
directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case
they are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
general policy on borrowing costs (see the accounting
policy below).

Operating lease payments, including the cost of
acquiring land held under operating leases, are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.
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(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Product development costs
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase
of an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of
the following have been demonstrated:

— the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

— the intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

—  the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

— how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

— the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and
to use or sell the intangible asset; and

— the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.
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(continued)

Product development costs (continued)

The amount initially recognised for an internally-
generated intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure
incurred from the date when the intangible asset first
meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no
internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
product development cost is recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred on the same basis
as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Subsequent to initial recognition, an internally-
generated intangible asset is measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets
that are recognised separately.

Patents and trademarks

Patents and trademarks are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment loss. Amortisation is
calculated on a straight line basis over the estimated
useful economic life of the relevant patents and
trademarks.
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(continued)

Impairment loss on tangible and intangible
assets (other than goodwill)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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(continued)

Impairment loss on tangible and intangible
assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generated unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories are determined
on a weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

e PR R MR

For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE_T-—RFE+-_A=1THLEE

EER = H+B-(5ﬁ E

BEREREEZ2RE(TEREEE)
(&)
M—IBEE(K—BIBREMN) 2 lE €
BT OREEREE AIZEEE (53—
BIIREN) v REESHRZEE KD
S RNOoMBEEIER  BEEEH
BEASEZHBERMEE(NE) 2KEA
B HENZENSHEEZE@BES
EEZRLOIH BRI EMEE - EEKREA
BETgREERNREAALBEREEERKAE
(WAstE)  EFRAEE(WAEE) &
TZERma  PEEZEEEMNREEEH
ﬁmﬁ”W¢ME@§Fﬂﬁu fic o BB
EEg RN IEEER o

WREREERLERE  AZAAE
(KAL) 2 5 F AR 5 7 B
SHEIEITEMEE  BEN%Z BT
ETEREBRRALE (% — BB
fi7) B8 1 4 [ 5K 7 HH TR (8 4R P B
£ BR T (8 = 7, 1 6598 7 1 BB B ¥R 7 1R
2 .

FEDRBRARENAIZRFEREZ
BRIEE AR - FERAERNETHE
SHHE o BB IR E R B A i B R
EFBMEFA T IR AN REERMTNAR

133



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED & BB AR A 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ISR R MR

For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE-Z—NFt-A=t—HLLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

134

(continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans, Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and state-
managed retirement benefits scheme are recognised
as expenses when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the period. Taxable profit differs from “profit before
taxation” as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill.
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(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary difference associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax
or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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(continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
assets, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.
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(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and
other receivables and bank balances and cash) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where
the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated as available-for-sale or are
not classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables or held to maturity
investments.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end of each
reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment
of financial assets below).
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(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial assets, the estimate future cash flows of
the financial assets have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e breach of contract, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets are assessed for impairment on a
collective basis even if they were assessed not to be
impaired individually. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of trade receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the credit period granted, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on trade receivables.
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(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets that are carried at cost, the amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade and other receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss. When trade and other receivables are considered
uncollectible, they are written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered
to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimate future cash payments (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premium or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.
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(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and any
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) using exchange rate prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributable to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal
of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate
that includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.
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(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not recognised
in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e.
partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements
that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amounts of the cash-
generating units to which goodwill has been allocated.
Significant judgement and assumptions were required
by management of the Group in assessing the
impairment on recoverable amounts of cash generating
units. The recoverable amounts are determined with
reference to the value in use of the relevant cash
generating units, which required significant assumptions
on discount rates, growth rates and expected gross
margin in order to derive the net present value of the
discounted future cash flow model. Where there is a
downward revision of discount future cash flow model
or when the actual cash flows are less than expected,
there will be a change of recoverable amount, a material
impairment loss may arise. At December 31, 2016, the
carrying amount of goodwill is HK$33.8 million (2015:
HK$33.8 million). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in note 15.

e PR R MR

For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE_T-—RFE+-_A=1THLEE

FTESEBE (&)

HNEE ()

BESN - BEER D B — B B X R ME L R
BYARKRBEREHZME QR 2 EH
mE BHEHDEZRFERLZRIE
et AJFEER iR - MAE TR EBEE AR
R ERAAEME L E (FIa038 12 h
EWERRRAELTHEL REHAE
BREBATENRHAERES) - KT
DMEZRFTELZBNEF D BERE -

EET I RAEEENERRER

ATEEBERNEIERRENEMBR
BEMRIEEEN B ETERR
AREY T EYREFEEEARRT
MEE;BERAEFELEANAE -

BE N ETRE
BErREStREAGTEIEREZ
BIRBEMNANE SR - R HRIRE
AT i E & SR ER AR S EEIEEE
HERHE RER - TRESEIIES
ZHAARBENNERAEEREE  H
AMFRE  ERENBHEMNXRED
EABRAZEZFARAKESRERN
ZEBRE- - HARERKRERERAD
fFHA NTERAEERRESRINE
H RO HKEEE  AEELE
ARBE R_ZFE—R"F+_A=1+—
B AEZREERB¥3B8EET(Z
T—HF - B¥338EET) - AIKEE
Bt ETEZFIBRHIE 16 EE -

143



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED & BB AR A 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ISR R M R

For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE-Z—NFt-A=t—HILEE

144

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Write-down of inventories

The management of the Group estimates the net
realisable value with reference to the selling prices,
movements, conditions, aging analysis and subsequent
usage of inventories, and makes provisions for obsolete
or/and slow-moving inventories identified when the net
realisable value is lower than the cost. The identification
of obsolete or/and slow-moving inventories requires
the use of estimation of the net realisable value of
inventories. Where the expectation on net realisable
value is lower than the cost for certain items, a write-
down of inventories may arise. As at December
31, 2016, the carrying amounts of inventories are
HK$102.2 million (net of write-down of inventories of
HK$60.7 million) (as at December 31, 2015: HK$140.4
million (net of write-down of inventories of HK$76.5
million)). During the year ended December 31, 2016,
the Group has recognised in consolidated statement
of profit or loss a write-down of inventories of HK$25.1
million (nine-month period ended December 31, 2015:
reversals of write-down of inventories HK$5.1 million).

Estimated allowance for doubtful debts

The Group makes allowance for doubtful debts
based on an assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables. Allowance is applied to trade receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be collectible. In determining
whether an allowance for doubtful debts is required,
the Group takes into consideration of the credit history
of the trade receivables including default or delay in
payments, settlement records, subsequent settlements
and aging analysis of trade receivables. Where the
expectation of the recoverability of trade receivables
is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of trade receivables and
allowance for doubtful debts in the period in which such
estimate has changed. As at December 31, 2016, the
carrying amounts of trade receivables are HK$106.6
million (net of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$13.6
million) (as at December 31, 2015: HK$99.9 million (net
of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$13.2 million)).

Bt RABEEMENEEZRIR (&)

T E 1R

AEEEEEBK2EFENHEHEER
gE MK RROMTEEBRNBRG
STATEIREE  RMMRER SHAEET
B A] 3R R B K 5 A AN B A B4
e BRMRER, A HETERERG
EENEREE - MBS ERFEE
BERAETEBEKA  AIAJEEETEM
e RZE—RF+_A=1+—"H " F
EMEREEEABE102.2F 8 T (KK
GFEMRE®Ye0.7EET) (RZE—H
F+-_H=+—H8: B¥1404BE T
(B TFEMBREE766BETL)) °
REBE-_TE—X"E+_A=1+—HIHF
B AEEERGABaRERTEM
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51 BEBTT) °

RERMEETEME
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ME & REEZ W E - BB Y UK
RERIENEBE REERETEZEHRE
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Mahet =28 BT ERKEROER
AEMRZGETEEHHMOREKE
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HRREREEE136EET) (N-T
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Turnover represents the amounts received and
receivable for goods sold by the Group to outside
customers, net of discounts and sales related taxes.
Turnover represents mainly Oregon Scientific branded
sales (“Branded Sales”) and Original Equipment
Manufacturer and Original Design Manufacturer sales
(“OEM/ODM Sales”).

The reportable and operating segments were namely
Sports, fitness and healthcare, Smart learning products,
Time and weather, Telecommunication, as well as,
Wellness and beauty. In addition, energy and other
electronic products which are individually insignificant
were aggregated and reported under Others.

Sports, fitness - design, development,
and healthcare manufacture, and sales and
marketing of sports, fitness and
healthcare electronic products

Smart learning - design, development,
products manufacture, and sales and
marketing of smart learning
products
Time and weather - design, development,

manufacture, and sales and
marketing of time and weather
electronic products

Telecommunication - design, development,
manufacture, and sales and
marketing of telecommunication
products

Wellness and beauty -  design, development,
manufacture, and sales and
marketing of wellness and beauty
products

Others - design, development,
manufacture, and sales and
marketing of energy and other
electronic products

e PR R MR

For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE_T-—RE+-_A=tHLEE

PNk :‘ZB

7]

\|]:|]\>]”

3

EEBRRAEERINSIZEFLEE
mmBE W R EWFKIE - ThHBRITHN R
HEEEN - X EEZRKKXOregon
ScientificmEHE ([mEHEE ) kR
mﬁ%‘zL&)@“ﬁ%éﬁﬁﬁ%((ﬁ%ﬁ%
1B BB REHEE]) -

K

AREREEDHADANAES  BEK
2 BB BEER KREAERRR &
Bl REBRESR © I BERAMEME
FEMBARERNASRE TN EMNRSE
Rﬁm§m°

B RER - it R® - BGE
e pr L/(&ﬁﬁ’%&iﬁﬁz_
P REMEECZE
TEM

BRBZEM — R RE - 2E
A RSHE R R B8
YEEM

Rl e KR — R R 2E
PARSHE K HiE R R
BRRZETEmM

z — BtBE B
MRSHERERER
EDD

RERER — &t % B
WA RSHE I e R AR
REBZEm

H A - HKET PR BE
AR SHE M ERER
NMEMEFE M

145



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED & #BIFE B R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R YR

For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE-Z—AFt-A=+—HLEE
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 2 EPER (&)
The Group disaggregated its turnover based on REBIRBEHEERRRERE  BE
Branded Sales and OEM/ODM Sales and reported RGN ER S B XRBIRETFTETEL
to the Chief operating decision maker (“CODM”). No BARABA(NETELZEREZA]) - BEH
separate results of Branded Sales and OEM/ODM Sales EREEFERE R RS I E R
were reported to the CODM. HERETFTTFTEZERTA ©
Segment revenue and results DI HE N E S
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and NEBIRZERImRED Pz WE L E
results by operating and reportable segments: EONTT -
Sports, Smart
fitnessand  learning Time Wellness Reportable
healthcare  products and and segments
&g B#  weather Telecom-  beauty total
BER #a FE munication #E  AHE  Others Total
fEg Em RER BR  REE  SH4E Hitr am
HKYM  HKSM  HKSM  HKEM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKS'M
BYEER AYEEn BYEER BYEER AY¥EEn BYEEnR AYEER BEYEER
Year ended December 31, 2016
BE-3-AE+tZA=t-HLEE
Segment revenue 2l
Branded Sales i E 149 40.2 1323 - 15.2 202.6 7.0 200.6
OEM/ODM Sales RS/ Rikat G HE 2437 - 31.3 55.6 - 330.6 24.8 355.4
Total segment revenue 2 M= 45 258.6 40.2 163.6 55.6 15.2 533.2 31.8 565.0
Segment (loss) profit 2 55 (&518) & 7 (19.7) 18 (14.9) (0.7) @.7) (37.1) (7.0 (44.1)
Unallocated income KA 2 A 8.3
Unallocated expense K& 2 Fixk (26.2)
Loss before taxation B AR (62.0
Nine-month period ended
December 31, 2015
BZ-2-RET-A=+-HLAEA
Segment revenue 2RIl
Branded Sales i E 14.2 3.6 1222 - 179 1899 18 1917
OEM/ODM Sales ekt / Rikrt Bt HE 2478 - 29.1 515 - 3084 165 344.9
Total segment revenue 2 S 45 262.0 35.6 15146 o115 17.9 5183 18.3 536.6
Segment (loss) profit 258 (518 &7 (39) (8.5) (23.7) 20 6.1) (40.1) 0.1) (40.2)
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary
IR =N o (5.4)
Unallocated income K& B2 2 A 09
Unallocated expense A& 2 H % (#1.3)
Finance costs B& LA 0.1)
Loss before taxation B Hi A5 18 (86.1)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenue and results (continued)
Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There were no
inter-segment sales in the year/period.

Segment (loss) profit represents the (loss) profit earned
by each segment without allocation of interest income,
loss on deregistration of a subsidiary, gain on disposal
of leasehold land and building, unallocated expense
such as central administrative cost and finance costs.
This is the measure reported to the Group’s CODM, for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

No segment assets and segment liabilities are
presented as such amounts are not reviewed by the
Group’s CODM for the purpose of resource allocation
and performance assessment or otherwise regularly
provided to the Group’s CODM.

e PR R MR

For the year ended December 31, 2016
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For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE_T-—NFE+_A=1+—HLEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER (&)
Other segment information Hih o EpER
Sports,
fitness Smart Time Wellness  Reportable
and learning and and segment
healthcare products weather Telecom- beauty total
B9 R B BB munication RER nHE Others Total
kg  #EER RXR g5 EX Y L At a8
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HKS'M HK$'M HK$'M
E¥EEn  BMAER  A¥EEn  BMAER  A¥EEn  BMAEBR  A¥EEn  BMAER
Year ended December 31, 2016
BE-2-AE+-AST-HLEE
Amounts included in the measure
of segment profit or loss:
AP RRIRERE ATHIFE -
Depreciation and amortisation
NERER
- property, plant and equipment
RV E 36 41 56 08 06 147 06 153
- intangible assets
-BVEAE - 05 06 - - 11 08 19
Write-down of inventories
S 9.9 25 25 18 43 210 41 25.1
Gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment
HEME  KBRRE NG (0.6) (1.5 (5.0) - (0.6) (7.7 (K] (8.0)
Nine-month period ended
December 31, 2015
BE-E-1F+-A=t-HLAMER
Amounts included in the measure of
segment profit or loss:
PR E R A THIHE -
Depreciation and amortisation
HEREH
- property, plant and equipment
W% RERRE 44 28 41 08 11 132 03 135
- intangible assets
-ElAE 0.1 10 13 - 0.1 25 06 31
(Reversal of) write-down of inventories
(BE) #RTFE (1) (1.8) 55 0.1) 2.2) (3.7) (14) ()
Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment
HENE  KRREHBE 02 0.1 02 - - 05 - 05
Impairment losses on trade receivable
R RERE - - 05 - - 05 - 05
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Asia Pacific,
Europe and Americas (representing the United States
of America and Latin America). The Group carries out
its manufacturing and trading operations in Hong Kong
and other parts of the People's Republic of China (the
“PRC”). The Group also operates marketing offices in
Europe, the United States of America, Latin America
and other Asia Pacific countries.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of
customers are detailed below:

e PR R MR

For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE_Z—NFt-A=t—RALEE

DEERE (&)

i & &

AREBE 2 EBALRIEANRE - BUMNREM
(BEBRERNTEM) - REBREER
mEE AREME(FE]) HMbiEiE
TRERETEZER - NEB TR
M EZEH T EMNREMIBRAEBER
REMGHERERE °

AEBRBINATP 2WEHREBEREP
FrEEmEl D - BT

Revenue from
external customers
REIREF 2 W@

Nine-month

Year ended period ended
December 31, December 31,
2016 2015
BE-Z—XF #EZE-_T—hF
+=HA=+—-H +TZH=+—H

ILFE 1ENE A

HK$'M HK$ M

BEEET BEEET

Americas FM 217.1 170.8
Europe BUMN 225.3 247.5
Asia Pacific 25 KX [& 122.6 118.3
565.0 536.6

Non-current assets and financial instruments of the
Group are substantially located in the PRC including
Hong Kong.

AEBZERBDEER SR T ABKRE
DURFPE(BEEE) °
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For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE-Z—A~Ft-A=+—HLLEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. D EBEFR (&)
Information about major customers FEERFEER
Revenue from customers of the corresponding year/ RIBEEE HEAANEBEZE B 10%
period contributing over 10% of the total sales of the lETE v R B RSN ¢

Group are as follows:

Nine-month

Year ended period ended
December 31,  December 31,
2016 2015

BE-ZE—XRFE HE_ZT—AF
+=—H=+—-H +=A=+—H

LFE LENEA
HK$’'M HK$’ M
BEEETT BB BT
Customer A' EF A’ 16% N/A 7 A 2
' Revenue from OEM/ODM sales. ' KARK RERE SRR EEHENK
2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% g *EFEHQ SRR AE BB 10% A
of the total revenue of the Group. o
7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HiFrEREE
Nine-month

Year ended period ended
December 31, December 31,
2016 2015
BE-ZT—xF #E—_ZT—HF
+=ZA=+—-8B +ZA=+—H
HFEE LEAE A
HK$’'M HK$' M
BEEETT BEBETT

Impairment losses recognised in respect of trade receivables

FEWARIER < BEEE - (0.5)
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary (Note) 5T $5H18 A &) 2 E18 (#f:7) - (5.4)
Recovery of bad debt written off & #fi #5352 8R ~ Y [al - 2.9
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment

HEYZE - HES R 2 Wk (E1R) 8.0 (0.5)
Net exchange losses [& i E518/FE (2.0) (2.5)

6.0 (6.0)
Note: Included in the loss on deregistration of a subsidiary for 3T - )E]

the nine-month period ended December, 31 2015 were
exchange difference released from translation reserve
of HK$ 5.2 million (2016: nil).

ENNI@

i
|
I
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For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE_Z—NFt-A=t—RALEE

8. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 8. BEiAIEE
Nine-month
Year ended period ended
December 31, December 31,
2016 2015
BE-Z—XF #EZE-_T—hF
+=HA=+—-H +Z=ZH=+—H
LEE 1ENE A
HK$’'M HK$' M
BEEET BEEET
Loss before taxation has been arrived at after charging:
MRITATE R 2R T 5% A -
Directors’ emolument (note 9) &&= Bl (A7 9) 4.1 2.2
Retirement benefits scheme contributions for other staff
Hh 8 TRINRIEFT B 5K 16.1 15.8
Salaries for other staff H{th & T 2 T& 180.9 170.5
Other benefits for staff other than directors R EE4) - B T 7 EfhizF| 2.3 1.5
Other staff costs Hfh 8 TR 199.3 187.8
Total staff costs B T 244858 203.4 190.0
Less: Staff costs included in research and development costs
B IIARARRFAEER 2 ETHA (6.5) (5.7)
196.9 184.3
Amortisation of product development costs (included in research and
development costs) = i F B A B (P A B M FAER) 0.9 1.6
Amortisation of patents and trademarks ZLF K F 12 # 4 1.0 1.5
Auditors’ remuneration #% 2% A i< 2.7 4.2

Cost of inventories recognised as expense (including
write-down of inventories amounting to HK$25.1 million
(nine-month period ended December 31, 2015: reversals of
write-down of inventories of HK$5.1 million))
EHRRAXZFEREN (BEFEMR  2BREK225188T
(BE=Z—AF+=ZA=+—RHILNEAARHH
FEMREDEES1BET)) 466.0 428.8

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4% - #28 M &E 2 & 15.3 13.5
Operating lease rentals in respect of &L= FH#)H &
— office equipment and motor vehicles — /A = :& 5 & /& 0.1 0.4
— rented premises — &% 26.7 26.0
and after crediting to other income: ¥ 2t AEAMUALAT :
Interest income F 2 A 0.3 0.9
Sales of moulds and scraps $H§& 15 & K gt 0.6 5.7
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For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE_T-—NFE+_A=1+—HLEE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EERFEMTHAEHE

EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 12 ENSENTI2B(ZZE—HF : 185)
(2015: 18) directors and the chief executive of the EENTETRAEZRAZHMESWT -

Company were as follows:

Basic Retirement

salaries benefits Share-

and scheme based

allowances contributions payments
Fees BEXFe BAEN UARGAEE Total
He )59 3: BE 3 2R e
HK$’'M HK$’'M HKS$’'M HK$’'M HKS$’'M

EREET  E¥EER  EWEEr  E¥EER  EWEER

Year ended December 31, 2016
BE-Z2—X"E+-A=t+—-HLEE
Executive directors: #]77& % -
Mr. Foo Piau Phang
FEELE - - - - -
Mr. Hou Kaai Wern (Note 1)
RS (ffat 1) - 3.0 - - 3.0

Non-executive directors: FE&i7T& % -
Mr. Xin Kexia

FrKEE - - - - -
Mr. Song Rongrong

RERERFTE - - - - -
Mr. Shi Changyun

ERELE - - - - -
Mr. Qi Miao

WP E - - - - -
Mr. Jing Tian (Note 2)

FIREE (Fi7t2) - - - - -
Ms. Wang Yang (Note 3)

FiHat (Hiz23) - - - - -

Independent non-executive directors:

BUHHTEE -
Mr. Yang Xiongsheng

Yyt 0.3 - - - 0.3
Ms. Zhao Yuhong

HFA L 0.3 - - - 0.3
Dr. Li Quan

FREEL 0.3 - - - 0.3
Mr. Duh Jia-Bin

HFBEE 0.2 - - - 0.2

1.1 3.0 - - 4.1

152



Annual Report 2016 —Z— /54

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TSR R M EE

For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE_Z—NFt-A=t—RALEE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 9. BERIETHASME (&)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Basic Retirement

salaries benefits Share-

and scheme based

allowances contributions payments
Fees BEXEe BAEN UARGHEEE Total
e ROREE sHEIHRR PANEN wE
HK$' M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$' M

EREEL  AKEERT  E%AEERr A¥aERT B¥AER

Nine-month period ended
December 31, 2015
BE-Z-A¥+=-A=t+—-HLIEA
Executive directors: B/ TE % -
Mr. Foo Piau Phang (Note 4)
R E (f1iE4) - - - - _
Mr. See Chi Kwok, Felix (Note 5)
HEEB % & (F/7256) - 1.3 - - 1.3
Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley (Note 6)
PREOE &+ (H1776) - 0.1 - - 0.1

Non-executive directors: EH7TEZE -
Dr. Raymond Chan (Note 7)

BRIEsE L Azt 7) = - - _ _
Mr. Xin Kexia (Note 4)

ERRE (Mt 4) - - - - _
Mr. Song Rongrong (Note 4)

R (Hat4) - - - - _
Ms. Wang Yang (Note 3)

FHaL (H:E3) = - - _ _
Mr. Shi Changyun (Note 8)

ERELE (H1:78) = - - _ _
Mr. Qi Miao (Note 9)

PR (Hf729) = - - _ _
Ms. Gao Huan (Note 70)

mEZ L (fiz210) - - - - _
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For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE-Z—A~Ft-A=+—HLLEE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

154

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

9. EERFETHAEME (8D

Basic Retirement

salaries benefits Share-
and scheme based
allowances contributions payments
Fees EXge BARERN URGREE Total
we KR HEEEN PANE mE
HK$' M HK$' M HK$' M HK$' M HK$'M
A¥RErT BEEE&ET  B¥eEx  BkasEr  BKEER
Independent non-executive directors:
BUHHTEE -
Mr. Yang Xiongsheng (Note 11)
BB S (AT 17) 0.1 - _ _ 041
Ms. Zhao Yuhong (Note 77)
HFA L (fE11) 0.1 = = - 0.1
Dr. Li Quan (Note 11)
TREL (M) 0.1 - — - 0.1
Mr. Duh Jia-Bin (Note 11)
SRS (A3 11) 0.1 _ _ . 01
Mr. Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony (Note 7)
BRUBLE (K7 7) 0.1 = - - 0.1
Mr. Kao Ying Lun (Note 7)
SRS E (K7 7) 0.1 = - - 0.1
Mr. Jack Schmuckli (Note 7)
Jack Schmuckli &4 (A1 7) 0.1 - - - 0.1
Dr. Kenichi Ohmag (Note 7)
RETH—1EL (477 7) 0.1 = - - 0.1
0.8 1.4 - - 2.2

Note 1:  Appointed on May 12, 2016 and resigned on March

1, 2017

Note 2:  Appointed on December 6, 2016

Note 3:  Appointed on April 1
December 6, 2016

, 2015 and resigned on

Note 4:  Appointed on April 1, 2015

Note 5:  Resigned on July 21, 2015

Note 6:  Resigned on April 15, 2015

Note 7:  Retired on August 26, 2015

Note 8:  Appointed on September 15, 2015
Note 9:  Appointed on December 7, 2015
Note 10: Resigned on November 19, 2015
Note 11: Appointed on August 26, 2015

Mr. Foo Piau Phang is also the chief executive of the

Company.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the

Group.

Wl : RZEBE—X"FRAT_HEZER
s —t+EFE=f— Elﬁﬂ?c
MosE2 : E—RNFE+-_ANBEZE
M3 : RZE—HFMNA—HEZARR
—E— T+ ANBET
M4 : RZE—RFMNA —BHEZT
MizEs: RZZT—AFEtA-+—HEFE
ke : RM—Z—AFMNA+HBEIE
W7 R=Z—RAFNA=-+ARE
ks : RZZE—HAFNATHHEZE
e : R=ZE—AF+=-A+tHEZFE
MaZ10 : R=Z—AF+—A+LAET
Mzl R _E—RAFNA -+ BEZE

MEERE NI AR R ITHARE

EXFAITRATESOMESER RS
AERARR RAKESHNREMS -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

The emoluments of the non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors shown above were
mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The aggregate emoluments of the five highest paid
individuals included one (2015: one) executive directors of
the Company. One of them was also the chief executive of
the Company during the year ended December 31, 2016
(2015: none), whose emoluments were included in note 9
above. The emoluments of the remaining four (2015: four)
highest paid individuals are as follows:

e PR R

For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE_Z—NFt-A=t—RALEE

9. EERFETHAEME (8D

FATEENBUFNTEZT2HFME
2EREREERARAESREREH

B -
10. 8 REHMES

ARRAEABREFMNEEEF R (=T
—hF: —RB)RARFNTEST - HE
—E-RETZA=T-BHLEE H
P-B(ZFT—HF: RF)AKBA/AR
BIITHARE - BN EXMES9
B AHRNE(ZT—RF ! WOR) &=
FMALZB T

Nine-month

Year ended period ended

December 31, December 31,

2016 2015

BE-Z—XRF #BE_T—HF

+=-—HA=+—H +=ZA=+—H

IFFE 1EAE A

HK$’'M HK$' M

BEEET BB EST

Basic salaries and allowances £ %4 M 28k 7.9 5.6
Bonus 1E4L 0.5 0.2
8.4 5.8

Bonus is determined with reference to the individual
performance during the year/period.

The emoluments of the remaining four (2015: four)
highest paid individuals are within the following bands:

FR A - EATRBEARRTE ©

HH{pWE(ZE—1F : OR)&=HM
AL ZMENFLATRE

Number of employees

EBE&E
Nine-month
Year ended period ended
December 31, December 31,
2016 2015
BE-8—~F BE-—T-8F
t=A=+-8 +=A=+-H
IEFE LEAUME A
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 7% 1,500,001 7T E 4% 2,000,000 7T 1 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 7% 1,000,001 JTE % 1,500,000 7T 3 1
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For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE-Z—A~Ft-A=+—HLLEE

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

During the year/period, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to the five highest paid individuals (including
directors and employees) as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group; and nil (2015: HK$0.4
million) were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals as compensation for loss of office.

11. TAXATION

10. A B &ReEFMNES (F)

EER/BR AEEBELZA#MES T
hEaeaiMEE(BRESREER)E
BEEMAREESXMAZZME - K
EERVYEREBRN SN TFTRZES F M
BEZHES(ZZE—0E . B¥04H
BT °

1. HIE

Nine-month

Year ended period ended
December 31, December 31,
2016 2015
BE-ZE—RF HE—_ZT—HF
+=—A=+—H +=ZA=+—H
LFE LENEA

HK$’'M HK$’ M
BEHET BEEET

The charge comprises: X H 84 :

Hong Kong Profits Tax &6 Fl 57

— current year/period —ANFE HiR - 0.5

— overprovision in prior years — {5 E SR EE - (0.4)

- 0.1

Deferred taxation (note 17) iEXEF:IE (faE 17) 2.0 -
2.0 0.1

The charge for the year/period is reconciled to the loss
before taxation as follows:

FE/HERB HERBRRATZEEB
EHERIMT ¢

Nine-month

Year ended period ended
December 31, December 31,
2016 2015

BE-_ZT—XF HE-T—A1F
‘I'—)EJ_‘I' H +t=—A=+—H

LLFE LENE A
HK$’M HK$' M
BEEET BB EET
Loss before taxation K&t 5l &5 18 (62.0) (86.1)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5%

BARHFTS T E 16.5% 51 & (10.2) (14.2)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose “~A] 157 F sz 2 18 5/ £ 1.7 1.3
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose HZERFI A 7 FiTER 2 (1.5) (1.4)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AR IERERIEIEE B & I TET 2 23.5 23.8
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions

REMEDEEESCENBARIMEKATREIR 272 (7.6) (5.2)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised 218 F Bl AR ERER 2 T THE 18 (4.9) 3.2
Overprovision in prior period/years LATEHAR /4 /2 Bt B 50 - (0.4)
Others EAf 1.0 (0.6)
Tax charge for the year/period

REF HMHIAES H 2.0 0.1

156



11.

12.

Annual Report 2016 —Z— /54

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TAXATION (continued)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of
estimated assessable profits for the year/period.
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at
the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company for the year/
period is based on the following data:

11.

12.

e PR R

For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE_T-—RFE+-_A=1THLEE

18 (&)
RAEE /HIR %ﬂ S/ TR A E
FER BN L 16.6% 5T E o H Al 715518

B2 RIBIIZIRE R 7/£$EE£ETTZ$R

_2_ E o

SRR

BRIKPEARAMBEECERSEHRE)
(TREMBHA]D) REEEN - BAR
AARHRENE AR 2 EEMRERBT
ER25% °

BREE

AEE/HBEARARERARESRE
AEEBEEDIZTIBEE

Nine-month
Year ended period ended
December 31, December 31,
2016 2015
BE-Z—RF #E_T—HF
+=—HA=+—H +=ZA=+—H
LEFEE 1EE A
HK$’'M HK$’ M
BEEET BEEST
Loss: E518 :
Loss for the year/period attributable to owners of the Company and
loss for the purposes of basic and diluted loss per share
AUGESRERNREEREB AR AHE ANBIE 2 AFEE BHER (64.0) (86.2)
Number of ordinary shares: R HER -
2016 2015
—E—RF E— R4

Number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic and
diluted loss per share FLAG

EEREAREERER LR

B IR A% 2K

2,599,993,088 2,599,919,854

The computation of diluted loss per share does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding
share options as the inclusion of those options would
result in decrease in loss per share for the nine-month
period ended December 31, 2015 (2016:nil).

EITFEARB ZHMATEBRESER
HE_T—aAF+-_A=+—HI1IENAE
ANEREBEBRD (ZZTE—XRF: &)
RETEEREBEZERRN  YERKZ
LRI -
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For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE-Z—NFt-A=t—HLLEE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. W12 ~ B NFZHE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and and Plant and
buildings equipment Motor machinery
HEL IELIND vehicles BERE Total
kEF HKERFE AE RHes wE
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
B¥EEL BY¥EEx A¥EEREx B¥EEn BY%EER
COST OR VALUATION
A ESk G E
At April 1, 2015
RZZE—RAFMA—A 0.6 293.2 3.4 298.5 595.7
Currency realignment [ &, 387 - 0.8) ©.1) ©.1) (1.0)
Additions RNE - 0.8 - 8.1 8.9
Disposals & - (14.2) (1.3) 27.8) 43.3)
At December 31, 2015
RZE-—RAF+=-A=1+—H 0.6 279.0 2.0 278.7 560.3
Currency realignment [& ¥, 387 - ©.5) 0.1 = (0.4)
Additions /R E - 2.4 - 5.1 7.5
Disposals & (0.6) (10.3) 0.2) (2.7) (13.8)
At December 31, 2016
RZE—R"F+ZRA=+—8 - 270.6 1.9 281.1 553.6
DEPRECIATION #7&
At April 1, 2015
RZZT—AFMA—H 0.3 281.0 2.7 277.4 561.4
Currency realignment [ %, 78% - (0.8) 0.1) (0.1) (1.0)
Provided for the period 7~ HAfE 542 - 4.4 0.2 8.9 13.5
Eliminated on disposal Hi & i - (14.2) (1.3) 27.1) (42.6)
At December 31, 2015
RZZ—RAF+=-A=1+—H 0.3 270.4 1.5 259.1 531.3
Currency realignment [& &, 352 - 0.5) 0.1 = (0.4)
Provided for the year 8N E 5112 - 338 0.2 11.3 15.3
Eliminated on disposal Hi &5 § (0.3) (10.3) 0.2) 2.7) (13.5)
At December 31, 2016
RZZE—RFET-_A=1—H - 263.4 1.6 267.7 532.7
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At December 31, 2016
R=-B—X"E+=-A=t+—H - 7.2 0.3 134 20.9
At December 31, 2015
RZZE-—hAF+=-A=1+—H 0.3 8.6 0.5 19.6 29.0
Note: At the end of the reporting period, the cost of property, et EREBRR E2HXTERDESR
plant and equipment that were fully depreciated but R e R E A E 4967
still in use amounted to HK$496.7 million (2015: ABET(ZZ—RF : BES0728E8
HK$507.2 million). JL) °
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment, less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and Over the shorter of the

buildings term the lease, or 25 years
Furniture, fixtures and 10%-25%

equipment
Motor vehicles 10%-20%

Plant and machinery 10%-20%

The estimated useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed at end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

The leasehold land and buildings are located in Hong
Kong under medium-term leases.

e PR R

For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE_Z—NFt-A=t—RALEE

13. Y% ~ BN KRB (&)

W% B MREYUAERZE  REAE
ARFEHRENSREEFIRTE - AM
WA - BEFEZITERMT ¢

HELHNET FTHEHE 25 F -
NRE & A%

B HBENRE 10% - 25%

RE 10% — 20%

R = 3% 1 M i 25 10% - 20%

BEFATAFRERFTENEZRERER R
Rmel o GBS ERBRTIRZ
HBEAR

HELHFMEFRARTHPHORETER
BZME -
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For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE-Z—A~Ft-A=+—HLLEE

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

160

14. BV EE

Product
development Patents and
costs trademarks Total
EmBERA BRI REE FEL ]
HK$'M HK$’M HK$’M
BEEET BEEET BEHET
COST K AE
At April 1, 2015 R=—Z—RHFMA—H 24.3 18.5 42.8
Additions R E - 1.1 1.1
At December 31,2015 R—Z—H&E+_-_A=+—H 24.3 19.6 43.9
Additions RE - 0.3 0.3
At December 31, 2016 "= —NE+=-A=1+—H 24.3 19.9 44.2
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT # 4 & 5l (&
At April 1, 2015 R=—Z—RHFMA—H 21.8 13.7 35.5
Amortised for the period 7 2 fE 4 1.6 k5 3.1
At December 31, 2015 R —ZE—H&FE+-H=+—H 23.4 15.2 38.6
Amortised for the year 24 & # §5 0.9 1.0 1.9
At December 31, 2016 R=ZE— R E+=-A=1+—H 24.3 16.2 40.5
CARRYING VALUES fRHE &
At December 31,2016 A=Z—X<FE+=-A=+—H - 3.7 3.7
At December 31, 2015 R=—ZE—AF+-A=+—H 0.9 4.4 5.3

The above intangible assets, which have finite useful
lives, are amortised on a straight line basis over the
following periods:

Product development costs
Patents and trademarks

2 years
5-10 years

NEEBTEEENT BEHRAER - JhiIA
NEARABEARE

EmfAERAR

B RS

24
52104
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For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE_T-—RFE+-_A=1THLEE

15. GOODWILL 15. Pt
HK$’M
BEEET
At April 1, 2015, December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2016
R-_T—RFHA—H - —hAF+T_A=t+—BRZZE-—RF+HA=1+—H 33.8

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the units
are as follows:

HMEZREEIRTHZFENL 2B RN
T~

As at As at
December 31, December 31,
2016 2015

R-ZB—XRF RZZT—H1F
+t=A=t—R +=-A=t+—8H
HK$’ M HK$' M
BYEET BERET

Time and weather consumer electronic products unit (“CGU A”)

RERRREFHEEMEML ([BIREMAL 17.5 17.5
Telecommunications consumer electronic products unit (“CGU B”)
BAETHEEMENM ([BIIREMB]) 16.3 16.3
33.8 33.8
For the year ended December 31, 2016, management HE-_T— X "F+ZA=+—8HLF
of the Group determined that there was no impairment B AEECZERERTCEREEHEL
of any of its CGUs containing goodwill (2015: nil). BIREBEMNBMENRBAE(ZS —AF :
) o

The recoverable amounts of the CGU A and CGU
B have been determined based on a value in use
calculation. The calculation used discounted future
cash flow model based on financial budgets approved
by management for the next year and projected for
the following four years. Cash flows beyond the five-
year period are extrapolated using zero growth rate.
Management estimated discount rate of 12% for both
CGU A and CGU B using a risk-free rate, market return
and CGU specific risk factors. The key assumptions are
discount rate, growth rates and expected gross profit
margin which are were estimated based on historical
performance of the Group, including revenue, cost of
sales and operating expenses, and with reference to
the future strategic plans of the Group in respect of
each cash generating unit. Management considered
that any reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying
amount of both CGUs to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of respective CGUs.

BRI ABEAIRBEMNBZAIKEEEED
BEFEREETEEIMET - Lt 8
FRABBEEEBMZZRF KRBT AR
NFEMBKEERENRRRESRETR
B e ARAFRZREREUNT
EﬁM'kWEFMEFLﬂWT ™™ 15 [
& B3R BB AL 2 BB R B A = 2R fE st Al
fﬁﬁuA&EUfﬁEhBZ/\ B2IIREAE
12% c T E2/REBIDFT[E - BREKTE
HEME  WHIRBEASENBAERR
(B - iﬁﬁgﬁiﬂiﬁiﬁ“%$ﬁﬁii)ﬁwéQ
EREBEBBE AR EMNAN AR KR
ﬂﬁ#°aﬁFwEEﬂ#F“t2A

BERIERE BT EKMEARIRE
uz%@ BEBBEBIREAN 2 E
BEEE -
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For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE-Z—A~Ft-A=+—HLLEE

16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

The amount represents 2.92% (2015: 2.92%) unlisted
equity investments in a private entity that was
established in Korea. They were measured at cost less
impairment at the end of the reporting period because
the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured

reliably.

17. DEFERRED TAXATION

162

The followings are the major deferred tax (liabilities)
assets recognised and movements thereon during the

current year and prior reporting period:

16

17.

CAHEERE

RIBAIELETMIRERRBREK S 2 A
BB 7292% (2B —hE:2.92%) K&
AIEE - ZFREURARRERREH
RKZBEFE DERGEAEERAAE
CEERXKERUBARBESRBEAN
BEEEO SRS ©

IR FE R 1R

TRBIVRAFE LB E B R
SEERA(BE) BEREE

Product
development
costs Tax Total
Em losses
BRE A BIAEE BE
HK$'M HK$’'M HK$’M
BYEBT B¥EET BE¥EET
At April 1, 2015 and December 31, 2015
R_Z—RENA—ABAR-_ZE—HF+t-A=1+—H (0.5) 25 2.0
Credit (charge) to profit or loss for the year
REELAFTA (F0R) B 0.5 (2.5) (2.0)
At December 31, 2016 R=F—"F+=A=+—H - - -
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax MU BEHmEERNZELEHIBA RS T
balances for financial reporting purposes: o
As at As at
December 31, December 31,
2016 2015
R-Z—REF RZZE—ARF
t+=A=+-8 +=A=+-H
HK$' M HKS$'M
AMEET  ABEET
Deferred tax assets #EIEH TH & &= - 2.0
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For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE_Z—NFt-A=t—RALEE

17. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 17. IEEFR 18 (&)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has NEEEHIR » AEBG AT BRIEREE
unutilised tax losses of HK$1,113.4 million (2015: B S4B ETL(ZE—HFE: B
HK$1,008.5 million) available for offset against future 1,008 5B &) AIHEHE A REN - B
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised & LATERI AR AOE AR - M B2
in respect of such losses due to the unpredictability BEREENBEE(ZZE—H1F : 3HiE
of future profit streams (2015: a deferred tax asset of EHEEEASEIS 1 AE THERELER
HK$2.5 million was recognised in respect of tax losses EEEBK2588IL) °c AMERHIAE
of HK$15.1 million). Included in the unrecognised tax BEeaEER —_E—+F T - —FHHED
losses were losses of HK$57.9 million (2015: HK$78.2 B EBREEs7TOBE L (ZE—AF :
million that would expire in the years of 2016 to 2020) SIS O EE TR _E—RNEE_F
that will expire in the years of 2017 to 2021. Other —EFHARMBIER) o Hfih B8 A] R Hi 4%
losses may be carried forward indefinitely. g o
18. INVENTORIES 18. 7 &
As at As at
December 31, December 31,
2016 2015

R=B—xE WK-F-HF
+=A=t-8 +=A=+-8

HK$'M HK$'M

BEEET BEEET

Raw materials &%} 46.7 59.8
Work in progress 7E£L 5 13.2 12.8
Finished goods £ i 42.3 67.8
102.2 140.4
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For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE-Z—NFt-A=t—HLLEE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

164

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
(net of allowance for doubtful debts) presented based
on the invoice date which approximate the respective
revenue recognition date at the reporting date.

19. FE UL BR 7R % H ft fE UL 50 1R

REEBH BREXRNGKRERGE
& - RER A (% B A ERRE W SR
BHEIRE) 2 ZREDITT ¢

As at As at

December 31, December 31,

2016 2015

R=FB—x"& RIFT-HF

+=A=+—H +=—A=+—H

HK$' M HKS$'M

BEEETL BB BT

0to30days 0230 H 58.9 52.6
31to 90 days 31 HZE90 H 32.9 42.7
Over 90 days 90 H JA 14.8 4.6
Trade receivables fEHW RN 106.6 99.9
Other receivables £ b & Ug /I8 65.2 38.7
Total trade and other receivables J&E U AR 71 K2 H 1t & I F I8 4258 171.8 138.6

The Group normally allows credit period of 30 to 90
days to its trade customers.

The Group’s management closely monitors the credit
quality of trade receivables and considers the trade
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
to be of a good credit quality based on the good
payment history of the related debtors from historical
experience. Based on the settlement records of the
customers of the Group, trade receivables which are
past due but not impaired are generally collectible.
Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$16.6
million (2015: HK$10.6 million) which are past due
at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided allowance for doubtful debts as the directors
assessed that the balances will be recovered based on
their past settlement records. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances. The average age of
these receivables is 68.9 days (December 31, 2015:
51.0 days).

AEE—RETESIREFS0BEWQAHY
ZEH o
AEBEEEERYERRKERZEE
Ex UTRAEBRBBATLHEBEBERA
ZRIFERGES ARATESIEAR
ABREZERERBRFEEEZ R
BRAEBREE ZAREE CaBERXR
B2 EUWBR IR — MM = Al AU [E - &
ATEBEBZRKREREHRAREHHE
BEMASEB W ESIRREREBE ZEK
EREEEALBEE166BETL(-Z
—RHF  BEA106EBL) BREBEK
Rt EETEZRSE B EBIKER
REERTLAE -« XREEWERZEZLE
BEFAEEMAER ZEERKERZFY
BREA68.9R(ZE—RAFE+-_A=+—
H:51.08) -
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For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE_T-—RFE+-_A=1THLEE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The amount of other receivables as at December 31,
2016 mainly represented rental deposit of HK$7.8
million (December 31, 2015: HK$12.4 million), deposit
paid to suppliers of HK$37.5 million (December 31,
2015: HK$3.7 million), value-added tax recoverable
HK$5.7 million (December 31, 2015: HK$3.3 million)
and project cost receivable from customers of HK$7.1
million (December 31, 2015: HK$5.5 million).

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired:

19. FEURBRF N EL b FE R FXIE (48)

RZZE—XRNE+-_A=+—8 HE#fE
WRBETERHSHEEEKTISEETT
(ZF—hF+-A=+—H:&¥124
BEL) BNHERESEKI75H
BET(ZE—RF+_-_A=+—8 : B
3.7TEEBL) BUCEEHKIEERS7H
ET(ZZE—hAF+-_A=+—H: &%
3.83EET) MEWRFIEE KIBBET7 .1
BEBL(ZE—AF+ZHA=+—H: %

5 5H&IT) °

B HERIR(E < U AR 2 BR i

As at As at

December 31, December 31,

2016 2015

R=ZB—XRE RIZ—HE

+=HA=+—H +ZH=+—H

HK$’'M HK$' M

BEEET BEEET

Overdue less than 30 days #iHi30 H X 15.5 8.3
Overdue 31 to 90 days # #3131 HE 90 H 1.1 1.6
Overdue more than 90 days #5790 H A = - 0.7
16.6 10.6

The Group considered credit history including default
or delay in payments, settlement records, subsequent
settlements and aging analysis of the trade receivables
and provided fully for those receivables considered to
be not recoverable.

AEERREECHBBERKERZE
RBFEEMNZK - R HRERE
fREC AT - AW HAR A A UL E A R

FRAIE L 224 -
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For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE-Z—A~Ft-A=+—HLLEE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 19. FE U BR 5k &2 EL th FE W R IE (4
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts on trade FEUNBE SR REE B 2 & &) -
receivables:

Nine-month
Year ended period ended
December 31, December 31,
2016 2015
BE-Z—NRE HE-_ZT—1F
+=A _‘I' H +=—A=+—H
LHEE LIENEA
HK$’M HK$' M
BEEET BEBEETT
Balance at beginning of the year/period &,/ B #] 4% % 13.2 14.7
Currency realignment [ 5, F5%& 0.4 (2.0)
Impairment losses recognised B2 2 B &8 - 0.5
Balance at end of the year/period F Hj4% &5 ¢4 13.6 13.2

The Group does not hold any collateral over these

balances.

Included in trade and other receivables are the following
amounts denominated in currency other than the

AER B BT X B A RS

ﬁ&ﬂﬁﬁuu °©

& W AR 75k Ko EL R W SR IR B 15 T B DA A
AEBEEBZNREEEUINZEREE

functional currency of the group entities to which they 2 FIE
relate:

As at As at
December 31, December 31,
2016 2015
R-ZB—RFE RZZT—hF
+=-A=+—-8B +=—A=+—H
HK$' M HKS$' M
BEEET EEEET
USD %7t 74.9 52.9
Euro BX7& - 0.8
Renminbi AR 2.9 =
77.8 53.7
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20. FORWARD CONTRACT ASSETS

e PR R

For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE_T-—RFE+-_A=1THLEE

20 RHIGHNEE
As at As at
December 31, December 31,
2016 2015

R=B—X%F W-T-IF
+=A=t+-8 +=A=+-~
HK$'M HK$' M
BEEET  BREER

Forward foreign exchange contracts = Hi9NEA %)
— Derivative financial assets — T4 4 Bl & E

- 0.1

The Group used currency derivatives to minimise the
exposure of significant future transactions and cash
flows. The Group was a party to a variety of foreign
currency forward contracts in the management of its
foreign exchange rate exposures. The instruments
entered were primarily denominated in the currencies of
the Group’s principal markets.

The ranges of the total nominal amounts of the
outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts at the
December 31, 2015 were as follows:

As at December 31, 2015
Notional amount Maturity Exchange rates
Sell EURO1,000,000 April 29, 2016 USD/EURO1.09470

Sell EURO500,000 June 15, 2016 USD/EURO1.10150

The above foreign exchange contracts were settled in
net amount on maturity date.

AEBUNEETETARREEZRRK
RHEBEREETH - AEBEFIL
TRZEHIMNES B A EIZE @R -
ANz TEFZEUAEEFETSH
E¥EE -

AAEEI M AREZ REINES
AR —_E—hF+_A=+—HzZHE@E
EcEMNBENT :

R-EBE—HE+=-B=+—H

mEtE 3#A Ex
EH1,000000 —B-RE EX/BE1.09470
B mE=+AA

HE500,000 —E-AE ER/BE1.10150
B ~AthA

A ESMESKINBIM B AFREE -
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BE-Z—A~Ft-A=+—HLLEE

21.

22.

168

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprised cash held by the
Group and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less are at prevailing market
interest rates in the range of 0.38% to 4.50% (2015:
0.07% to 6.00%) per annum.

Included in bank balances and cash are the following
amounts denominated in currency other than the
functional currency of the group entities to which they
relate:

21

RITEKRLASBEAEEREZHS
FEBETHER TR ZREEBHE
AZBEAKNAT HRETHE X
8 FAERNF03IBEEL450E(-ZF
—FHF :0.07EZE6.00F)

RiITHEBE AR BRETIAEBSE IE
B2 ER AN EFHEZ R

As at As at

December 31, December 31,

2016 2015

R-ZZB—XRF RZZT—H1F

+=A=t+-8 t-A=t-8

HK$’ M HK$' M

BERET BEEET

USD %7t 31.0 85.3
Renminbi A R#& 16.2 35.7
Euro [&{7E 4.7 6.1
GBP %85 - 1.5
51.9 128.6

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND

22.

BARARAEMEMNRIBERER

ACCRUALS gH
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables BERR BNEREREZEHZT
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the Zﬁﬁlﬁl‘v\ﬁﬁﬁﬂ—l— :
reporting period:
As at As at
December 31, December 31,
2016 2015
RZE—XRFE WKRZIZE—HF
+=A=+—-H +ZA=+—H
HK$'M HK$' M
BERET BEEET
0to 30 days 0 & 30 H 10.0 37.7
311to 90 days 31 HE 90 H 28.2 20.4
Over 90 days 90 H A == 18.1 5.0
Trade payables fEFERX 56.3 63.1
Other payables and accruals Efth & {338 M FE T2 & 88.8 1241
Trade and other payables and accruals
FERTBRF M At BN RR A  FRIR B A 145.1 187.2
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For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE_Z—NFt-A=t—RALEE

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 2. BNBRRRAEMESRERER

ACCRUALS (continued) & /A E\)
The amount of other payables mainly represented HEMNZBTIEEB KRS RIBEE
receipt in advance from customers of HK$32.8 million R8ABTL(ZE—HF: A4238
(2015: HK$42.3 million), accrued expenses of HK$22.6 Bir) BIEERA®E226FETL(ZE
million (2015: HK$33.5 million) and accruals for staff —FR4E A I3 s HEETT) RESTE IR
cost of HK$29.4 million (2015: HK$31.6 million). AEMOY AT BT (- —RE : B
31.6 &) °
Included in trade and other payables are the following FEN BRI N E fh BT X IE B 35 T 5 LA E
amounts denominated in currency other than the HEEBTRE e EB U E¥tE
functional currency of the group entities to which they ZRIA
relate:
As at As at
December 31, December 31,
2016 2015

R-ZB—ARF RZZT—HF
+=A=t+-8 +=A=+-H

HK$' M HK$’ M

BEEET BEEET

USD %7t 18.6 22.6
Renminbi A R - 0.3
Euro BUZE - 0.1
18.6 23.0
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23. SHARE CAPITAL 23. R4
Number
of shares Amount
A& E &8
HK$’ M
BEBEIT
Authorised: JATE AN :
At April 1, 2015, December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2016
RZEBE—RAFNMNA—H —T—HF+-_A=+—HK
—E—RF+A=+—H
— ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each — &R EEB 0.10 T2 Z@AHD 3,500,000,000 350.0
— ordinary shares of US$0.10 each — &R EE 0.10 37T 2 L @D 10,000 =
Issued and fully paid: B2 217 R T IR :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each ERXE{EE 0.10 0.2 @RS
—at April 1, 2015 —RA-Z—RHFMAH—H 2,588,973,088 258.9
— issue upon exercise of share options — 17 {5 B A% HE Fr 251 T 2 A% 15 11,020,000 1.1
— at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2016
—RZE-—AFT+A=+—HBR=ZT—FTZA=1+—8 2,599,993,088 260.0
No dividend was paid or proposed for the year REBEE-_ETE—XRNE+-_B=+—BI=F
ended December 31, 2016 (nine-month period ended B e rNSEZa kMR E(HE_E
December 31, 2015: nil), nor has any dividend been —FE+=-_A=+—8 @A/ :
proposed since the end of the reporting period. ) NREREARETEZZRMNIRE -
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

2002 IDT Option Scheme & 2012 IDT Option
Scheme

The Group offers share options to attract, motivate
and retain key employees who contribute to the growth
of the Group. At the special general meeting held on
August 28, 2002, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (“2002 IDT Option Scheme”). At the annual
general meeting held on August 29, 2012, the Company
further adopted another share option scheme (“2012
IDT Option Scheme”). Both share option schemes had
a maximum of ten years in operation from the date of
adoption.

Pursuant to these schemes, the board of directors
of the Company offered to grant options to selected
eligible participants, including full-time employees
and full-time executive directors of the Company or
employees or any of its subsidiaries.

The limit on the total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised, together with all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company, must
not exceed 30% of the number of the Company’s
issued shares from time to time. Subject always to the
aforesaid overall 30% limit, the total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted, together with all options to be granted
under other share option scheme(s) of the Company,
must not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company on the adoption date. Such 10% limit may be
refreshed or exceeded if approved by shareholders in
general meeting subject always to the aforesaid overall
30% limit.

e PR R

For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE_Z—"Et+-_A=+—HItFE

24. BBIRHERTE

—EECERCE-—FEHBIKE
IR Rt &l
ANEBEBREARS - BB k%G Y
AEEEREHEMZEZEZREE - AR
AR —EE_FNA -+ NHEITZK
RERE EEMNBEREFES(TZF
T_FBHBEKRERERTE ] RZT
——FNA-thB ARAEKREE
FRE ERMFTBEBRESS(TZ22—=
FEHBEEBRETS ) - WEEKRE
FEIRZBRERERERETSF ©

RIENHETS ARG EESAMAET
CEBRSEATRER THEERE I
ZE2EALTAUABARRIZEREE S
2B TES KHEAFNKNBARARIZE
HITEEREEIRHE®RITEZFR
BOEITHEKE  URREARRBEME
HtEREAESREBERTEZREA
BREMUREETZIRNDBE T
BEBBARRERZERTRHOE:E 2
30% o FERF 25 £ STl B8 30% R 58
REIT  BITEMERBEDZBRE -
ARBEAQRHAABEREE SR
LT EBREMAI L BT 2 IRMDBE
TEHRBARARNERETS 2HEMA
HZ B HEITRAZ10% ° fiH KRR
RASHHE  Z10%BREERA FEH A
FHBAZRENERE EFIAXE
NPTl B B 30% BR KERR H ©
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

172

2002 IDT Option Scheme & 2012 IDT Option
Scheme (continued)

The total number of the Company’s shares issued
and which may be issued upon exercise of all options
granted to a participant in any 12-month period
immediately preceding the date of grant shall not exceed
1% of the number of shares in issue as at date of such
grant. If the grant of options is offered to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company or any of their respective associates,
the total number of the Company’s shares issued and
which may be issued to such participant upon exercise
of all options granted in any 12-month period up to
and including the date of grant shall not exceed 0.1%
of the number of shares then in issue and having an
aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000.

The subscription price for an option granted shall be the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the
shares for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

The vesting period of the share option is from the date
of grant until the commencement of the exercisable
period.

An offer for grant of an option must be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer, and HK$1 is payable
as consideration on acceptance. An option shall be
exercisable during the period as determined by the
board of directors of the Company or its authorised
committee, which shall commence on a date after the
expiry of a 6-month period after the date of grant and
not exceed 10 years from the date of such grant.

24. BB IR HERT & (&)

TEECERIZE-ZFERERE
RS E (4
RERRLD RSB ERT @A HRE
AITERXRTEN-—R2EALZMER
PRIEPTETT R AT BEETT 2 AR R IRD 4
gAIAEEBARHNEREER 2B %T
BROBEZ1%  MERARAZER
BRRIBIIFATEFTHRETBZE
MBEATEZZRTELRE  AREE
REBH(REZA) LERM+ @A
HfE > RITEESR T 2B BREM %
TTRAREETTZRE2REZEZARFR
MBE TEEEERERTRMOEA
0.1% * B #{E 1158 1B % ¥ 5,000,000
IT

BRELRABERAERNIIESE ()X
NABRORFEE B B2 BT E : (i) Rh
REEFXERHMAEEER 2 FHK
M8+ K (i) iy < EE °

BREzFBEHHRLBEHMASL B
TEAEFRAL -

BRESANREZLD R BERT 28 B AERE
o WEAREREMNEEITESR
B -BREAIRAQRREFTSALER
BZZESMEBETE ZHMEATAITE
Bl & B RSB A I E w2 B R
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 24 BRESTE (&)
2002 IDT Option Scheme & 2012 IDT Option CEECEN_E——FERERE
Scheme (continued) BRREET I (&)
The movements of share options under the 2002 IDT —EE_FEHEBRERESE T B
Option Scheme during the period from April 1, 2015 to BEA=—E—hFNMBE—HE=-_Z—*"
December 31, 2015 are set out below: F+ZA=1T—HZEHEN :
2002 IDT Option Scheme Number of share options
“EERCEERERERESE EREHA
Outstanding Outstanding
at at
Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise 4.1.2015 Lapsed Exercised 12.31.2015
HEAH i pice R-B-IF during duing R=B-If
Participants (M/DNY) (M/DHY) per share WA-A the period the period +=A=1—-AH
28% (B/B/%) (R/B/%) BRITHE HAR{THE APt MR HR{TE
HKS
BT
Directors &5 11.30.2005 12.1.2006 - 11.30.2015 0.529 7,280,000 (7,280,000) - -
Employees [EE 11.28.2006 11.29.2007-11.28.2015 0.548 676,000 (416,000) (260,000) =
11.28.2005 11.29.2008-11.28.2015 0.548 676,000 (416,000) (260,000) =
12.1.2010 12.1.2012-11.30.2020 0.222 625,000 (375,000) (250,000) =
12.1.2010 12.1.2013-11.30.2020 0.222 625,000 (375,000) (250,000) -
12.12.2011 12.12.2013-12.11.2021 0.104 500,000 (500,000) - -
12.12.2011 12.12.2014-12.11.2021 0.104 500,000 (500,000) - -
4,18.2012 4.18.2015-4.17.2022 0.136 500,000 - (600,000) -
Other participants 11.28.2005 11.29.2007-11.28.2015 0.548 208,000 (208,000) — =
Ew2EAL 11.28.2005 11.29.2008-11.28.2015 0.548 208,000 (208,000) - -
12.01.2010 12.01.2012-11.30.2020 0.222 750,000 (500,000) (250,000) -
12.01.2010 12.01.2013-11.30.2020 0.222 750,000 (500,000) (250,000) -
12.12.2011 12.12.2013-12.11.2021 0.104 2,250,000 (500,000) (1,750,000) =
12.12.2011 12.12.2014-12.11.2021 0.104 2,250,000 (500,000) (1,750,000) =
17798000 (12278000 (5,520,000 -
Exercisable at the end
of the period
REREF A1 {70 17,298,000 -
Weighted average
exercise price HK$0.341 HK$0.418 HK$0.170
MEFIEE Ao BR0418T  HE0.1T0TT -
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 24. BIREET 2 (4
2002 IDT Option Scheme & 2012 IDT Option CEECEN_E——FERERE
Scheme (continued) BRREET I (&)
The movements of share options under the 2012 IDT —E-_FERBEERERESZT 2B
Option Scheme during the period from April 1, 2015 to BEA=—E—hFNMBE—HE=-_Z—*"
December 31, 2015 are set out below: F+_A=+T—"HZEZHBER :
2012 IDT Option Scheme Number of share options
“E-CEERERERESE EREHA
Outstanding Outstanding
at at
Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise 4.1.2015 Exercised Lapsed 12.31.2015
R AH Figedil price W=E-1f during during R-E-HE
Participants (M/DNY) (M/DHY) per share WA-A the period the period +=A=1—-AH
S8%E (B/B/8) (B/R/%) BRITHE HAR{TE HRfTHE BRAN HR{TE
HKS$
BET
Employees [E& 3.27.2013 3.27.2015-3.26.2023 0.130 500,000 (500,000) - -
6.27.2013 6.27.2015-6.26.2023 0.134 2,500,000 (2,500,000) - -
7.7.2014 7.7.2015-7.6.2024 0.172 750,000 (250,000) (600,000) -
7.7.2014 7.7.2016-7.6.2024 0172 750,000 (250,000) (500,000) =
Other Participants 12.3.2012 12.3.2013-12.2.2022 0.131 1,000,000 (1,000,000) - -
AthBEAT 12.3.2012 12.3.2014-12.2.2022 0.131 1,000,000 (1,000,000) - -
6,500,000 (5,500,000) (1,000,000) =
Exercisable at the end
of the period
RERB AT 2,500,000 -
Weighted average
exercise price HK$0.142 HK$0.136 HK$0.172
MEFTEE A0l A0 A¥0IT2T -
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

2002 IDT Option Scheme & 2012 IDT Option
Scheme (continued)

The 2002 IDT Option Scheme expired on August 27,
2012. Options granted under the 2002 IDT Option
Scheme prior to such expiration will continue to be
valid and exercisable in accordance with the terms of
the 2002 IDT Option Scheme.

In accordance with the terms of the above two share
option schemes, upon the making of a general offer to
all shareholders, other than Jiangsu Hongtu, Jiangsu
Hongtu High Technology (Hong Kong) Co. Limited and
Hongtu (Seychelles) and parties acting in concert with
any of them (other than Dr. Raymond Chan, Mrs. Chan
Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley, Integrated Display Technology
Limited and Raymax Time Company Limited) to acquire
the shares and such offer is declared unconditional,
the option holders are entitled to exercise the options
at any time until whichever is the earlier of (i) the date
of expiry of the option period, or (ii) the late day of
the period of 14 days after the date on which the
Offer, when made in accordance with the Composite
Document, becomes or is declared unconditional (i.e.
April 8, 2015), after which the option shall lapse.

All share options under both schemes were exercised
or lapsed in the prior period, no share option was
outstanding as at December 31, 2015 and 2016.

e PR R

For the year ended December 31, 2016
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24. BB IR HERT & (&)
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fREEET ) ()
—EE_FERBRBREAIR _-F
——FNAZttHER RLdHm
RIRE—TT —FE R BRERESS
REBRESESEFERIRARE_F
Z_FEHBIRERERTS ZEKXT A
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R L RIE BT 8 Z &K - &
ME2ERR(OIHEZE ITHZES
B (EFE)KRHMD AR 2 A KHongtu
(Seychelles) A R B2 1% S F 1] — 75 — 1T
FEH(REXEL RS2t
Integrated Display Technology Limited
K Raymax Time Company Limited& 5h)
EL2EBHONMERN RZBZHOE M
REGREER BRERSEAGEBRTT
CEREEEATREBHRIL (VB
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NHERR K A EMAERMEE B (B
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25. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 25. EXRE M EE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in AREB ZEXREEFEERASEERNZ
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern FTETELIFERS  AEEREL
while maximising the return to stakeholders through BRI ER IR EEKE AR o
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The RER 7 R EEATEEHER -
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of equity NEBvEARAEEBRTERNAGIHES AFE
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising (ERER (BEEBITERANNLEE) -
issued share capital and reserves.
The management of the Group reviews the capital REBEERBTHEXEARNGERE - EA
structure on a regular basis. As part of this review, R —En AEFHETEEEZEREER
the management of the Group considers the cost of RIZKANGERZER  WeHENES
capital and the risks associates with the capital, and TR ANER 2 ERERE -
takes appropriate actions to adjust the Group’s capital
structure.
26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 26. €T H
Categories of financial instruments SHITEER
As at As at
December 31, December 31,
2016 2015
R-ZE—XRE RKRZE—HF
+=—HA=+—H +=ZA=+—H
HK$’ M HK$' M
BEEET BB BT
Financial assets & &l & &
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents) 196.7 273.6
ERRERGIE(BREREAERRESIEE)
Derivative financial assets $74 % @& &= - 0.1
Available-for-sale financial assets A] it & & gh & &= 0.9 0.9
197.6 274.6
Financial liabilities 4 & & f&
Amortised cost # §H1& K 2 57.1 67.8
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, available-for-sale investments,
bank balances and cash and trade and other payables.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below.

The financial instruments are fundamental to the
Group’s daily operations. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner. There has been no change to the Group’s
exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk.

Market risk

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk.

The management monitors foreign currency exposures
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposures should the need arise.

e PR R

For the year ended December 31, 2016
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26. R T B (&

MEmEREE R ERBEE

AEEZIEcRIABEREERR
HAEUWRIR - AT ERE - RITHE
B SR & MO BRI Eo At B A RROA
ZETRITAFBERNSERMERE -
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SHTAAREEBEEENER - &
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AEEETHERRETAIINEHED
BE  UBAEEAARINERR -

EEEEERINERARLREERTERE
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 26. T B (&)
Financial risk management objectives and BIEREREEERBEK (&)
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued) g E e ()
Currency risk (continued) Bk e ()
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency REBNUIINEFTEZEEEEREKR
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities ERERTEGLRIRS  EWRERIEAE
including bank balances and cash, trade and other fb FE W RR IR - DA B2 B A5 BR B K E b FE
receivables, and trade and other payables at the end of NI AREHARZERERT

the reporting period are as follows:

Liabilities Assets
=N EE
As at As at As at As at
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2016 2015 2016 2015

R=B-—AE R-ZT—RHF RIB-—ARE RKR-T—AF
+t=ZA=t—-HB +t-A=+t—RH +=ZA=t+—-B +=-A=+—H

HK$' M HK$' M HK$' M HKS$' M

BEEHET B E ST BEEHET BB EET

USD 7T 18.6 22.6 105.9 138.2
Renminbi A ¥ - 0.3 19.1 35.7
Euro BX7& - 0.1 4.7 6.9
GBP #gE - - - 1.5
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% (2015: 5%) increase and decrease in the functional
currency of the respective group entities against the
relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2015: 5%) sensitivity
rate represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5% (2015:
5%) change in foreign currency rates. The analysis has
excluded USD denominated monetary items as HKD,
the functional currency of the group entity holding
these monetary items, is pegged to USD. The directors
consider that the currency risk in this regard is minimal.
A positive number below indicates an increase in
post-tax loss for the year where functional currency
strengthens 5% against the relevant foreign currencies.
For a 5% weakening of functional currency of the
respective group entities against the relevant foreign
currencies, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the post-tax loss and the balances below
would be negative.

e PR R
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26. R T A (&)

B EREERBRREK (&)

iR ()

EwE e (&)

BEE DT
TRFAVNAERASEH S EHEEE R
ZHREER S BRINEABERRESY
(ZE2E—RF :5%) ZHEE 5% (=
%—ﬂi-m@%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
INEETE R G BB 2 TE - BRKE
“ﬁ@@%ﬁﬁ%%[mﬁ%f%ﬁﬁ
B WRERESB(—ZZT—RHEF : 5%)
RINEZBABRENBRER - ZHWIT
YA BRELEEZ2EYEE REZ
BENEEBHBEEZEEER 2R
BEEETDEETHG  c EERAHE
ERZEERBBMTRE - THIEH
RRINEEE M L EIINEFH B 5% BE
ZEEHABRBREBENEM - HSHE
BEBERENEEE L BEEIINERE
5% BEHEBRBMEEBRERBESZERER
2B MTINEBREREE -

Effect on post-tax
result for the year/period
HAEE ERREEREZE

Nine-month

Year ended period ended

December 31, December 31,

2016 2015

BE-Z—R§ BE—_ZT—AF

+TZA=t+—HLEEE +ZA=+—HILAHEA

HK$’ M HK$' M

BYEEBT BEBRET

Renminbi A R 0.8 1.5
Euro B 7 0.2 0.3
GBP 2% - 0.1
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

180

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

In management’s opinion, the analysis is used for
reference purpose and is unrepresentative of the
inherent currency risk as the year end exposure does
not reflect the exposure during the year.

Credit risk

As at December 31, 2016, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure of Group entities to
perform their obligations in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of
those assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position. In order to minimise the credit
risk, the management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals for customers and other monitoring
procedures for recovering overdue debts. In addition,
the management considers the credit history of
the trade receivables including default or delay in
payments, settlement records, subsequent settlements
and aging analysis of trade receivables in determining
the allowance for doubtful debts and ensure that
adequate allowance for doubtful debts are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk on trade receivables, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties and customers spread across
diverse industries and geographical areas.

The credit risk for bank deposits is considered minimal
as such amounts are placed in banks with high credit
ratings.

26. R T A (&)
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based
on the agreed repayment terms. For non-derivative
financial liabilities, the table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. Specifically bank loans with a
repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of the
banks choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity
dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are
based on agreed repayment dates. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

e PR R

For the year ended December 31, 2016
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26. R T B (&

B EREERBRREK (&)

RBNE = Rk
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AEEEERELAREN LIRS RER
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MBEZESRRBREREGEREND ¥
2 -EEEERERTEREZERBIAR
FERB U & RRL -

TRFHINRBEENERGR - NEE
TRMEBEZHRTANINEA - BETE
TRMEBEMNS  ZRIDBRERAKEA
BEZZFRAHFEZEBABZRMY
RESRERE - MRTEEIN AR
EREEGR  ZEEERARIBRR
BRH—F TERRTITEEERNZ
AR - MEMFTESR BB Z 2B
BRIREREZERR - ZXRBREMNE
EATHRERE

RBELRFFRERF

Weighted Carrying
average On demand Total amount
effective or within 3  undiscounted at year/
interest rate months cash flows period end
InREFg FEERS REAR F R
i SIES =@RAAR BRERELE FREE
% HK$’ M HK$’ M HK$’M
% BEEET BEEET BEAET
2016 —Z—RF
Non-derivative financial liabilities
EPTEERBE
Trade and other payables
JEASF R 50 e ELAth A< /TR - 57.1 57.1 57.1
2015 —ZE—HF
Non-derivative financial liabilities
FTESREE
Trade and other payables
JE AT RR R R Bt A~ RRIE - 67.8 67.8 67.8
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

e the fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) are
determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

e the fair values of derivative instruments are
calculated using discounted cash flow analysis
using the applicable forward rates for the remaining
duration of the instruments.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximates to their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

26. R T B (&

PAN
YNV

TREERSRARZIAABEBENT

s SREENMERABIBEITET
R)2nlE IREBEEEERXNE
EELNFRBRERONETE °

s IATAZAAREBENRZIANR
HREHERERNEHNERSERN
FHRESRIONERE °

EZRARNKFATBRRDABHKAN
Rz eREENERAGBCREESR
HAAERES -

RAGEB BN REBBG AR B8

Level 1
F—H
HK$’ M
BEBETT

As at December 31, 2015
R—E—hF+-_A=+—H

Level 2 Level 3 Total
B4 F=4 HaEE
HK$ M HK$' M HK$’ M

B EETT B EETT B EETT

Financial assets £ @& &
Forward contract assets &= 24 X EE

0.1 = 0.1

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in the
prior period.
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets
that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair
values of these financial assets are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used).
As well as the level of the fair value hierarchy into which
the fair value measurements are categorised based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value

e PR R MR

For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE_Z—NFt-A=t—RALEE

26. R T B (&

REEEEENUQR
EREEZARE

STBZAKHE

AEREETEREENSHREHRER
REFE - TRERULFEREEZR
REWAEEZERN (LERMFER 2
B N ARE) - WERREBEAAER
EZRABBZUBEREAAEFE
FISRAZ AREZFR

measurements are observable.

Fair value
hierarchy Valuation technique(s)
Financial assets ARE and key input(s) Fair value as at
TREE = RERTEREERARE A RER
2016 2015
—E-XE —ZT—RF
HK$’'M HKS$' M
BERERT B¥BET
(1) Foreign currency forward Level 2 Fair value of forward contract is - 0.1

contracts classified as
forward contract assets
in the consolidated
statement of financial
position

RIFEMBHARART IR F MR
REMEEINERE
#)

determined by discounted cash flow
that future cash flow is estimated
based on forward foreign currency
rates (from observable yield curves
at the end of the reporting period)
and contract foreign currency rates,
discounted at a rate that reflects the
credit risk of various counterparties.
REIEHN 2 AR EDRENRES
MEETE - R\ RIBEELD
HNESRE R (R B RS HAR 2 AT EIER
W B4R ) RAVEINEER - WiRR
MESFHEERR 2R T IARL
Wi st o
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27. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

184

At the end of the reporting period, the Group was
committed to make the following future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases
which fall due as follows:

27.

REME L RE

RBEHR - NEBERE TR HE &
EHANRRFEHONFTEEDAT

As at As at
December 31, December 31,
2016 2015
R=FB—x"&E RIFT-IHF
+=A=+—H +=—A=+—H
HK$'M HKS$' M
BEEETL BB BT

Office equipment and motor vehicles ¥ A ERE R TE
Within one year —% 2 A - 0.1

Rented premises &Y%
Within one year —&F 2 A 28.8 28.4
In the second to fifth year inclusive ZE2HER (B EERE) 40.4 62.9
After five years L 1& - 0.1
69.2 91.4
Operating leases relate to office equipment, motor KEHEL AR BAETHRE  RERME

vehicles and rented premises with lease terms of
between 1 to 5 years (December 31, 2015: 1 to 6
years). The Group does not have an option to purchase
the leased asset at the expiry of the lease period.

Certain retail outlets include payment obligations with
rentals varied with gross revenue. The additional rental
payable (contingent rents) is determined generally
by applying pre-determined percentages to future
expected sales less the basic rentals of the respective
leases. The contingent rents were excluded from the
above amounts.

EMEZAN  BOBMAR—ERF(R=
E-HE+_A=+—RHB: —ERF)-
ASERHEOMHREEBEZHEESR
o

ETEERBEEZNRAEDRESH
BRAZES  BIMNENHES (HAES)
—RERBARKEER 2BE B ML
BRERNEONEAESEKETE - XAHE
T TPBEEELIISHE -
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28. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group principally operates defined contribution
retirement schemes for all qualifying employees,
including directors. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of independent trustees.

The retirement scheme cost represents contributions
payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in
the rules of the schemes. Where there are employees
who leave the schemes prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, the contributions payable by the Group
are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF” Scheme) for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. All qualifying employees are
required to participate in the MPF Scheme. Mandatory
benefits are being provided under the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries
are members of the state-managed retirement benefits
scheme operated by the PRC government. The
Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme.

e PR R MR

For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE_T-—RFE+-_A=1THLEE

28. BB AIEHE

AEBITERERAERER(BRE
F) RIEBREFRKRET B - %518
CEERAGEEZEEDHATAE L H
BIUETEAAE ST AES

RARREEEREAEERETEF
FRRFNAZERARS BT 2K &
BEER KT 2 B RA AR B & &t
& RIwog Yoz AR AR A RHE AN &R
BREN 2 H5RER -

AEERBEEEBAEREBRILAS
“rEestE([wEestE]) - AEA
BERREEHASMARTERE - HRHl
MRFRE RIS BIRH -

AARHHEKBELRNEES ST BEIK
FEBEZBERERRAKEANFEKE -
AN A E R BB B 1 AR A AR R AR R A
FRETIEZ "TEDXRUXKESE
fF- ARBERBRARBHFEZEAEME
RIRBETEEH P ZAE -

185



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ~ & Bl A R A &)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R YR

For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE-Z—AFt-A=+—HLEE

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

2. BEATRS

Apart from the transactions and the balances with BIHEEFRREMESMGFINZER
related parties disclosed elsewhere in these financial RN REEBRE HIA L EEEG
statements, the Group also entered into the following HAEHETIATEARLS
significant transaction with related parties during the
year/period:
Nine-month
Year ended period ended
December 31, December 31,
2016 2015
BE-Z—XRF HE_T—HF
+=A=+—H +=—A=+—8H
IHFE 1EN@EA
HK$’'M HK$' M
BERET BEEET
Sales of goods to certain fellow subsidiaries 17 T 8B A 7 #E &S E 0.4 5.7
Compensation of key management personnel == Z &8 A & &
— Short-term benefits 52 #1871 11.6 6.4
— Post-employment benefits BBt 12 12 5 0.1 0.3
11.7 6.7
The remuneration of key management is determined TEEBABZ HMEeBTFNEZE KA
by the remuneration committee having regard to the AT 2RI ETIZHMKEERE

performance of individuals and market trends.
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30. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 30. TEME A T

As at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015,
the Company’s principal subsidiaries, are all indirectly —FAFEt+_A=+—"HARBISZETEY
wholly owned by the Company. Details of the BATAEKRNARIBEL2EHER - N
Company’s principal subsidiaries at December 31, E—RFt+_A=+—"BER-_Z—AHF
2016 and December 31, 2015 are as follows: +—A=1+—HZ=FHBHT :

RZEBE-—RNE+_A=+—HBHE=Z

Nominal value
Place of of issued
incorporation/ ordinary share/
establishment registered capital
Name of subsidiary sz, BETLR Principal activities
(NI P03 RirEE/ZMER FEXK
Manufacturing business 5& %7
Cheer Win Electronics (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd.*  PRC US$4,440,000 Manufacture and sales of
BEEFORY) BRAR" H 4,440,000 37T consumer electronic products
SUERHEEFHEER
IDT Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Trading of consumer electronic products
BERHHER AR B BE2T RHETHEEM
BREFORY)BRAR" PRC HK$35,000,000 Manufacture of consumer electronic
BREFORY)BRAR" H 1 35,000,000 7T products and plastic parts and
provision of surface mount
technology assembly services
SEBETHEEmREBHMER
REREES M
Sales and distribution business
HER D HEHR
Oregon Scientific Brasil Ltda" Brazil BRL11,332,974 Marketing and distribution of consumer
Oregon Scientific Brasil Ltda" i) 11,332,974 &2 electronic products
EERDHEFEEER
Oregon Scientific Global Distribution Hong Kong HK$2 Marketing and distribution of consumer
Limited &5 B2 T electronic products
BRI AR AR EERSHEFHEER
Oregon Scientific Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 Marketing and distribution of consumer
BAGEBERAT &5 75 500,000 7C electronic products

HERDHETHEEM
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30. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

30. X EM B~ A (&)

Nominal value
Place of of issued
incorporation/ ordinary share/
establishment registered capital
Name of subsidiary A BETLR Principal activities
i EYNCIEA pavEii RirEE/ZMER FEXK
Sales and distribution business
(continued) $HE R 7 8535 (&)
Oregon Scientific Italia S.R.A. Italy EUR2,156,000 Marketing and distribution of consumer
Oregon Scientific ltalia S.R.L. =Wl 2,156,000 BLZ& electronic products
EERDHETHEER
Oregon Scientific (U.K.) Limited United Kingdom GBP2,400,002 Marketing and distribution of consumer
Oregon Scientific (U.K.) Limited = 2,400,002 H 5 electronic products
EERDHEFHEER
Oregon Scientific, Inc. United States US$2,060,000 Marketing and distribution of consumer
Oregon Scientific, Inc. of America 2,060,000 7T electronic products
xH EERSHEFHEER
Qregon Scientific Smartliving Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Marketing and distribution of consumer
BEEEZEEER AR BE B2 electronic products
HERDHETFHBER
Oregon Scientific Enterprise PRC US$3,400,000 Marketing and distribution of consumer
(Shanghai) Company Limited* H 3,400,000 7T electronic products
BRERES (8)BRAR" KERDHEFHEER
Oregon Scientific Trading PRC US$900,000 Marketing and distribution of consumer
(Beijing) Company Limited* H 900,000 7T electronic products
BACHE(LR)ARAR" EERDHEFHEER
Oregon Scientific (Guangzhou) PRC HK$3,500,000 Marketing and distribution of consumer
Trading Co., Ltd.* A 781 3,500,000 7T electronic products
BMTERBAEESHERAR" EERDHEFHEER
Nature Bird Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Marketing and distribution of
AABBEBRAT] B BT wellness and beauty products
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30. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2016
BE_T-—RE+-_A=tHLEE

30. X EM B~ A (&)

Nominal value

Place of of issued

incorporation/ ordinary share/

establishment registered capital
Name of subsidiary sz BETLR Principal activities
i EYNCIEA PX A RirEE/ZMER FEXK
Corporate 2 B %%
Integrated Display Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$6,000,000 Provision of group administrative services
ERRRBRAT B 71 6,000,000 75 RS ETHRS
IDT Electronic Technology PRC USD6,300,000 Provision of group research and

(Shenzhen) Company Limited* H 6,300,000 7T development services

BRETRERI)BRAR"

These are wholly foreign owned enterprises established
in the PRC.

Companies not audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
The financial statements of the subsidiaries not audited
by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu reflect total net assets and
total revenue constituting approximately 2% and 1%
respectively of the related consolidated totals.

All of the above subsidiaries operate principally in their
respective place of incorporation/establishment.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the reporting period, or at any
time during the year.

RSB T KA RS

YORPBERIZZBINERE -

fOUEEHEY BERD SAATEX
B)RF] - WRERE « BFAERTT S5TED
TEEZNMBARNMBRRRREE
mENISEEBRDEHBESBED
2% M 1% °

PR EFEMNBARGEEREFEMA
SPRILH BEARE o

FRARIHEEARBASEREXE
EEREERXECLHNBRAR -BEFZRA

FAGIBAEAMKE AR 2 BB
E o

REEHRRIRAFREFASEHA - &
B8 2 RIS AT AR i RME IR 2 (BT RE 5 o
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31. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

190

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated
March 15, 2017, the board of directors of the Company
proposed to increase the authorised share capital of
the Company from HK$350,000,000 and US$1,000
divided into 3,500,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each and 10,000 ordinary shares of US$0.10 each
respectively to HK$2,000,000,000 and US$1,000
divided into 20,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each and 10,000 ordinary shares of US$0.10
each respectively by creation of 16,500,000,000
additional ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (the
“Increase in Authorised Share Capital”), which will
rank pari passu in all respects with the existing shares
of the Company in issue. The Increase in Authorised
Share Capital is subject to the passing of an ordinary
resolution of the Shareholders approving the same at
the special general meeting of the Company.

1. HEHRENR

BEARRBHEE-_T—+F=ATH
BRRAE  ARREESEZEBER
16,500,000,000 f% & & E{E &% 0.10 7T
REEINE B - BARAAEERAR
78 % 350,000,000 7T & 1,000 7T (9 &
3,500,000,000 & & & E (& % % 0.10 7T
B E @A N 10,000 SR AEEO0.10 X 7T
B EE M) - 0= 2,000,000,000
7% 1,000 %7t (9 £ 20,000,000,000 &%
FREESE0.10 T & B K& 10,000 i
FRMEE.10ETTEBR) ([ HEE K
K]) ZERMDBEEAARFAEREBE
BIOIRORS T EZER S o BN
EERABERREARERERAE LI
TBRFERSAMER - FAEE -
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32. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 32. AN BB E R

COMPANY

Financial information of the Company at the end of the RI{EHIK - KRR FIREBEER 8T -
reporting period includes:

As at As at
December 31, December 31,
2016 2015

R=FB—x"&E RIFT-ILF
t=A=+t—-8B +ZA=1—H
HK$'M HK$' M
BEHET AREET

ASSETS &E

Interests in subsidiaries (note a) A A R (Hita) 284.4 289.0

Other receivables E A fE Y7018 0.4 0.4

Bank balances and cash $R174588 IR & 0.1 0.1
284.9 289.5

LIABILITIES &1f&

Other payables H i &< I8 1.2 2.7

NET ASSETS &= 8 283.7 286.8

CAPITAL AND RESERVES &7 &

Share capital i< 260.0 260.0

Reserves (note b) &% (K172 b) 23.7 26.8

TOTAL EQUITY #Ez 4858 283.7 286.8
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32. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

Notes:

(@) Interests in subsidiaries

32. RN BB & E R (&)

fi i
(a) HAMIEEA S oMz

As at As at
December 31, December 31,
2016 2015

REB—RF R=_F—h%F
+=A=+-B +=-A=+-—~

HK$’'M HKS$'M

BEAET BEEET

Unlisted shares, at cost 3F Eifkfn - I AE 204.8 204.8
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note) F& Ukt B A 7 Z = (47:%) 79.6 84.2
284.4 289.0

Note: The amounts were unsecured, non-interest

bearing and with no fixed repayment terms.

(b) Reserves of the company

M ZeBREER 25REEEEE
HAR -

(b) &2 A B

Share
Share Other options  Accumulated
premium reserve reserves losses Total
R4 {E Hih e MBI ZitEBE B
HK$’'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$’'M HK$’'M
BEEHET BEEHET BEEET BEEET BEEET
At April 1, 2015 R-Z—HFMA—H 164.0 126.3 1.2 (261.4) 30.1
Loss and total comprehensive
expenses for the period
NEAFE B IR Rk 2 E A 485 = = = (3.9) 3.9
Share issued upon exercise of
share options
PMTIERE ARAE 1R BEATRR D 1.0 - (0.4) - 0.6
Lapsed of share options B % #E 5 3% - - (0.8) 0.8 -
At December 31, 2015
RZZE—RF+=_A=+—H 165.0 126.3 = (264.5) 26.8
Loss and total comprehensive
expenses for the year
RNEEEE R HEF X BT - - - 3.1) 3.1)
At December 31, 2016
R=TB—RF+=-HA=+—H 165.0 126.3 - (267.6) 23.7
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